,
~——— M AS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

The Power of Distribution
MFSL/SEC/EQ/2023/56 July 03, 2023
To, To,
The Manager, General Manager
BSE Limited National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers Exchange Plaza
Dalal Street Plot No. C/1, G Block
Mumbai — 400001 Bandra-Kurla Complex
Bandra (East)
Mumbai — 400051
Scrip Code:540749, 947381 Trading Symbol: MASFIN
Dear Sir,

Sub: Annual Report for the Financial Year 2022-23 containing Notice of the 28" Annual General
Meeting pursuant to Regulation 30, 34 and 53 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”).
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Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing
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1. Notice of the 28th AGM scheduled to be held on Wednesday, July 26, 2023 at 11:30 a.m. IST
through VC / OAVM.

2. Annual Report for the Financial Year 2022-23 and

3. Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report for the Financial Year 2022-23.

In compliance with Circulars issued by MCA and SEBI, the Notice convening the AGM and the Annual
Report of the Company for the FY 2022-23 are being sent to all the members of the Company whose
email addresses are registered with the Company or Depository Participant(s). The Member who wishes
to obtain a hard copy of the Annual Report can send a request for the same at
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Following are important dates in this regards:

Sr. No. Particulars Date
ik Book Closure Thursday, July 20, 2023 to Wednesday, July 26, 2023
(both days inclusive)
2. Cut-off Date for E-Voting | Wednesday, July 19, 2023
& Final Dividend

3. E-Voting Commences at 09:00 A.M. on Saturday, July 22, 2023
and ends at 05:00 P.M. on Tuesday, July 25, 2023
4, Date of AGM Wednesday, July 26, 2023 at 11:30 A.M.

Kindly take the same on your record and treat the same as compliance with the applicable provisions of
the Listing Regulations.

Thanking you,
Yours faithfully,

FOR, M1 AS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
, Bhayani  Datalysondty
/ Riddhi Bhav.eshbhai
Bhaveshbhai ressss tasao.
RIDDHI BHAYANI

(COMPANY SECRETARY & COMPLIANCE OFFICER)
MEMBERSHIP NO.: A41206

Encl: As above

#
Regd. Office : . +91(0) 079 4110 6500 / 079 3001 6500

6, Ground Floor, Narayan Chambers, &= + 91(0) 079 4110 6597+ 91 (0) 079 4110 6561
B/h Patang Hotel, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad-380 009. & www.mas.co.in
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Tribute to ]
Shri Mukesh Gandhi
Co-Founder

Shri Mukesh Gandhi (October 20, 1957 — January 19, 2021) was the
Whole-time Director & CFO of the Company. He played a significant
role in bringing the Company to its current level as a specialised
retail financing organisation from a humble beginning in the year
1995, backed by robust fundamentals. He was a person of great
compassion, positivity, enthusiasm and pragmatism. He set
exemplary precedents during his entrepreneurial journey. He was a
reputed industry expert who was also a popular Finance speaker. His
vision, vigilance and zeal for excellence have and will always benefit
the Company to reach new heights. In honour of his memory, Team
MAS stands committed to “Excellence through Endeavours”.



OUR STANDALONE KEY NUMBERS

Journey of 112 Quarters FY 2022-23
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WE HAVE COME A LONG WAY SINCE WE
BEGAN OUR JOURNEY IN 1995.

CONSISTENTLY AND STEADILY, WE HAVE MOVED
FORWARD...

EXPANDING OUR BUSINESS FRONTIERS
STRENGTHENING OUR ASSET BASE

GAINING CUSTOMER TRUST

DELIVERING ON OUR PROMISE OF ADDING VALUE TO
ALL OUR STAKEHOLDERS

In the face of macro-economic headwinds or tailwinds,
we have stayed strategically agile, seeking out
the most suitable solutions to stay on course and
cruise ahead.

Our resilience comes from tapping into our inherent
strengths, and fuelling our journey of growth
predominantly from internal accruals. We have stayed
highly capitalised, maintained robust liquidity and
fiercely guarded our portfolio quality.

Every time we
reach a
ilestone,

THESE ENDEAVOURS HAVE ENABLED US TO...
ACHIEVE STRONG AND CONSISTENT GROWTH

MAINTAIN A HEALTHY RETURN ON ASSETS
AND EQUITY

KEEP OUR PORTFOLIO STURDY
AND OUR CLIENTS HAPPY

As we look to the future, we feel secure in the
knowledge that we are headed in the right direction,
at the correct pace. Our compounding growth is a
reflection of consistent and steady momentum.

TODAY, OUR TRACK RECORD SPEAKS VOLUMES
FOR US.

It is built on the strength of our
Past Learnings

It has been reinforced by our
Present Endeavours

It is a firm indication of our

Future Visibility

It is said that the future belongs
to those who learn from the past
and live brilliantly in the present moment.

B



Message from the Chairman & MD

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

It is my pleasure to address you through this Annual Report
for FY 2022-23.

Backed by our consistent and steady growth philosophy,
our FY2023 consolidated assets under management (AUM)
increased by 29.64% year-on-year and crossed ¥ 8,500 crore
mark while our total income increased by 43.27% year-on-
year to ¥ 990.26 crore and PAT grew by 27.68% year-on-
year. | am happy to share that your Company has achieved
an important milestone of crossing ¥ 200 crore profits after
tax (PAT) in FY2023 by registering a consolidated PAT of
% 205.82 crore. | am happy to share that the next important
milestone of crossing ¥10,000 crore AUM is within the
striking distance, and we are confident that will be there by
the end of the year 2023-24.

04 Annual Report 2022-23

On standalone basis for FY2023, AUM increased by 29.55%
to ¥ 8,092.56 crore while total income grew by 44.44% to
% 949.09 crore and PAT grew by 27.55% to ¥ 200.96 crore,
on year-on-year basis. Our standalone gross stage 3 assets
were stable at 2.15% and net stage 3 assets at 1.52% of
AUM as on March 31, 2023 helping a sound return on assets
and equity.

Our subsidiary, 1A S Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance
Ltd, reported robust performance for FY2023 with 31.57%
growth in AUM to % 413.34 crore and 29.66% growth in PAT
to % 6.34 crore, on year-on-year basis. The portfolio quality
of subsidiary remained stable at 0.70% gross stage 3 assets
and 0.52% net stage 3 assets of AUM as on March 31,
2023. The capital adequacy ratio (including Tier Il capital)
of subsidiary stood at 38.53% of which Tier-I capital was at
28.21% as on March 31, 2023.

The Housing finance company MAS Rural Housing &
Mortgage Finance Ltd. with its very strong enablers of serving
the huge affordable market, high level of capitalisation of
the company accompanied by the increased focus on its
processes, operations and distribution will be a strong
value accretive preposition for the parent company in the
years to come.

99
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Our ongoing effort
towards ‘Learning
and Unlearning' will
continue to help us
Improve operational
efficiency and achieve
excellence across our
overall operations.



0 CORPORATE OVERVIEW

Post COVID-19 pandemic, FY2023 was the first full year of
operations without any interruptions in terms of lockdown
and health challenges. However, the year witnessed major
global headwinds, owing to several factors that included
rising inflationary conditions among others. Amidst all
these, our Company displayed resilience while maintaining
our steadfast focus on delivering robust and sustainable
growth and continued to support our diverse customers’
evolving needs.

Going by our performance of the past 16 years when we first
raised capital, our standalone AUM, PAT, and Net Worth have
grown significantly between FY2007 and FY2023, showing an
increase in CAGR of 24.88%, 23.46% and 30.53% respectively.

We are pleased to recommend a final dividend of ¥ 1.85 per
equity share thus taking the tally to ¥ 3.65 per share for the
whole year, in consonance to our policy of rewarding and
commitment to shareholders who continue to trust our
capabilities as we move forward on our journey together.

As on March 31, 2023, our capital adequacy ratio on
standalone basis stood at 25.25% against the regulatory
requirement of 15%. Tier | capital stands at 20.79% in
comparison with the standard norm of 10%. Tier Il capital is
at 4.46%. This, as maintained over the decades; accords a
robust enabler to the future growth of the company.

Our liability composition demonstrates diversified resource
mix, helping us to address the business challenges
successfully. The diverse resources of liability ranging from
availing term credit, direct assignment, placing listed NCD
attracting wide range of investors and co-lending, ensures
sufficient liquidity , ALM, de-risking and optimum cost of
funds which is very vital to the robust and profitable growth
of the company. Our 85% of the assets being from the MSME
sector which is the key area of focus of the economy and
hence the banks and the financial institutions also, creates
strong enablers for raising our liability very efficiently.

Concerning our liability management goals, we aim to
maintain an ideal debt resource mix, which can drive a
continuous flow of funds and optimum capital utilisation. Our
assets are expected to cater to securitisation/assignment/
co-Lending demand and aid de-risking while we manage our
off-book portfolio.

On the distribution front, the contribution through our own
centres remained robust during FY2023. We have expanded
our reach to potentially more than 9,000 centres through the
network of 149 branches in the country. The same is further
enhanced via strong co-lending partnerships and Fintech
collaborations. We will continue our endeavour to strengthen
and enhance our current distribution network while exploring

@ STATUTORY REPORTS
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new geographies. We will also progressively move towards
having a larger chunk of business sourced and serviced via
our own network. We will continue to serve LIG and MIG
customers across the nook and corner of India to enhance
our customer value. Our continued focus on the high
opportunity SME and Housing Finance sectors are expected
to be key growth drivers.

Our technology-oriented goals are also right on track.
We are happy to share that we will be completing the first
phase of our digitisation by the end of June 2023. Under this
initiative, all processes will be digitised end-to-end, reducing
turnaround time.

With technology at the forefront, we will focus on our second
phase of digitisation, with Al to complement our credit
decisioning, based on our product mix and data analysis
available. Technology will also help in increasing outreach,
reducing operational costs, improving efficiency, enabling
seamless processes.

Our ongoing effort towards ‘Learning and Unlearning' will
continue to help us improve operational efficiency and
achieve excellence across our overall operations.

Over the next five years, we anticipate a growth ranging
between 20% - 25% on the backing of maintaining high
asset quality and healthy ROA and ROCE to enhance our
stakeholders' value.

I would like to thank all our stakeholders for their continued
faith in our capabilities. We strive to reward our stakeholders
with robust and sustainable performance year after year.
The core leadership team at MAS deserves my heartiest
compliments for their unwavering commitment to excel and
dedication demonstrated for over two decades now. | would
also like to thank all our employees and for their endearing
support and engagement towards achieving our broader
goals, even during challenging times.

Our Company has exhibited a very robust and consistent
growth over a long period of more than 25 years. As we move
ahead, team remains dedicated to its mission of “Excellence
through Endeavours” and | trust Together We Can and We Will.

Kamlesh C. Gandhi
Chairman & Managing Director

Annual Report 2022-23




Company Overview

About MA S

MAS Financial Services (#1A$) has been registered as an NBFC with the Reserve Bank of
India (RBI) since 1995. In our endeavour of over 25 years, we have built a strong ethos of
excellence to financially empower individuals and enterprises with access to suitable credit.
Our quality offerings focus on fulfilling the credit needs of lower income/middle income
segments and MSMEs who require readily available loans to supplement their personal and
business incomes, respectively. Working in tandem with India's nationwide financial inclusion
drive, we offer diverse loan products that include enterprise loans for MSMEs, Commercial
Vehicle Loans, Two-Wheeler Loan, Used Car Loans, Salaried Personal Loan and Housing

Loans among others.

We maintain our steadfast focus on providing credit to
India's vast lower income and middle income groups, spread
across urban, semi urban and rural areas, in both the formal
and informal sector. With this focus, we strive to strengthen
our financial services distribution market share by finding
ways to evaluate the credit ability of our customers who lack
proper and systematic credit documents and credit history
via other channels.

We leverage technology across the spectrum for quick
assessment of the repayment capability of our potential
customers, thus allowing us to serve to a broader category of
customers across India.

Our increasing geographical footprint now expands to 149
branches spread across major cities of Gujarat, Maharashtra,

Rajasthan, Madhya Pradesh, Tamil Nadu, Karnataka,
Chhattisgarh & New Delhi. Our 9,250+ centres further help in
our quest to offer first class services via doorstep delivery to
our diverse client base.

Our distribution network of partner micro-finance institutions
(MFI1), non-banking finance companies (NBFCs), housing
finance companies (HFCs) and franchisees further help us
to extend our financial services across the underpenetrated
states and the bottom of the pyramid (BOP) segments,
helping serve our valued customers efficiently.
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Vision
“To be one of the most efficient distributors of financial
services and create value on a very large scale”

Vision of M A S puts emphasis on two things:

e To be one of the most efficient distributors of financial
services

e To create value on a very large scale

MAS aims to be one of the most efficient distributors of
financial services

Efficiency in general describes the extent to which time,
effort (labour) or cost (money) is well used for the intended
task or purpose. It means optimum use of available
resources and to generate the best possible productivity by
them. MAS strives for optimum efficiency continuously in
all its activities.

In times to come, in the financial services industry, we
visualise MAS and the process of "“financial services
distribution at M A S" to be not only a benchmark for every
other company but also to set higher standards periodically,
thus competing with ourselves too.

M A S aims to create value on a very large scale

Any business unit should primarily focus on increasing the
value of all its stakeholders. The Company should, from time
to time, adopt and adapt to such business models where it
can accomplish this very important and essential goal of
creating value on a very large scale.

At present, focus of MAS is on the vast lower income and
middle-income groups of the society, spread across urban,
semi-urban and rural areas, and including formal and
informal sector. Our business model, vast experience, and
distribution network place us uniquely in the industry.

0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Mission

“To constantly endeavour to attain excellence, and create
a very wide financial distribution network and be a catalyst
in providing the most efficient financial services which we
term as financial inclusion”

Mission of MM A S puts emphasis on three things:

e To constantly endeavour to attain excellence

MAS continuously takes effort towards its goal of
achieving excellence. Excellence is a never-ending
process.

¢ To create a very wide distribution network

MAS has always believed in the ‘Power of Distribution’.
Company has applied ‘Excellence through Endeavour’ &
‘Power of Distribution’ in its process to achieve its vision
to be the most efficient distributor of financial services.

e To be a catalyst in providing the most efficient financial
services, which we term as financial inclusion
In the “Financial Services Ecosystem", intermediaries like
banks, NBFCs, HFCs play a pivotal role in efficient use
of the available resources. MAS always strive to be a
responsible and an efficient intermediary in our quest to
accomplish vision.

O
(5
==

Beliefs

“We have miles to go & promises
to keep”

“Together we can and we will”
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The Power of Distribution

Our Value Proposition

Strategic Growth Enablers

,ﬁg
SUCCESSFUL AND CONSISTENT
TRACK RECORD

Proven track record of over 25 years
that has withstood multiple headwinds
successfully with AUM CAGR of 36.12%
and PAT CAGR 40.07% respectively.

DIVERSE PRODUCT SUITE

To cater to the evolving needs of our
diverse customer base, we continue
to offer a wide range of loan products
including new and customised
offerings. Our innovative range of
loan offerings help increase social
mobility and encourage growth and
employment for our target customer
segment.

rA

L+

STRATEGIC PEOPLE-ORIENTED
FOCUS

Our people-centric approach has
helped engage our employees to deliver
the best solutions to our customers
and build long-term loyal relationships
with them. It has also helped us form a
deeper connect with our key partners
adding better value and improved trust
of our stakeholders.

IR} Annual Report 2022-23

ROBUST PORTFOLIO QUALITY

Consistent maintenance of robust
portfolio quality with Net Stage 3
Assets of 1.52% as on March 31, 2023.

e

LEVERAGING TECHNOLOGY
FOR A WIDER OUTREACH

Our ability to adopt technology across
streams has enabled faster processes
and delivers leading to more satisfied
and growing customer base. With
customised and innovative solutions
like doorstep delivery services, our
pan-India presence now spans 08
territories across India, with 149
branches.

i

INCREASED MARKET SIZE

We offer loans to the expanding retail
borrower section, mostly from the
middle- and lower-income group, who
otherwise have little access to formal
means of credit. With their incomes
and aspirations on the rise, they have
increased need for funds creating a
huge market opportunity for us.

=

ROBUST LIABILITY
MANAGEMENT AND ASSET
CREATION

We strive to maintain a strong ALM
by ensuring that we meet our capital
requirements primarily via internal
accruals. By enabling the right product
mix through our unique distribution
model, we have been able to create
quality assets for efficient allocation
credit where due.

OUR GROWING PRESENCE

Map not to scale.
For lllustrative purposes only.

7%

Rajasthan
22 branches covering

major towns

Tamil Nadu
2 branches
7z
60 branches Karnataka
across the state 4 branches
Maharashtra .
28 branches covering  Delhi NCR
major towns 1 branch
V/
7z
Madhya Pradesh _
31 branches covering Chhattisgarh
1 branch

major towns
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Our Assorted Products

MICRO ENTERPRISE LOAN

Micro Enterprises primarily include
retailers, traders, small manufacturers,
and service providers. Tenure up to 36
months. The ticket size of these loans
ranges from T 0.5 lakh to ¥ 10 lakhs.

SMALL AND MEDIUM
ENTERPRISES LOAN (SME)

SMEs primarily include manufacturers,
distributors, dealers, and service
providers  engaged in  various
industries and loans include working
capital loans, loans for machinery and
loans to purchase industrial sheds etc.
Tenure up to 60 months. The ticket
size of these loans ranges from ¥ 10
lakhs to X 3 crore.

COMMERCIAL VEHICLES LOAN

CV loans primarily include loans to
small road transporters, traders etc.
Tenure up to 60 months. The ticket
size of loans for the purchase of old/
new commercial vehicle ranges from
% 1 lakh to ¥ 10 lakhs.

USED CAR LOAN

Used car primarily include loans to
small traders, manufacturers, self-
employed etc. Tenure up to 60 months.
The ticket size of loans for the purchase
of old/new commercial vehicle ranges
from 1 lakh to % 10 lakhs.

TWO-WHEELER LOAN

Two-wheeler loan primarily include
loans to farmers, self-employed,
salaried individuals, and professionals
etc. Tenure up to 36 months. The
ticket size of these loans ranges from
¥ 25,000 to % 1.50 lakhs.

SALARIED PERSONAL LOAN

Salaried personal loans to salaried
individuals of the approved companies
to satisfy their personal need. Tenure
up to 60 months. It provides loans of
up to ¥ 5 lakhs.

HOUSING LOAN

MAS through its subsidiary, provide
loans for purchase of new and old
houses, construction of houses on
owned plots, home improvement
loans and loans for purchase and
construction of commercial property.
Tenure up to 30 years. It provides loans
of up to ¥ 50 lakhs for residential and
% 1 crore for commercial.

Annual Report 2022-23 [ 09 |




Our Journey Highlights

As we look back at our important milestones, we take pride in what we have been able to
achieve since inception.

As per calendar year

Received first round

of capital infusion
of ¥ 65 Mn. from
Bellwether Micro Fund

On incorporation,
commenced retail
finance operations
with Two-wheeler and
Micro-Enterprise loans

Acquired 2 & 3
round of capital
infusion worth ¥ 435
Mn. and % 400 Mn.
from FMO and ICICI
Venture, respectively

Floated the housing
finance subsidiary

o
10 _ Annual Report 2022-23

Listing of NCDs
on Bombay Stock
Exchange

Received the fourth
round of capital
infusion of ¥ 650
Mn. from DEG

Disbursement and
AUM crossed
Z10Bn.

Raised Subordinate
Debentures of ¥ 200 Mn.

AUM crossed T 20 Bn.

Sarva Capital
purchased 50%
CCPS held by FMO in
secondary deal
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Bank loan rating was
upgraded to 'IND A" with
‘Stable outlook'’

Raised subordinate

debentures of ¥ 400 Mn.

AUM crossed
% 50 Bn.

Bank loan rating
upgraded to “Acuité
AA-" with Stable
outlook and Short-
term rating assigned
as Acuité A1+

Inclusive Finance
India Award 2020
— NBFC lending to
Micro and Small
Enterprises

0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Great Place To Work
Certified (Jan 2023 -

Jan 2024)
R'a|sed S 65.0 ll? Net Profit for the
via market-linked o
NCDs (MLD) Z2Bn.

° ®

Motilal Oswal infused Completed
capital of 1,350 Mn. 25™ Year of
Endeavours

Raised fresh capital of
¥ 2,330 Mn. via IPO

Listing of Equity
Shares on BSE & NSE

ASSOCHAM 8t
MSMEs Excellence
Awards March 2022 -
Best MSME Lending
of the Year

New subsidiary:
MASFIN Insurance
Broking Private
Limited

TR

2022-
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Financial Performance in Numbers

Key Performance Indicators

AUM Net Worth Borrowings
(In¥ Mn.) = On Book (In¥ Mn.) (In¥ Mn.)
Off Book
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Revenue Net Interest Income Profit After Tax
(In¥ Mn.) (In¥ Mn.) (In¥ Mn.)
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5,599
6,571
2,954
3,375
4,743
L 1,181
1,576
2,010

FY 21 FY 22 FY 23 FY 21 FY 22 FY 23 FY 21 FY 22 FY 23

Return on Net Worth Return on Average AUM Gross & Net Stage 3 Assets

= Gross Stage 3 Assets
Net Stage 3 Assets

w

c 11.86%
(’ 13.64%
2.08%
L 2.71%
2.80%
1.94% 1.52%
2.28% 1.70%
2.15% 1.52%

FY 21 FY 22 FY 23 FY 21 FY 22 FY 23 FY 21 FY 22 FY 23
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Leveraging Growth

Adopting Technology Across Spectrum

e Digitally Centralised Onboarding System to capture e Digital Signatures permitting paperless

new leads data documentation sharing of loan agreements with
e Authenticate captured leads via mobile OTP customer for review and e-signing (eSign / eStamp
e Seamless Application Management (Applicant, Co- APIs)

Applicant & Guarantor) e C-KYC management system ensuring quick and
e Customised upload of documents having pre-defined accurate compliance

checklist & input validation e Customer Engagement via regular and timely
e Initial eligibility check (positive/negative) before WhatsApp, SMS & Email Services APIs updates

grant to credit underwriting

DECISIONING DISBURSEMENT & COLLECTION

e Pre-defined Business Rules Engine (BRE) & 25+ APIs e 100% Cashless / E-disbursement of loan amount
plugins to evaluate creditworthiness e eNACH permitting paperless repayment

e eKYC for seamless e-verification of Customer's e Easy e-repayment facility via Paytm, BillDesk, and
Identity, Address, DOB, etc. (PAN/Aadhaar/ DL / EC) BharatPe for easy and timely EMI payment

e CreditBureau Check and GSTR analysis via integrated
API services to evaluate customer past behaviour,
fraud detection/prevention, & bureau score

e Seamless Corpository Platform to retrieve corporate
data (financials/charges/shareholding/associates/
litigation/defaults/etc.)

e Income Analyzer Tool and Account Aggregator to
automatically assess customer bank statement for
accuracy in current income and obligations

ENHANCING DISTRIBUTION CAPABILITIES

Fintech Co-Lending
Collaboration Partnership

g g v ol




The Way Ahead

Powering Quality Growth To Enhance Value
And Sustainability

0 CORPORATE OVERVIEW

At M A S, we have built our ethos of excellence from the various endeavours undertaken since
inception to constantly improve ourselves over our past performances to ensure that the
future will promise better returns than the present.

As we move ahead in our glorious journey of over 25 years, we will continue to drive growth with our key focus on quality and
profitability.

Our priority focus areas will relate to —

%

ASSET CREATION

To anchor to our belief that, growth along with quality is
the key to enhance the shareholders’ value.

Continue to serve the informal LIG and MIG class of
customers spread over rural , semi urban and urban areas
leveraging on our more than two decades of experience.

Adequate focus on SME and Housing Finance which
offers huge potential — Expected to be key growth drivers.

Strengthening and enhancement of current distribution
network and also explore the potentiality of entering new
geographies.

Anticipated growth for the next five years to be in the
range of 20% - 25% with prioritising asset quality and
maintaining healthy ROA and ROCE.

14 _Annual Report 2022-23

LIABILITY MANAGEMENT

Ideal debt resource mix, ensuring continuous flow of
funds while maintaining optimum utilisation of capital.

The assets created by the company is expected to
generate good securitisation/assignment/Co-Lending
demand thereby enabling the company to de-risk and
maintain the off book portfolio.

{0

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

e lLearning and Unlearning

is a constant endeavour
at MAS.

Strive to improve the efficiency in all the areas of operation.

e Technology adoption to minimise operational costs.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Caring for Our Communities

As aresponsible organisation,community careis vital to our operations. We regularly undertake
various CSR initiatives to support and contribute to causes that aid underprivileged and other
communities where we operate.

FEW CSR INITIATIVES FY 2022-23
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Employee Initiatives

Empowering our Workforce

At MAS, employees are integral to our success. We initiate various employee-oriented
programmes to maintain a motivated, engaged and committed workforce.

FY 2022-23 EMPLOYEE INITIATIVES
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: 75" Independence Day Celebration \
2nd MEMORIAL LECTURE: - '

INLOVING MEMORY OF
SHRI MUKESHBHAI C. GANDHI
20 October 1957 - 19 January 2021

Ganpati Celebration
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Happy Hours 2023

MCG Memorial Lecture

RECOGNITION

The Great Place to Work certificate is a prestigious
Greqt recognition awarded to organisations that
P|cce demonstrate an exceptional workplace culture and

TO employee experience.
Workh‘ MAS believes the advantages of the Great Place
Certified to Work certificate go beyond just the recognition
s A s itself. The true value lies in the ongoing commitment
Eh to creating a positive work environment and
leveraging the certificate as a catalyst for

This is to certify that MAS Group has continuous improvement and growth.

successfully completed the assessment conducted by
Great Place to Work® Institute, India, and is certified as a great workplace.
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Board of Directors

Mr. Kamlesh C. Gandhi
Founder, Chairman & Managing Director

Mr. Kamlesh C. Gandhi is a proficient and experienced industry practitioner with a brilliant track
record, which includes over two decades of managing and propelling the Company's growth. He
manages the Company with the guidance and support of the Board and his own understanding
and vision are among the key enablers for the consistent performance of the Company. He is the
member of Banking and Finance taskforce of Gujarat Chambers of Commerce and Industry, Vice
Chairman of Gujarat Finance Company Association, Co-Chairman of FIDC, an industry body of
NBFCs, Co-Chairman of ASSOCHAM MSME Development Council and a member of SME Chamber
of India. He is also the Managing Trustee of Smt. Urmilaben Chimanlal Gandhi Foundation. The
Foundation currently contributes towards the financial needs in health care and education.

Mrs. Darshana Pandya
Director & CEO

Mrs.DarshanaS. Pandya
is responsible  for
leading the operations
at MAS. She is also
the driving force behind
forging  relationships
between the Company
and its partners which
amount to over 100
NBFC-MFIs and NBFCs.
After completing
her  graduation in
Commerce, she joined
the Company in 1996
as a junior executive.
Through her hard work
and determination to
excel and with support
from the management,
she has risen to the level
of Director & CEO.

Mr. Balabhaskaran N. Nair
Independent Director

Mr. Balabhaskaran N. Nair is a management graduate with two
decades of experience in the consultancy and financial sector. Over
the years, with his rich work experience, he has gathered a number of
management consultancy inputs. He has done his engineering from
IIT-Madras, MBA from IIM-Bangalore and CFA from ICFAI.

Mr. Chetan R. Shah
Independent Director

Mr. Chetan R. Shah holds a bachelor's degree in commerce and a
degree in law (general) from Gujarat University. He is also a qualified
Chartered Accountant registered with the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. He has over three decades of experience
in the financial services sector and has worked with the Natpur
Cooperative Bank in the capacity of Manager — Finance.

Mr. Umesh R. Shah
Independent Director

Mr. Umesh R. Shah is a qualified Chartered Accountant. He has
over three decades of experience in diverse fields connected with
Finance, Accounting, Auditing and Taxation. He also has 5 years of
hands-on experience of working in an NBFC.

Mrs. Daksha Niranjan Shah
Independent Director

Mrs. Daksha Niranjan Shah is a business graduate from Indian
Institute of Management (IIM), Ahmedabad, where she specialised
in Finance and Marketing; she is also a student of Economics and
Statistics. She has rich experience of more than three decades in
diversified fields of Textiles, Chemicals and Financial services. She
has undergone various courses such as the course in Microfinance
at the Economic Institute, Boulder, Colorado, USA.

Mr. Narayanan Sadanandan
Additional Independent Director

He has vast experience of more than 3 decades in all facets of
banking, expertise in Fund Management, Investment Banking,
Correspondence & International Banking, Corporate, Commercial
and Retail (including MSME) banking. He is also an Advisor - Equity
Capital Market, SBI Capital Markets Ltd and Ex MD & CEO - SBI
Pension Funds Private Ltd.
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Corporate Advisory Committee

MAS Financial Services Limited has formed Corporate Advisory Committee for the year 2023
— 2024. The committee consist of experienced and eminent persons in their respective fields
and will provide strategic inputs and counsel to the company's board of directors and to the
executive leadership team on key business initiatives and growth opportunities.

Dr. Rajiv Kumar

Dr. Rajiv Kumar - Former Vice Chairman of NITI Aayog — Government of India's apex think tank,
with the rank of a cabinet minister. He is the Founding Director & current Chairman of Pahle India
Foundation — a public policy think tank. He also served as an independent director on the Central
Boards of the Reserve Bank of India and the State Bank of India.

Mr. TT Srinivasaraghavan

Mr. TT Srinivasaraghavan - Chairman Emeritus of FIDC & Retired MD of Sundaram Finance Ltd. He has
over 40 years of experience in the banking and financial services sector and has been associated with
leading trade related organisations. He has been involved with various Committees constituted by
the RBI on NBFC related matters, including the recently constituted Group of Advisors to Regulations
Review Authority.

Mr. U.S. Paliwal

Mr. U.S. Paliwal — Secretary General, CCA and CEO of the Association of Small Finance Banks of India.
He is Former Executive Director of Reserve Bank of India and Former Director of Bank of Mauritius. He
was Nominee Director on the Boards of three PSU banks in India.
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Corporate Information

CORPORATE IDENTIFICATION NO.:
L65910GJ1995PLC026064

REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS:

6, Ground Floor, Narayan Chambers,
Behind Patang Hotel, Ashram Road,
Ahmedabad — 380 009.

LISTED ON STOCK EXCHANGE:

National Stock Exchange of India
Limited (NSE) & BSE Limited (Bombay
Stock Exchange)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

Mr. Kamlesh C. Gandhi

(Chairman & Managing Director)
(DIN: 00044852)

Mrs. Darshana Pandya

(Director & Chief Executive Officer)
(DIN: 07610402)

Mr. Balabhaskaran Narayanan Nair
(Non-Executive Independent Director)
(DIN: 00393346)

Mr. Chetan Ramniklal Shah
(Non-Executive Independent Director)
(DIN: 02213542)

Mr. Umesh Rajanikant Shah
(Non-Executive Independent Director)
(DIN: 07685672)

Mrs. Daksha Niranjan Shah
(Non-Executive Independent Director)
(DIN: 00376899)

Mr. Narayanan Sadanandan
(Additional Non-Executive

Independent Director)
(DIN: 07263104)

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER:
Mr. Ankit Jain

COMPANY SECRETARY &
COMPLIANCE OFFICER:

Ms. Riddhi Bhaveshbhai Bhayani
(Mem. No. A41206)

STATUTORY AUDITORS:

M/s. Mukesh M. Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 106625W

REGISTRAR & SHARE
TRANSFER AGENT:

Link Intime India Private Limited
C-101, 1st Floor, 247 Park,

Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg,

Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400 083,
Maharashtra, India

DEBENTURE TRUSTEE:
CATALYST TRUSTEESHIP LTD.

GDA House, Plot No. 85,

Bhusari Colony, Paud Road,

Pune - 411 038

Contact No.: 022-49220555

Email ID: ComplianceCTL-Mumbai@
ctltrustee.com

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS:

Mr. Chetan Ramniklal Shah (Chairman)
Mrs. Darshana Pandya (Member)

Mr. Balabhaskaran Narayanan

Nair (Member)

Mr. Umesh Rajanikant Shah (Member)

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP
COMMITTEE MEMBERS:

Mr. Chetan Ramniklal Shah (Chairman)
Mrs. Darshana Pandya (Member)

Mr. Balabhaskaran Narayanan

Nair (Member)

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE MEMBERS:

Mr. Umesh Rajanikant Shah (Chairman)
Mr. Chetan Ramniklal Shah (Member)
Mr. Balabhaskaran Narayanan

Nair (Member)

CSR COMMITTEE MEMBERS:

Mr. Umesh Rajanikant Shah
(Chairman)

Mrs. Darshana S. Pandya (Member)

Mr. Balabhaskaran Narayanan
Nair (Member)

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
MEMBERS:

Mr. Chetan Ramniklal Shah (Chairman)
Mrs. Darshana Pandya (Member)
Mr. Umesh Rajanikant Shah (Member)

0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LIST OF BANKING
RELATIONSHIPS & SUBSCRIBERS
TO DEBT ISSUES:

Aditya Birla Finance Ltd
Axis Bank Ltd

Bajaj Finance Ltd

Bandhan Bank Ltd

Bank of Baroda

Bank of India

Bank of Maharashtra
Baroda Gujarat Gramin Bank
Canara Bank

CSB Bank

DBS Bank

Dhanlaxmi Bank

HDFC Bank Ltd

ICICI Bank

IDBI Bank Ltd.

IDFC First Bank Ltd

Indian Bank

Indian Overseas Bank
Indusind Bank Ltd
Karnataka Bank Ltd

Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd
MUDRA Ltd

National Bank for Agriculture and
Rural Development
Poonawala Fincorp Ltd
Punjab National Bank

SBM Bank (India) Ltd
Shinhan Bank

Small Industries Development
Bank of India

South Indian Bank

State Bank of India
Sundaram Finance Limited
Tamilnad Mercantile Bank
The Federal Bank Ltd

Union Bank of India

Utkarsh Small Finance Bank
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Notice

NOTICE is hereby given that the Twenty Eighth (28%) Annual
General Meeting (AGM) of the members of MAS Financial
Services Limited will be held at 11.30 A.M. on Wednesday,
July 26, 2023 through Video Conferencing (“VC") / Other
Audio Visual Means (“OAVM") to transact the following:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To receive, consider and adopt audited Standalone and
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company
for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 and
the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors
thereon.

To declare Final Dividend of ¥ 1.85/- per Equity Share
of ¥ 10/- each for the financial year ended on March 31,
2023.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Kamlesh C. Gandhi
(DIN: 00044852), liable to retire by rotation in terms of
Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and, being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4.

Alteration of Articles of Association of the Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section
14 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Companies (Incorporation) Rules,
2014 (including any statutory modification or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force) and
Regulation 23(6) of the SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 (including
any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in force), consent of the Members of the
Company be and is hereby accorded for alteration of
Clause 45 of the Articles of Association of the Company
by substituting in its place, the following:

The number of Directors shall not be less than three
and shall not be more than fifteen, excluding nominee
Directors appointed by any Financial Institutions or
any other Institutions or Banks or Debenture Trustee.
Provided, that the Company may appoint a director in
excess of the limit provided above by passing a special
resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors of
the Company or the Company Secretary of the Company
be and are hereby severally authorised to do all such
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acts, deeds, matters and things and execute all such
documents, instruments and writings as may be required
to give effect to this resolution.”

Appointment of Mr. Narayanan Sadanandan (DIN:
07263104) as an Independent Director of the Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of sections
149, 152 and any other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), including the Rules
made thereunder read with Schedule IV to the Act and
Regulation 17(1C) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(the ‘SEBI Listing Regulations’) and other applicable
provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof
for the time being in force), Mr. Narayanan Sadanandan
(DIN: 07263104) who was appointed by the Board of
Directors, based on the recommendation of Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, as an Additional
Director under section 161(1) of the Act and Articles of
Association of the Company, and in respect of whom
a notice in writing by the member of the Company
pursuant to section 160 of the Act has been received in
the prescribed manner, be and is hereby appointed as an
Independent Director of the Company for a term of five
consecutive years, effective from June 21, 2023 up to
June 20, 2028.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors of
the Company or Company Secretary of the

Company be and are hereby individually authorized
to file necessary forms with the office of Registrar of
Companies and to do all such acts, deeds and things
as may be required in order to give effect to the above
resolution. ”

Re-appointment of Mr. Kamlesh C. Gandhi (DIN:
00044852) as the Managing Director of the Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of the
Sections 196, 197, 198, 203, read with Schedule V and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force) in context



0 CORPORATE OVERVIEW @ STATUTORY REPORTS @ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

of Regulation 17(6)(e) of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended from
time to time), and pursuant to the relevant provisions
of the Articles of Association of the Company, and in
pursuance to receipt of recommendation of Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of the Company and as
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company,
approval of the Members of the Company be and is
hereby accorded for the reappointment of Mr. Kamlesh
Gandhi (DIN: 00044852) as the Managing Director of the
Company for a period of Five years w.e.f. April 1, 2024
upon expiring of his existing term on March 31, 2024
and whose office is not liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the aggregate amount of
Managerial Remuneration will be up to ¥ 65 Lakh per
month, which includes salary and allowances together
with such annual increments effective from April 1,
2024 subject to the approvals of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors
respectively to be paid to Mr. Kamlesh Gandhiindividually
which shall be within the overall ceiling limit as laid down
in Section 197 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and any amendment thereof.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of members of the
Company be and is hereby given to make any further
revision in the remuneration payable to Mr. Kamlesh
Gandhi during the tenure of his appointment which
shall be within the overall ceiling limits as laid down
in Section 197 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and any amendments thereof and
in compliance with Regulation 17(6)(e) of Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as
amended from time to time).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors
(including a Committee thereof) be and is hereby
authorized to do all such things, deeds and matters and
acts as may be required to give effect to this resolution.”

Regd. Office:
6, Ground Floor, Narayan Chambers,
Behind Patang Hotel, Ashram Road,
Ahmedabad - 380 009.
By order of the Board

Riddhi Bhayani

Company Secretary

Place : Ahmedabad & Compliance Officer
Date : June 21, 2023 (Mem. No. A41206)

NOTES:

1.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide its General
Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 General
Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, General
Circular No. 19/2021 dated December 08, 2021, Circular
No. 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021, General Circular
No.2/2022 dated May 05, 2022 and General Circular No.
11/2022 dated December 28, 2022 (“MCA Circulars”)
and other applicable circulars issued by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) including Circular
No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January
5, 2023, has permitted the Companies to conduct
the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) through Video
Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM)
till September 30, 2023. In accordance with the said
circulars of MCA, SEBI and applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) and SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (the ‘SEBI Listing Regulations’), the 28" AGM of
the Company shall be conducted through VC/OAVM
(hereinafter called ‘AGM’). Central Depository Services
(India) Limited (“CDSL") will provide facility for voting
through remote e-voting, participation in the AGM
through VC/OAVM facility and e-voting during the AGM.
The procedure for participating in the meeting through
VC/OAVM is explained at Note below and is also
available on the website of the Company at www.mas.

In terms of sections 101 and 136 of the Act, read with
the rules made thereunder, the listed companies may
send the notice of AGM and the annual report, including
financial statements, boards’ report, etc. by electronic
mode. Pursuant to the said provisions of the Act read
with MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated January 5,
2023, Notice of 28" AGM along with the Annual Report
for F.Y. 2022-2023 is being sent only through electronic
mode to those members whose email addresses are
registered with the Company/depositories. Members
may note that the Notice of the 28" AGM and Annual
Report for F.Y. 2022-2023 will also be available on the
Company’s website at www.mas.co.in, website of the
stock exchanges i.e., BSE Ltd. (‘BSE’) at www.bseindia.
com and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (‘NSE’)
at www.nseindia.com and on the website of CDSL at

https://www.evotingindia.com/. In this notice, the term

member(s) or shareholder(s) are used interchangeably.

The deemed venue for 28" AGM shall be the Registered
Office of the Company at 6, Ground Floor, Narayan
Chambers, Behind Patang Hotel, Ashram Road,
Ahmedabad - 380 009.

In terms of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Mr. Kamlesh C. Gandbhi, (DIN: 00044852), Chairman and
Managing Director of the company retires by rotation at
the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment. The relevant details,
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10.

pursuant to Regulations 26(4) and 36(3) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on General
Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries
of India, in respect of Director seeking re-appointment/
appointment at this AGM is annexed.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Register of Members and
Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed
from Thursday, July 20, 2023 to Wednesday, July 26,
2023 (both days inclusive).

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled
to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a
proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy
need not be a Member of the Company. Since this AGM
is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through
VC / OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been
dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment
of proxies by the Members will not be available for the
AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are
not annexed to this Notice.

Pursuant to Finance Act, 2020, dividend income will be
taxable in the hands of shareholders with effect from
April 01, 2020. Accordingly, the Company is required
to deduct tax at source from dividend subject to the
approval of payment of dividend to shareholders. For
the prescribed rates for various categories, shareholders
are requested to refer to the Finance Act, 2020 and
amendments thereof.

To support the ‘Green Initiative’, the Company requests
those Members who have not yet registered their
e-mail address, to register the same directly with their
DP, in case shares are held in electronic form and to
the Company, in case shares are held in physical form.
Further, members holding shares in electronic form are
requested to notify the changes in the above particulars,
if any, directly to their Depository Participants (DP).

Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than
individuals / HUF,NRI, etc.) are required to send a scanned
copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing
body Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing its
representative to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM on
its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. The said
Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer
by email through its registered email address to ravi@
ravics.com with a copy marked to riddhi_bhayani@mas.
co.in

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as
amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations
& Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as
amended), and pursuant to above mentioned MCA
Circulars the Company is providing facility of remote
e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be
transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company
has entered into an agreement with Central Depository
Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting
through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting's
agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using
remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the
date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM
mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time
of the commencement of the Meeting by following
the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of
participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made
available to atleast 1000 members on first come first
served basis. This will not include large Shareholders
(Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding),
Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc.
who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction
on account of first come first served basis.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM
through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose
of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to MCA General Circular No. 10/2022 dated
December 28,2022, the facility to appoint proxy to attend
and cast vote for the members is not available for this
AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section
113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of the
members such as the President of India or the Governor
of a State or body corporate can attend the AGM through
VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting.

Members seeking any information with regard to the
accounts or any matter to be placed at the AGM, are
requested to write to the Company on or before July
16, 2023 (upto 05:00 PM.) through email on riddhi

bhayani@mas.co.in. The same will be replied by the
Company suitably.

Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the
Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.


ravi@ravics.com
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riddhi_bhayani@mas.co.in
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THE

INSTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR

E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGS ARE
AS UNDER:

Step1:

Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting
system in case of individual shareholders holding
shares in demat mode.

Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of
shareholders holding shares in physical mode and
non-individual shareholders in demat mode.

(i) The voting period begins on Saturday, July 22, 2023

(ii)

(iii)

at 09:00 a.m. and ends on Tuesday, July 25, 2023 at
05:00 p.m. During this period shareholders’ of the
Company, holding shares either in physical form or
in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record
date) of Wednesday, July 19, 2023 may cast their vote
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by
CDSL for voting thereafter.

Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting
date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting.

Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/
CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 and May 13,
2022, under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are
required to provide remote e-voting facility to its
shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions.
However, it has been observed that the participation
by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail
shareholders is at a negligible level.

0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers
(ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in
India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs
and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by
the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process,
pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided to
enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way
of a single login credential, through their demat accounts
/ websites of Depositories / Depository Participants.
Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote
without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby,
not only facilitating seamless authentication but also
enhancing ease and convenience of participating in
e-voting process.

Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL
e-Voting system in case of individual

shareholders holding shares in demat mode.

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/
CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting
facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are
allowed to vote through their demat account maintained
with  Depositories and Depository Participants.
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number
and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access
e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method
for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual
shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/
NSDL is given below:

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual shareholders holding
securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:

Type of Shareholders

Login Method

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Demat 1)
mode with CDSL Depository

Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login
through their existing user id and password. Option will be made

available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication.
The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.

lindi

i/home/login or visit www. lindi m

and click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi.

2)  After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see
the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in
progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking
the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of
the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during
the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access
the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/
KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service
providers’ website directly.

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register
is available at https:/web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/
EasiRegistration

Annual Report 2022-23



https://web.cdslindia.com
https://web.cdslindia.com
www.cdslindia.com
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

Type of Shareholders Login Method

4)

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available
on www.cdslindia.com home page or click on https://evoting.
cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin The system will authenticate
the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded
in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be
able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress
and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service
Providers.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat 1)
mode with NSDL Depository

If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit
the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is
launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which
is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You
will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on
“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able
to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service
provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register

is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register
Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at https:/eservices.nsdl.com/
SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system
is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will
have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account
number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code
as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will
be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name
and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Individual Shareholders (holding securities in demat You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account

mode) login through their Depository Participants through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for

(DP) e-Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting
option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein
you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service
provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password

option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through

Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL
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Login Type Helpdesk Details
Individual Shareholders holding securities in Demat Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk
mode with CDSL by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at

toll free no. 1800 22 55 33
Individual Shareholders holding securities in Demat Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk
mode with NSDL by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800
1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-individual
shareholders in demat mode.

(v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than individual
holding in Demat form.

1)  The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com
2)  Click on “Shareholders” module.
3)  Now enter your User ID
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b.  For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.
4)  Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

5) If youare holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-voting
of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

6) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form other than individual and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both
demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are
requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.

Dividend Bank Details OR Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat
Date of Birth (DOB) account or in the company records in order to login.

If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the member
id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.

(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, shareholders
holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation” menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter
their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for
voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting
through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential.

(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in
this Notice.

(ix) Click on the EVSN: 230619002 for the 1A $ Financial Services Limited on which you choose to vote.

(x) Onthe voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select
the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you
dissent to the Resolution.
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(xi) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to
view the entire Resolution details.

(xii) After selecting the resolution you have decided to
vote on, click on “SUBMIT". A confirmation box will be
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on
“OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL" and
accordingly modify your vote.

(xiii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you
will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on
“Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

(xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login
password then Enter the User ID and the image
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter
the details as prompted by the system.

(xvi) There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if
any uploaded, which will be made available to scrutinizer
for verification.

(xvii)Additional Facility for Non - Individual Shareholders and
Custodians —For Remote Voting only.

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than
Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are

required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and
register themselves in the “Corporates” module.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing
the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed
lindia.

After receiving the login details a Compliance
User should be created using the admin login and
password. The Compliance User would be able to
link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

The list of accounts linked in the login will be
mapped automatically & can be delink in case of
any wrong mapping.

It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board
Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which
they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any,
should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for
the scrutinizer to verify the same.

Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are
required to send the relevant Board Resolution/
Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen
signature of the duly authorized signatory who are
authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer at his e-mail
address ravi@ravics.com and to the Company
at the email address viz; i i i

co.in, if they have voted from individual tab & not
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uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the
scrutinizer to verify the same.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING
THEAGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING
MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the
day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned
above for e-voting.

2. Thelink for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available
where the EVSN of Company will be displayed after
successful login as per the instructions mentioned
above for e-voting.

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting
will be eligible to attend the meeting. However, they will
not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4.  Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through
Laptops / IPads for better experience.

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera
and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any
disturbance during the meeting.

6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile
Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via
Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due
to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask
questions during the meeting may register themselves
as a speaker by sending their request in advance at least
10 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat
account number/folio number, email id, mobile number
at riddhi_bhayani@mas.co.in. The shareholders who do
not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may
send their queries in advance 10 days prior to meeting
mentioning their name, demat account number/folio
number, email id, mobile number at riddhi_bhayani@
mas.co.in. These queries will be replied to by the
company suitably by email.

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as
a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask
questions during the meeting.

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM
through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their
vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to
vote through e-Voting system available during the AGM.

10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the
e-voting available during the AGM and if the same
shareholders have not participated in the meeting
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through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such
shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility
of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the
shareholders attending the meeting.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDER'S WHOSE
EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT REGISTERED
WITH THE DEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING
LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR E-VOTING FOR THE
RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED IN THIS NOTICE:

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary
details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned
copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to
riddhi_bhayani@mas.co.in.

2. For Demat shareholders - please update your email id &
mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP)

3. ForIndividual Demat shareholders — please update your
email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository
Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting &
joining virtual meetings through Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM
& e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an
email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll
free no. 1800 22 55 33

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by
electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi,
Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India)
Limited, A Wing, 25" Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill
Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai -
400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
or call toll free no. 1800 22 55 33.

Other Instructions:

1. The Scrutinizer shall,immediately after the conclusion of
voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast during the
AGM, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote
e-voting as well as e-voting during the AGM and make,
not later than two working days from conclusion of the
AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the total
votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman
or a person authorised by him in writing, who shall
countersign the same.

2. The result declared along with the Scrutinizer’'s Report
shall be placed on the Company’s website www.mas.
co.in and on the website of CDSL www.evotingindia.com

immediately. The Company shall simultaneously forward
the results to National Stock Exchange of India Limited
and BSE Limited, where the shares of the Company are
listed.
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The Power of Distribution

ANNEXURE TO THE EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

INFORMATION AS REQUIRED UNDER REGULATION 36(3) SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 AND IN TERMS OF THE SECRETARIAL STANDARD ON GENERAL
MEETINGS ISSUED BY THE INSTITUTE OF COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA CERTAIN ADDITIONAL
DISCLOSURES IN RESPECT OF DIRECTORS BEING REAPPOINTED / APPOINTED:

Particulars

Retire by Rotation /
Re-appointment as the Managing Director

Appointment of Mr. Narayanan Sadanandan
(DIN: 07263104) as an Independent Director

Name of the Director

Mr. Kamlesh C. Gandhi

Mr. Narayanan Sadanandan

DIN 00044852 07263104

Date of birth February 2, 1966 March 11, 1961

Age 57 Years 62 Years

Qualification He holds Higher secondary school examination B. Com. University of Madras (1982);

certificate from the Gujarat Secondary Education
Board, Gandhinagar.

Certificate Associate of Indian Institute of Bankers
(1990);

Completed two Groups in Intermediate Examination
of the Institute of Cost and Works Accountants of
India (ICWA).

Experience (including expertise
in specific functional area) /
Brief Resume

He is Founder, Chairman and Managing Director of
the Company. He is a first generation entrepreneur
with an experience of more than 30 years in the retail
financial services industry. Under his leadership,
the Company has scaled new heights and has
registered a robust growth over a sustained period
of over 25 years.

He is also the member of Banking and Finance
task force of Gujarat Chambers of Commerce and
Industry, Chairman of Gujarat Finance Company
Association, Co-Chairman of FIDC - an industry
body of NBFCs, Co-Chairman of ASSOCHAM
MSME Development Council and a member of SME
Chamber of India. He is also the managing trustee
of Smt. Urmilaben Chimanlal Gandhi Foundation.

He has vast experience of more than 3 decades
in all facets of banking, expertise in Fund
Management, Investment Banking, Correspondence
& International Banking, Corporate, Commercial and
Retail (including MSME) banking. He is also an
Advisor - Equity Capital Market, SBI Capital Markets
Ltd and Ex MD & CEO - SBI Pension Funds Private
Ltd.

Nature of his expertise in
specific functional areas

Management & Finance

Management & Finance

Terms and Conditions of
Re-appointment

As details mentioned in the explanatory statement
for item No. 6 of the Notice

As details mentioned in the explanatory statement
for item No. 5 of the Notice

Remuneration last drawn

INR 5.07 Crs (F.Y. 2022-23)

Not applicable as it is fresh appointment

Designation

Chairman & Managing Director

Non-Executive Independent Director

Remuneration proposed
to be paid

As per existing terms and conditions

Not applicable; he will be paid sitting fees.

Date of first appointment
on the Board

May 25, 1995

June 21,2023

Shareholding in the company

63,40,508 (11.60%) Equity Shares as on March 31,
2023.

Nil

Relationship with other
Directors/Manager and other
Key Managerial Personnel of
the company

Not applicable

Not applicable

Number of Meetings of the
Board attended during the
year 2022-23

6 (Six)

Not applicable

Names of listed entities in
which the person also holds
the Directorships (excluding
this Company)

Nil / Not Applicable

Nil / Not Applicable
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Particulars Retire by Rotation / Appointment of Mr. Narayanan Sadanandan
Re-appointment as the Managing Director (DIN: 07263104) as an Independent Director
Names of listed entities in  Not Applicable Not Applicable

which the person also holds
Membership of Committees
of Board.* (excluding this
company)

Chairman / Directorship of
other companies

e  #MAS Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance
Limited

. Prarthna Marketing Private Limited

. Finance Industry Development Council

. MASFIN Insurance Broking Private Limited

+  Swalamb Mass Financial Services Ltd.

Allied Blenders And Distillers Limited

Names of companies along
with listed entities in which
person has resigned in the past
three years.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Skills and capabilities required
for the role and the manner in
which the proposed person
meets such requirements

He has experience in Financial Service sector,
leadership capabilities, expertise in Strategic
Investments, Business Transformation and Risk
Management as the skills and capabilities required
for the role.

Financial Services, Expertise in Governance, Risk

Management.

Justification for choosing the
appointee for appointment as
Independent Director

As mentioned in the explanatory statement.

As mentioned in the explanatory statement.

*Committee includes Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee across all Listed

Companies including this company.
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013 setting out material facts.

As required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013,
the following explanatory statement sets out all material
facts relating to the businesses mentioned under Item No. 4
to 6 of the Notice.

Item No.: 4. Alteration of Articles of Association of the
Company:

Pursuant to Regulation 23(6) of the SEBI (Issue and Listing of
Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 it is proposed
to amend the Articles of Association of the Company which
states:

“If an issuer is a company, it shall ensure that its Articles
of Association require its Board of Directors to appoint the
person nominated by the debenture trustee(s) in terms
of clause (e) of sub-regulation (1) of regulation 15 of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Debenture Trustees)
Regulations, 1993 as a director on its Board of Directors:

Provided that the issuer whose debt securities are listed as on
the date of publication of the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
(Amendment) Regulations, 2023 in the official gazette,
shall amend its Articles of Association to comply with this
provision, on or before September 30, 2023:

Provided further that the issuer, which is in default of payment
of interest or repayment of principal amount in respect of
listed debt securities, shall appoint the person nominated by
the debenture trustee(s) as a director on its Board of Directors,
within one month from date of receipt of nomination from the
debenture trustee or the date of publication of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) (Amendment) Regulations, 2023 in
the official gazette, whichever is later.”

Hence it is proposed to amend clause 45 of the Articles of
Association of the Company in the following manner pursuant
to Section 14 and all other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Incorporation)
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force):

The number of Directors shall not be less than three and
shall not be more than fifteen, excluding nominee Directors
appointed by any Financial Institutions or any other
Institutions or Banks or Debenture Trustee. Provided, that
the Company may appoint a director in excess of the limit
provided above by passing a special resolution.

None of the other Directors or Key Managerial Personnel

(KMP) of the Company or their relatives is in any way
concerned or interested in the proposed resolution.
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The Board recommends the special resolution set forth in the
Item No. 4 of the Notice for approval of the Members.

Item No.: 5. Appointment of Mr. Narayanan Sadanandan
(DIN: 07263104) as an Independent Director of the Company:

The Board with a view to strengthen the Board with
professionals from diversified background and including
finance background specifically, at its meeting held on June
21, 2023, subject to approval of shareholders, based on
the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (‘NRC’), appointed Mr. Narayanan Sadanandan as
an Additional and Independent Director with effect from June
21,2023 for a term of five consecutive years.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, inter alia,
have identified experience in Financial Services, Expertise in
Governance, Risk Management as the skills and capabilities
required for the role. Considering the profile and experience
of Mr. Narayanan Sadanandan, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and the Board is of the view that he
meets the above skills and capabilities.

Mr. Narayanan Sadanandan is not disqualified from being
appointed as a director in terms of section 164 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’). He has confirmed that she
is not debarred from holding the office of director by virtue of
any order from SEBI or any such authority and has given his
consent to act as Director of the Company.

The Company has also received declaration from him that
he meets the criteria of independence as prescribed, both,
under section 149(6) of the Act and under the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(‘Listing Regulations’).

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Narayanan Sadanandan fulfils
the conditions for appointment as an Independent Director
as specified in the Act and the Listing Regulations and is
independent of the Management.

In connection with the aforementioned, a notice in writing
in the prescribed manner as required by section 160 of
the Act and Rules made thereunder, has been received
by the Company, regarding candidature of Mr. Narayanan
Sadanandan for the office of the director. The copy of letter
of appointment issued to Mr. Narayanan Sadanandan setting
out the terms and conditions of his appointment is available
electronically for inspection by the members.

In terms of regulation 25(2A) of the Listing Regulations,
a special resolution is required for appointment of an
Independent Director. Further, as per regulation 17(1C) of the
Listing Regulations, appointment of a person on the Board
has to be approved by shareholders within a period of three
months, and accordingly, approval of members is being
sought.



0 CORPORATE OVERVIEW @ STATUTORY REPORTS

0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their
relatives, except Mr. Narayanan Sadanandan is directly or
indirectly concerned or interested, financially or otherwise,
except to the extent of his shareholding, if any, in the Company
in the special resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice.

The Board recommends the special resolution set out at ltem
No. 5 of the Notice for approval by members.

Item No.: 6. Re-appointment of Mr. Kamlesh C. Gandhi (DIN:
00044852) as the Managing Director of the Company:

Mr. Kamlesh C. Gandhi was re-appointed as the Managing
Director of the Company for a period of five years at the
Annual General Meeting held on June 26, 2019 with effect
from April 1,2019 till March 31, 2024. The Board at its meeting
held on June 21, 2023 re-appointed Mr. Kamlesh C. Gandhi as
the Managing Director of the Company for a period of 5 years
with effect from April 1, 2024 on the terms and conditions as
set out in this item of the Notice and as per draft agreement
executed between Mr. Kamlesh C. Gandhi and the Company.

Considering Mr. Kamlesh C. Gandhi's knowledge of various
aspects relating to the Company’s affairs and long business
experience, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held
onJune 21,2023 approved the re-appointment of Mr. Kamlesh
C. Gandhi as the Managing Director with effect from April 1,

2024 uptoMarch 31,2029 subject to approval of shareholders,
on such remuneration and terms & conditions as set out in
the resolutions under Item No. 6. Disclosure under Regulation
36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard-2
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India are
set out in the Annexure to the Explanatory Statement.

Mr. Kamlesh C. Gandhi and his relatives are deemed to be
interested in the resolution. None of the other Directors or
Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company or their
relatives is in any way concerned or interested in the proposed
resolution.

The Board recommends the resolutions set forth in the Item
No. 6 of the Notice for approval of the Members.

Regd. Office:

6, Ground Floor, Narayan Chambers,
Behind Patang Hotel, Ashram Road,
Ahmedabad - 380 009.

By order of the Board

Riddhi Bhayani
Company Secretary
& Compliance Officer
(Mem. No. A41206)

Place : Ahmedabad
Date: June 21, 2023

Contact Details:

Company

MAS Financial Services Limited

6, Narayan Chambers,

Behind Patang Hotel, Ashram Road,
Ahmedabad - 380 009.

CIN: L65910GJ1995PLC026064

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Ms. Riddhi Bhaveshbhai Bhayani

Email Id: riddhi_bhayani@mas.co.in

Registrar and Transfer

Link Intime India Private Limited
C-101, 1t Floor,

247 Park Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg,
Vikhroli (West), Mumbai — 400 083

e-Voting Agency

Central Depository Services (India) Limited

E-mail ID: helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
Phone : 022- 22723333 / 8588

Scrutinizer

Mr. Ravi Kapoor, Proprietor of Ravi Kapoor & Associates

Practicing Company Secretaries

E-Mail id: ravi@ravics.com

Annual Report 2022-23



mailto:riddhi_bhayani@mas.co.in

Directors’ Report

To,

The Members,

MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Ahmedabad

Your Directors are pleased to present the Twenty Eight (28%) Annual report of your Company along with the Audited Standalone
and Consolidated Accounts drawn for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023.

The Company’s financial performance for the year under review along with previous year’s figures is given hereunder:

FINANCIAL RESULTS:

(Amount in  Crore)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated
Year Ended on Year Ended on Year Ended on
(VET( My liy2d  March 31,2022 EERVET iWpAizE]  March 31, 2022
(Restated) (Restated)
Revenue from Operations 946.09 655.57 987.83 690.24
Other Income 3.00 1.51 2.43 0.93
Total Income 949.09 657.08 990.26 691.17
Total Expenditure 684.39 445.78 718.61 474.62
Profit Before Tax 264.70 211.30 271.65 216.55
Provision for Taxation (Including Current 63.74 53.75 65.83 55.35
tax, Deferred Tax & Income Tax of earlier
Years)
Net Profit 200.96 157.55 205.82 161.20
Profit Brought Forward 533.21 422.28 537.08 425.33
Net Profit after profit attributable to - - (2.56) (1.97)
minority shareholders
Item of other comprehensive income 0.04 (0.08) 0.05 (0.07)
recognised directly in retained earnings -
on defined benefit plan
Profit Available for Appropriation 734.21 579.75 740.39 584.49
APPROPRIATIONS:
Transfer to reserve u/s 45-IC of RBI Act, (40.19) (31.51) (40.19) (31.51)
1934
Transfer to reserve u/s 29-C of NHB Act, = - (1.16) (0.87)
1987
Final Dividend on equity shares (9.57) (8.20) (9.57) (8.20)
Interim Dividend on Equity Shares (9.84) (6.83) (9.84) (6.83)
Dividend distribution tax on Equity Shares = - = -
Surplus Balance carried to Balance Sheet 674.61 533.21 679.63 537.08

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE:

In terms of consolidated basis:

The Group'’s revenue from operations for the financial year
was % 987.83 Crores, higher by 43.11% over the previous
year’s revenue from operations of ¥ 690.24 Crores. Net Profit
(PAT) is ¥ 205.82 Crores which is higher by 27.68% over the
previous year's PAT of ¥ 161.20 Crore. The Earnings per share
is ¥ 37.18 (Previous years ¥ 29.13).

In terms of Standalone basis:

The Company's revenue from operations for the financial
year was ¥ 946.09 Crores, higher by 44.32% over the previous
year's revenue from operations of ¥ 655.57 Crores. Net Profit
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(PAT) is ¥ 200.96 Crores which is higher by 27.55% over the
previous year’s PAT of ¥ 157.55 Crore. The Earnings per share
is ¥ 36.76 (Previous years ¥ 28.82).

PROSPECTS AND DEVELOPMENTS:

The Company continues to recognize a vast market
opportunity for efficient last mile credit delivery, particularly
for NBFCs and other financial institutions seeking significant
growth prospects. Our strategic approach involves a multi-
product and multi-locational strategy, providing a distinct
advantage in risk management and scalability. This allows
us to cater effectively to a diverse customer base while
minimizing risks and maximizing operational efficiency.
The advent of digitization and the company’s focus on the
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same will be a strong catalyst for not only better operational
efficiencies but also high quality customer services.

Our primary focus centers on serving the lower and middle-
income segments, which are key drivers of the economy. By
tailoring our products and services to meet their unique needs,
we contribute to their financial well-being and empower them
to achieve their goals. This customer-centric focus not only
supports individual growth but also strengthens the overall
economic landscape.

With our deep understanding of market dynamics,
commitment to innovation, and customer-centricity, we are
well-positioned within the industry. Our dedicated team of
professionals continually delivers exceptional value and
fosters long-term relationships with our clients.

Considering the immense market potential and our strategic
pursuits, we are confident about the future prospects of
the Company. We actively explore new opportunities, forge
strategic alliances, and adapt to evolving market conditions
to ensure sustainable growth and profitability.

In conclusion, the Company is poised to leverage the
significant market demand for efficient last mile credit
delivery. Our multi-product and multi-locational approach,
coupled with our unwavering focus on the lower and middle-
income segments, strengthens our position within the
industry. By capitalizing on these opportunities, we aim to
drive growth, maximize value for stakeholders, and make a
significant contribution to the broader economy.

SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISE LOAN:

Working capital loans to the SME continue to show lot of
promise as expected. We are in the continuous process of
understanding the segment and are keen to add value to all
such small and medium enterprises by extending the most
efficient financial services. In consonance to our policy of
building up quality assets, we are confident of creating quality
assets in this segment too. The focus remains on states
of operation namely Gujarat, Rajasthan, Madhya Pradesh,
Maharashtra, Tamil Nadu and Karnataka.

TWO WHEELER AND COMMERCIAL VEHICLE
FINANCING:

We continue also to focus on Two-Wheeler and Commercial
Vehicle financing and we adopt such business models which
generate required return on assets and the quality portfolio.
While the Company is keen to increase this portfolio, the
endeavor will be to balance between yields, asset quality
and growth. We are confident that as we spread to newer
geographies within our distribution network, we will be
achieving the desired objectives. With the expected growth of
the economy we anticipate the commercial vehicle business
to contribute increasingly in the overall AUM mix. Two-
wheeler also gaining momentum will be contributing higher in
the coming year as compared to the previous years.

HOUSING FINANCE:

MA S Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited (“MRHMFL”
or “the Subsidiary”) continues to serve the middle income
and the lower income sector of the economy, especially in
the semi urban and rural areas, which are reckoned to be
the key drivers of the sector in the coming decades. Full-
fledged efforts are on to execute efficiently, as per the detail
planning. Being aware of the challenges involved in serving
this class of the society, a very cautious approach is adopted
in building up volumes. Nevertheless, Company is quite
confident of building substantial volumes in the near future.
The Company’s rural initiative will also start yielding results
shortly.

The Company has 73 branches Pan India as on March 31,
2023. It is worth mentioning that despite of credit worthy
customer class, ascertaining the title of the property remains
a challenging job. The Company is actively involved with all
the stakeholders to smoothen the process and is assertive in
getting the right set of documents.

We persistently strive forward, driven by our unwavering
commitment to creating a high-quality portfolio and adding
substantial value to the ecosystem in which we operate. With
confidence, we are dedicated to achieving these goals.

DISTRIBUTION NETWORK:

The Company has a strong retail presence & distribution
network pan India. As on April 1, 2022 the Company had 125
branches in 7 territories Gujarat, Maharashtra, Rajasthan,
Madhya Pradesh, Tamil Nadu, Karnataka, and Delhi NCR.
During the year and pursuant to the expansion plans of
the Company, the Company opened 6 branches in Gujarat,
2 branches in Maharashtra, 3 branches in Rajasthan,
9 branches in Madhya Pradesh, 3 branches in Karnataka
along with a fresh location of Chattisgarh. At the end of the
year, the total branches were 149 and the Company served
9000+ Customer locations.

The company will thrive to distribute all its financial products
efficiently across its potential 9000+ centers, which provides
huge opportunity of growth and serving the unserved. This
vast penetration along with the dictum of “Extending credit
where it is due” will create a sustainable, scalable and
profitable business for the company in the near future.

PARTNERING WITH REGIONAL NBFCS AND NBFC-MFIS:

Over a decade of our working with this sector, our belief is
further strengthened, that financial inclusion in a country
like India is a function of efficient last mile delivery of credit,
for which a very robust value chain has to be nurtured and
developed. NBFCs in special play a pivotal role in this value
chain. This business model withstood its credibility and our
expectations even during the most trying period during the
last year.

Partnering with regional NBFCs and NBFC-MFIs for
distribution of various products and providing them the line
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of credit also remains one of the major business plans. We
firmly believe that the players having proximity to the region
are the most potential organization in the last mile delivery
of credit. We not only fund them but also share with them
the domain expertise, which the company possesses through
its vintage of more than two decades. We continue to get
encouraging response from our entire partner NBFCs and
are keen to leverage the relationships for mutual benefits.
Currently we have very strong relationships with more than
140+ such organizations.

RESOURCES:
HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT AT MAS:

Human Resource Management plays a pivotal role in realizing
the Company’s objective. Company believes that employees
are the driving force for business growth, branding, and
customer satisfaction. The Company has established a
robust Human Resources (‘HR’) system that nurtures a
high performing, conducive and inclusive work culture. It is
managed by the active involvement of the promoters along
with strategic inputs from a well-diversified and competent
board. It emphasizes on the freedom to express views,
competitive pay structure, performance-based reward system
and growth opportunities and internal job opportunities,
critical assignments within the organisation for career
options for the employees.

In an ever-evolving landscape driven by technology and
digital advancements, your Company remains steadfast in its
commitment to long-term personnel development, aiming for
organizational excellence. The Company consistently strives
to provide avenues for professional growth and recognition,
while also prioritizing employee training. The training
programs are an essential component of the Company's
comprehensive skill development initiatives tailored for
its workforce. During the year, several initiatives, such as
performance management systems, Learning & Development
system and Talent Management system were put in place for
efficient and effective organization.

The articulation and implementation of the strategies is
carried on by the core team along with Team M AS. Core
team at MAS is a group of dedicated and competent team
of personnel, associated with the company almost since
its inception and have always extended unstinting support
besides, having identified and aligned their career objective
with the company.

The Company has a diverse workforce of 1154 employees as
on March 31, 2023. Moving forward, the Company remains
steadfast in its commitment to fostering and developing the
most suitable talent in order to effectively accomplish its
business objectives.

Attracting, enabling, promoting and retaining talent have
been the keystone of Human Resource functions at MAS.
We trust with all the above qualities accompanied by the
determination to excel, this team forms a formidable second
line of management at MAS.

In our relentless pursuit of nurturing an enabling human
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capital, your Company will continue to make concerted
efforts to reinforce and fortify this invaluable resource.

The Company is certified as “Great place to Work” January,
2023 - January, 2024 by Great Place to Work - Global
Authority on Workplace Culture.

CAPITAL AND LIABILITY MANAGEMENT:

As we reflect on the first full uninterrupted year of working
post-COVID, we cannot help but acknowledge the humbling
experience it has been. Throughout this period, we have
received tremendous respect from investors across all
categories, underscoring the trust they place in our Company.
Guided by our steadfast philosophy of “Excellence through
Endeavours” we remain resolute in our commitment to
maximizing shareholders’ value. This unwavering dedication
will continue to propel us forward as we embark on new
endeavours.

The Company continues to pursue an efficient capital
management policy, which aims at maximizing the return
on capital employed and at the same time adhering to the
prudential guidelines laid down by RBI from time to time.

The Company by virtue of its performance over the years
enjoys very good relationships with many leading banks and
financial institutions. The Company could raise the required
resources from various banks and financial institutions
comfortably. We anticipate the same response from all our
lending partners for the coming years too. The Company
anticipates credit lines from few more banks and financial
institutions besides the existing ones.

The confidence and respect of bankers towards your
Company persist as we serve as their trusted partner in
efficiently delivering credit solutions. We deeply appreciate
the invaluable support and cooperation extended by
investors and consortium member banks, which have played
a constructive role in our operations.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO:

As on March 31, 2023, the Company’s Capital Adequacy Ratio
(CAR), stood at 25.25% of the aggregate risk weighted assets
on balance sheet and risk adjusted value of the off balance
sheet items, which is well above the regulatory minimum of
15%, providing much needed headroom for fund raising for
business operations of the Company.

ANNUAL RETURN AS PER SECTION 92 (3) OF
COMPANIES ACT 2013:

In pursuance to the provisions of Section 92(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder and
amended time to time, the Annual Return of the Company for
the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2023 is available on
the website of the company i.e. www.mas.co.in and the web

link of the same is https://mas.co.in/annual-return.aspx.
BOARD MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR:

The Company had Six Board Meetings during the financial
year under review.


www.mas.co.in
https://mas.co.in/annual-return.aspx
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Sr. Date on which Board Total Strength No. of Directors
No. Meetings were held  of the Board Present

1 May 4, 2022 6
July 6, 2022
August 3, 2022
November 2, 2022
February 1, 2023
February 20, 2023

oo WIN
[e)NNe Mo Nie)Nie)Ne)
[e) RN N, RS, BN

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Board of Directors, to the best of its knowledge and ability
would like to state that:

a) inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed along with
proper explanations relating to material departures;

b) they had selected such accounting policies and applied
them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the
end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
Company for the year under review;

c) they had taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) they had prepared annual accounts on a going concern
basis;

e) they had laid down internal financial controls to be
followed by the Company and such internal financial
controls are adequate and were operating effectively;

f)  They had devised proper systems to ensure compliance
with the provisions of all applicable laws and such
systems were in place were adequate and operating
effectively.

COMPANY’'S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTOR'S
APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION
AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES:

The Company's Policy relating to appointment of
Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration, Directors’
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directors
and other related matters as provided under Section 178(3)
of the Companies Act, 2013 is furnished as attached to this
report. “Annexure — A”. The weblink for the same is https://
mas.co.in/policy.aspx.

AUDITORS:
Statutory Auditors:
At the 26™ Annual General Meeting held on August 25, 2021,

the members had appointed M/s. Mukesh M. Shah & Co.,
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 106625W),
Ahmedabad as Statutory Auditors for a term of three
years beginning from the conclusion of the 26" AGM till
the conclusion of the 29" Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held for the financial year 2023-24.

Secretarial Auditors:

In the Board Meeting held on May 04, 2022 M/s. Ravi Kapoor &
Associates, Practising Company Secretaries were appointed
as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the financial year
2022-23.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT:

In pursuance to the provisions of Section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed thereunder and
in compliance of Regulation 24A of Securities Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) M/s. Ravi Kapoor
and Associates, Practising Company Secretaries, had
conducted secretarial audit of the company for the financial
year 2022-23. There was no qualification or adverse remarks
made by the auditor in their report and the said Secretarial
Audit Report is annexed which is forming part to this report
as “Annexure — B".

EXPLANATIONS OR COMMENTS BY BOARD
ON EVERY QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION OR
ADVERSE REMARK OR DISCLAIMER MADE:

(i) By the Statutory Auditors in his report;

There is no qualification, reservation or adverse remark
raised by Statutory Auditor in Auditor’s report for the year
under review.

(ii) By the Company Secretary in Practice in his Secretarial
Audit Report;

There is no qualification, reservation, adverse remark
or disclaimer in audit report issued by the Secretarial
Auditors of the Company.

FRAUDS REPORTED BY THE AUDITOR:

During the year under review, no frauds have been reported by
the Auditor (Statutory Auditor, Secretarial Auditor) to the Audit
Committee / Board, under Section 143(12) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

A STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS UNDER SUB-SECTION
(6) OF SECTION 149:

The Company has received declarations from Mr. Bala
Bhaskaran, Mr. Chetan Shah, Mr. Umesh Shah and Mrs. Daksha
Shah, Independent Directors of the Company that they meet
with the criteria of independence as prescribed under Sub-
section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 6 (1) and (3) of Companies (Appointment
and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 as amended
from time to time and Regulation 16 & 25 Securities and
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Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘the Listing Regulations’).

All Independent Directors of your Company are registered with
Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs as per the requirement
of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed
thereunder.

During the year under review, the Non-Executive Directors of
the Company had no pecuniary relationship or transactions
with the Company, other than sitting fees, paid to them for the
purpose of attending meetings of the Board / Committee of
the Company.

MATTERS AS PRESCRIBED UNDER SUB-SECTIONS
(1) AND (3) OF SECTION 178 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013:

The Company constituted its Nomination Committee on
December 23,2010 and the nomenclature of the Nomination
committee was changed to “Nomination and Remuneration
Committee” on March 20, 2015 pursuant to Section 178
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 7 of the Companies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, by way
of resolution passed in accordance with, provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Nomination & Remuneration
Committee consists of three Independent Directors. The
powers and function of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee is stated in the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee Charter of MAS Financial Services Limited.
The Remuneration policy is available at the Web link https://
www.mas.co.in/policy.aspx

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR
INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186:

The loan made, guarantee given or security provided in
the ordinary course of business by a NBFC registered with
Reserve Bank of India are exempt from the applicability of
provisions of Section 186 of the Act. As the Company being
a NBFC registered with RBI the restrictions contained in the
said provisions are not applicable to the Company.

During the year under review the Company has invested
surplus funds in various securities in the ordinary course of
business. For details of the investments of the Company refer
to Note No. 9 of the financial statements.

PARTICULARS CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS
WITH RELATED PARTIES REFERRED TO IN SUB-
SECTION (1) OF SECTION 188:

All Contracts / Arrangements / Transactions executed by the
Company during the financial year with related parties were
in the ordinary course of business and on arm'’s length basis.
The Audit Committee reviews all Related Party Transaction on
quarterly basis. Particulars of such related party transactions
described in Form AOC-2 as required under Section 134 (3)(h)
of the Act, read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules 2014, which is annexed herewith as “Annexure - C".
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The related party disclosures as specified under Para A of
Schedule V read with Regulation 34(3) of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is forming part in Notes to
Financial Statements.

The board has approved a policy for related party transactions
which has been hosted on the website of the Company.
The web-link for the same is https:/www.mas.co.in/policy.
aspx. The related party transactions, wherever necessary
are carried out by company as per this policy. There were no
materially significant related party transactions entered into
by the company during the year, which may have potential
conflict with the interest of the company at large. There were
no pecuniary relationship or transactions entered into by
any Independent Directors with the company during the year
under review.

AMOUNT, IF ANY, WHICH THE BOARD PROPOSES
TO CARRY TO ANY RESERVES:

During the year under review ¥ 40.19 crore transferred to
statutory reserve under Section 45 IC of RBI Act, 1934.

DIVIDEND:

The Company had paid an Interim Dividend of ¥ 1.80/-
(Rupees One decimal Eighty only) per share on 5,46,62,043
Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- fully paid up (18%) aggregating to
% 9,83,91,677/- (Rupees Nine Crore Eighty Three Lakh Ninety
One Thousand Six Hundred Seventy Seven Rupees), during
the financial year 2022-23. The same was declared by Board
of Directors in their meeting held on February 01, 2023. The
said dividend was paid on February 17, 2023.

Your Directors are pleased to recommend a Final Dividend
of ¥ 1.85/- (Rupees One decimal Eighty Five Paise Only) per
Equity Share on 5,46,62,043 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- fully paid
up (18.5%) aggregating to 10,11,24,779.55/- (Rupees Ten
Crore Eleven Lakh Twenty Four Thousand and Seven Hundred
Seventy Nine Rupees and Fifty Five Paisa Only) for the
Financial year 2022-23, subject to the approval of members
in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company. The
payment of Final Dividend shall be paid to those members
whose names appears in the Register of Members of the
Company or in the records of depositories as beneficial
owners of Equity Shares as on July 19, 2023 being the record
date fixed by the Board to identify the shareholders to whom
final dividend to be paid by the Company for the financial
year 2022-23. The payment of final dividend will be subject to
deduction of tax at source as per the applicable rate.

The dividend recommended is in accordance with the criteria
as set out in the Dividend Distribution Policy which has been
approved by the Board of Directors. Pursuant to Regulation
43A of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
the policy is forming part to the report as “Annexure - D”. The
weblink for the same is https://www.mas.co.in/policy.aspx
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS
AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY:

The company has changed its policy whereby gain on
assignment of financial asset was recognised as ‘unearned
income on assigned loans’ under the head ‘other non-financial
liabilities’ and was amortised in the statement of profit
and loss over the period of the underlying residual tenure
of the assigned loan portfolio. Such policy was adopted by
the management for more prudent and fair presentation of
financial statements by exercising their judgement under
para 19 of Ind AS 1 “Presentation of financial statements”.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2023, the Company
has received a directive from the Reserve Bank of India to
book such gain upfront in the statement of profit and loss in
accordance with Ind AS 109 instead of amortising it over the
period of the underlying residual tenure of the assigned loan
portfolio.

The new accounting policy has been implemented
retrospectively and being presented from the beginning of the
earliest period i.e. April 1, 2021.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO:

. Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption:

Since the Company is operating in service sector, the
provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act,
2013 regarding conservation of energy and Technology
Absorption are not applicable.

. Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo

The Company has no Foreign Exchange earnings and
outgo.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

Financing activity is the business of management of risks,
which in turn is the function of the appropriate credit models
and the robust systems and operations. Your Company
continues to focus on the above two maxims, and is always
eager to improve upon the same.

Your Company continues to give prime importance to the
function of receivables management, as it considers this the
ultimate reflection of the correctness of marketing strategy as
well as appraisal techniques. The Net stage 3 of the Company
is 1.52% of Asset under Management as on March 31, 2023.

Pursuant to Regulation 21(5) of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the regulations of Risk
management committee is applicable to top 1000 listed
entities determined on the basis of market capitalization, as
at the end of the immediate previous financial year. The Board
of Directors has thus adopted a risk management policy for

the Company which provides identification, assessment and
control of risks which in the opinion of the Board may threaten
the existence of the Company. The Management identifies
and controls risks through a properly defined framework in
terms of the aforesaid policy. The web-link for the same is
https://mas.co.in/policy.aspx

The Company has in place a Risk Management Policy and
introduced several measures to strengthen the internal
controls systems and processes to drive a common
integrated view of risks, optimal and mitigation responses.
This integration is enabled through a dedicated team and Risk
Management, Internal Control and Internal Audit systems and
processes.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):

Your Company remains steadfast in its commitment to
responsibly address the evolving needs of the communities in
which it operates, recognizing the importance of giving back
to society proportionate to its business success. Throughout
the year, your Company has diligently pursued various
initiatives in alignment with its CSR policy, focusing on the
areas of Health, Welfare, and Education, thereby contributing
to the betterment of society at large.

As a responsible corporate entity, we believe in leveraging
our resources to support the community, particularly during
challenging times. In line with this belief, the Company
launched the “#1AS$ Arogya Abhiyan” distributing BiPAP
machines and assisting those in needs. The Company has
also facilitated the family of martyrs in the event of 75"
Independent day — Azadi Ka Amrit Mahotsav. Further, the
Company installed Ultra Sound Machines at the Indian Army -
Military Hospital, Ahmedabad.

As part of its robust corporate social responsibility (CSR)
initiatives, your Company recognized the challenges faced
by a significant section of the population across the country
in meeting their basic food requirements. In response, the
Company took proactive measures by organizing a food
distribution drive in Gujarat, wherein raw food packets
comprising essential grocery items were provided to villages
in need. This CSR endeavor was specifically designed to
alleviate the hardships faced by vulnerable individuals and
extend support to those tirelessly working on the ground with
limited resources. By addressing the pressing issue of food
scarcity, the Company demonstrated its commitment to social
welfare and contributed to the well-being of communities in
need.

Education is widely regarded as a stepping stone for
enhancing the quality of life, particularly for underprivileged
individuals. Recognizing this, the Company has identified
bright students who aspire to pursue higher studies but face
financial constraints. We have extended financial support
to help them achieve their dreams. In our commitment
to societal development, addressing the root causes and
striving for 100% literacy rate, the Company actively invests in
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the education of these students. Apart from sponsoring their
fees, we provide school bags, stationery, uniforms, sweaters,
school shoes, and other necessary provisions, relieving
parents and students from the burden of additional costs and
enabling them to concentrate on their studies. The Company’s
management team proactively engages with schools
located on the outskirts of Ahmedabad and Gandhinagar to
assess the infrastructure provided to students and explore
opportunities for further support. Many schools were found
to lack basic amenities such as fans, lights, and tables, while
students were exposed to scorching heat while having meals
provided by the government. Consequently, infrastructure-
related projects were prioritized, with the Company stepping
in to provide essential facilities like fans, lights, benches,
computers, construction of play area including swings and
most importantly, constructing sheds to shield students
from heat-related illnesses. The “#1A S Shiksha Protsahan”
initiative embodies the ideology of transforming lives through
the continuous generation of knowledge and empowerment.
Accordingly, the Company has allocated funds in accordance
with its policy and prescribed CSR guidelines.

Menstrual hygiene in rural areas is a significant issue that
affects the well-being and empowerment of women and girls.
Menstrual hygiene is of paramount importance in rural areas,
where access to resource like sanitation facilities, clean
water, and affordable menstrual products is limited or absent.
This lack of resources and infrastructure poses numerous
challenges and can have negative consequences for women
and girls during their menstrual cycles. In order to address
this problem, the Company has distributed sanitary napkins
to females in nearby villages, ensuring their well-being and
promoting proper hygiene practices.

Looking ahead, your Company is committed to increasing
its CSR impact and expenditure in the coming years, with a
continued focus on rural development, health promotion,
and sanitation. In line with this commitment, the Company
has identified various long-term projects aimed at promoting
education, sanitation, health, and welfare, striving to enhance
overall well-being and elevate the quality of life for all.

The CSR Report for the Financial Year 2022-2023 is annexed
to this report as Annexure: E. The composition of CSR
Committee and the details of the ongoing CSR projects/
programs/activities are included in the CSR report/section.
The CSR Policy is uploaded on the Company’s website at the

web link: https://www.mas.co.in/policy.aspx

FORMAL EVALUATION OF THE PERFORMACE OF
THE BOARD, COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD AND
INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS:

Pursuant to the provisions of 134(3)(p) the Companies Act,
2013 and Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out the
annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the
Directors individually including Independent Directors as
well as the evaluation of the working of its Committees. The
evaluationwas carried on the basis of structured questionnaire
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was prepared after taking into consideration inputs received
from the Directors, covering various aspects of the Board’s
functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the Board
and its Committees, level of engagement and participation,
Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties,
obligations and governance. The Board has expressed their
satisfaction with the evaluation process.

In pursuant to Regulation 17(10) of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the evaluation of
Independent Directors were done by the entire board of
directors which includes —

(a) Performance of the directors; and

(b) Fulfillment of the independence criteria as specified
in the regulations and their independence from the
management.

Criteria adopted for evaluation:

The Board shall evaluate the roles, functions, duties of
Independent Directors (ID’s) of the Company. Each ID shall
be evaluated by all other directors’ not by the Director being
evaluated. The board shall also review the manner in which
ID’s follow guidelines of professional conduct. Further, in a
separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance
of non-independent directors, the Board as whole and the
Chairman of the Company was evaluated.

(i) Performance review of all the Non-Independent Directors
of the company on the basis of the activities undertaken
by them, expectation of board and level of participation;

(iiy Performance review of the Chairman of the Company in
terms of level of competence of chairman in steering the
company;

(iii) The review and assessment of the flow of information
by the Company to the board and manner in which the
deliberations take place, the manner of placing the
agenda and the contents therein;

(iv) The review of the performance of the directors
individually, its own performance as well as evaluation
of working of its committees shall be carried out by the
board;

(v) On the basis of performance evaluation, it shall be
determined by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and the Board whether to extend or continue
the term of appointment of ID subject to all other
applicable compliances.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE
COMPANIES:

We have invested in a new Company, incorporated on August
05, 2022 amount of ¥ 34,50,000/- for 69% holding in Equity
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Shares named MASFIN Insurance Broking Private Limited.
With the establishment of this subsidiary, your Company now
proudly boasts two subsidiaries i.e. 1A $ Rural Housing and
Mortgage Finance Limited and MASFIN Insurance Broking
Private Limited, further expanding its operational reach and
diversifying its offerings, this strategic development reflects
the Company’s commitment to exploring new avenues and
strengthening its presence in the insurance industry.

Pursuant to the provision of Section 129(3) of the Companies
Act, 2013, the performance and financial position of
Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Venture companies are
described in Form AOC-1 which is annexed herewith as
“Annexure - F”. Further the Company does not have any Joint
Venture or Associate Company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

The information required under section on 197 of the Act
read with rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are
mentioned as per “Annexure — G”.

THE CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS:

The Company continues to carry out the same activities
and during the period under review there is no change in the
nature of business.

DISCLOSURE ABOUT RECEIPT OF ANY
COMMISSION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR /
WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR FROM A COMPANY:

The Company has not paid any commission to the Managing
Director / Whole-Time Director against any services during
the period under review.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS:

The Company is Non - deposit taking Non-Banking Financial
Company registered with Reserve Bank of India and is
prohibited from accepting public deposits and therefore
the Company has not accepted any deposits from public
during the year under review and there was no public deposit
outstanding as on March 31, 2023.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE:

During the year under review there was no change in the
capital structure of the Company.

DEBENTURES:

During the year under review there was no change in the
following Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCDs”) of the
Company.

1. 10000 Rated, Senior, Secured, Listed, Transferable,
Redeemable, Principal Protected Market Linked Non-
Convertible Debentures (“NCDs”) of face value of
%1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Only) each aggregating to
£100,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred Crores) bearing
ISIN INE348L07084 at the rate of (a) 8.50% p.a. (Eight
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Decimal Five Zero Percent) (XIRR), if the Reference Index
Performance is greater than 75% (Seventy Five Percent);
and/or (b) 8.45% (Eight Decimal Four Five Percent)
(XIRR), if the Reference Index Performance is equal to or
lesser than 75% (Seventy Five Percent) but greater than
25% (Twenty Five Percent); and/or (c ) 0% (Zero Percent)
(XIRR), if the Reference Index Performance is lesser than
or equal to 25% (Twenty Five Percent).

1000 (One Thousand) Rated, Senior, Secured, Listed,
Transferable, Redeemable, Principal Protected Market
Linked Non-Convertible Debentures denominated in
Indian Rupees, each having a face value of ¥ 10,00,000
(Indian Rupees Ten Lakh only) aggregating to
%100,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Hundred Crore only)
inclusive of a green shoe option of up to ¥ 50,00,00,000
(Indian Rupees Fifty Crore only) comprising of 500 (Five
Hundred) Rated, Senior, Secured, Listed, Transferable,
Redeemable, Principal Protected Market Linked
Non - convertible Debentures denominated in Indian
Rupees and on a private placement basis bearing
ISIN INE348L07092 at the rate of (a) 8.50% (Eight
Decimal Five Zero Percent) (XIRR), if Reference Index
Performance is greater than 75% (Seventy Five Percent);
and/or (b) 8.45% (Eight Decimal Four Five Percent)
(XIRR), if the Reference Index Performance is equal to or
lesser than 75% (Seventy Five Percent) but greater than
25% (Twenty Five Percent); and/or (C) 0% (Zero Percent)
(XIRR), if the Reference Index Performance is lesser than
or equal to 25% (Twenty Five Percent) were issued on
September 17, 2021

50 (Fifty) unsecured, rated, listed, redeemable,
subordinated, taxable, transferable, non-convertible
debentures denominated in Indian Rupees (“INR”), each
having a face value of ¥ 1,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees One
Crore) aggregating to ¥ 50,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Fifty
Crore) (“Debentures” or “NCDs") on a private placement
basis (the “Issue”). bearing ISIN INE348L08041 at the
rate of 10.75% (Ten decimal seven five Percentage) p.a.
were issued on October 20, 2021.

1000 Rated, Senior, Secured, Listed, Transferable,
Redeemable, Principal Protected Market Linked Non-
Convertible Debentures Denominated in Indian Rupees
(“INR"), each having a face value of ¥ 10,00,000/-
aggregating to ¥ 100 Crore (“Debentures” or “NCDs")
inclusive of a Green shoe option of up to ¥ 50 Crore
comprising of 500 Rated, Senior, Secured, Listed,
Transferable, Redeemable, Principal Protected Market
Linked Non-Convertible Debentures Denominated in
Indian Rupees (“INR”) (The “Issue”). each aggregating to
% 100,00,00,000/- (Rupees One hundred Crores) bearing
ISIN INE348L07100 at the rate of (a) 8.50% (Eight
Decimal Five Zero Percent) (XIRR), if Reference Index
Performance is greater than 75% (Seventy Five Percent);
and/or (b) 8.45% (Eight Decimal Four Five Percent)
(XIRR), if the Reference Index Performance is equal to or
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lesser than 75% (Seventy Five Percent) but greater than
25% (Twenty Five Percent); and/or (c) 0% (Zero Percent)
(XIRR), if the Reference Index Performance is lesser than
or equal to 25% (Twenty Five Percent) were issued on
November 25, 2021.

500 (five hundred) unlisted, subordinated, unsecured,
redeemable, non-convertible debentures, having a face
value of ¥ 10,00,000 (Indian Rupees Ten Lakh) each
and an aggregate face value of ¥ 50,00,00,000 (Indian
Rupees Fifty Crore) bearing ISIN INE348L08058 at the
rate of 10.75% (Ten decimal seven five Percentage) p.a.
were issued on December 29, 2021.

Over the course of the reviewed timeframe, the following Non-
Convertible Debenture of the Company was redeemed:

1.

400 Rated, Listed, Unsecured Redeemable Non-
convertible Debentures (“NCDs”) of face value of
%10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakhs Only) each aggregating
to ¥ 40,00,00,000/- (Rupees Forty Crore) bearing ISIN
INE348L08033 at the rate of 13% p.a.

6500 Rated, Senior, Redeemable, Taxable, Transferable,
Listed, Principal Protected Market Linked Non-
Convertible Debentures (“NCDs”) of face value of
% 1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakhs Only) each aggregating
to ¥ 65,00,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty Five Crores) bearing
ISIN INE348L07076 at the rate of 8.80% p.a.

During the period under the review, the following Non-
Convertible Debenture of the Company was issued:

1.

1,000 (one thousand) rated, senior, secured, listed,
transferable, redeemable, principal protected market
linked non-convertible debentures denominated in Indian
Rupees (“INR”), each having a face value of ¥ 10,00,000
(Indian Rupees Ten Lakh) and an aggregate face value
of ¥ 100,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Hundred Crore)
including a green shoe option of up to ¥ 50,00,00,000
(Indian Rupees Fifty Crore) bearing ISIN INE348L07118
at the rate of (a)8.60% (eight decimal six zero percent)
(XIRR), if the Yield is lesser than or equal to 18% (eighteen
percent); (b) 8.10% (eight decimal one zero percent)
(XIRR), if the Yield is lesser than or equal to 24% (twenty
four percent) but greater than 18% (eighteen percent);
and/or (c) 0% (zero percent) (XIRR), if the Yield is greater
than 24% (twenty four percent) were issued on June 6,
2022.

500(Five Hundred) rated, listed, redeemable, senior,
secured, non-convertible debentures denominated
in Indian Rupees (“INR"), each having a face value of
£10,00,000 (Indian Rupees Ten Lakh) and an aggregate
face value of ¥ 50,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Fifty Crore)
(“Debentures”) bearing ISIN INE348L07126 at the rate
of 8.93% (Eight Decimal nine three percentage)p.a. were
issued on June 22, 2022.
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1000(0One Thousand) rated, senior, secured, listed,
transferable, redeemable, principal protected market
linked non-convertible debentures denominated in Indian
Rupees (“INR”), each having a face value of ¥ 10,00,000
(Indian Rupees Ten Lakh) and an aggregate face value
of ¥ 100,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Hundred Crore)
(“Debentures”) bearing ISIN INE348L07134 at the rate of
(a)8.60% (eight decimal six zero percent) (XIRR), if the
Yield is lesser than or equal to 18% (eighteen percent);
(b) 8.10% (eight decimal one zero percent) (XIRR), if the
Yield is lesser than or equal to 24% (twenty four percent)
but greater than 18% (eighteen percent); and/or (c) 0%
(zero percent) (XIRR), if the Yield is greater than 24%
(twenty four percent) were issued on July 29, 2022.

250(Two Hundred and Fifty) unlisted, subordinated,
unsecured, redeemable, non-convertible debentures
denominated in Indian Rupees (“INR”), each having a
face value of ¥ 10,00,000 (Indian Rupees Ten Lakh)
and an aggregate face value of ¥ 25,00,00,000 (Indian
Rupees Twenty Five Crore) (“Debentures”) bearing ISIN
INE348L08066 at the rate of 10.75% (Ten Decimal
Seventy Five percentage) p.a. were issued on September
29,2022.

1000(0One Thousand) rated, senior, secured, listed,
transferable, redeemable, principal protected market
linked non-convertible debentures denominated in Indian
Rupees (“INR”), each having a face value of ¥ 10,00,000
(Indian Rupees Ten Lakh) and an aggregate face value
of ¥ 100,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Hundred Crore)
(“Debentures”) bearing ISIN INE348L07142 at the rate of
(2)8.90% (eight decimal nine zero percent) (XIRR), if the
Yield is lesser than or equal to 18% (eighteen percent);
(b) 8.80% (eight decimal eight zero percent) (XIRR),
if the Yield is lesser than or equal to 24% (twenty four
percent) but greater than 18% (eighteen percent); and/or
(c) 0% (zero percent) (XIRR), if the Yield is greater than
24% (twenty four percent) were issued on December 01,
2022.

3500(Thirty Five Hundred) unlisted, subordinated,
unsecured, redeemable, non-convertible debentures
denominated in Indian Rupees (“INR”), each having
a face value of ¥ 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh)
and an aggregate face value of ¥ 35,00,00,000 (Indian
Rupees Thirty Fifty Crore) (“Debentures”) bearing ISIN
INE348L08074 at the rate of 10.75% (Ten Decimal
Seventy Five percentage) p.a. were issued on December
21,2022.

5000(Five Thousand) listed, subordinated, unsecured,
redeemable, non-convertible debentures denominated
in Indian Rupees (“INR”), each having a face value of
¥ 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh) and an aggregate
face value of ¥ 50,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Fifty Crore)
(“Debentures”) bearing ISIN INE348L08082 at the rate of
10.75% (Ten Decimal Seventy Five percentage) p.a. were
issued on March 10, 2023.
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8. 5000(Five Thousand) listed, subordinated, unsecured,
redeemable, non-convertible debentures denominated
in Indian Rupees (“INR"), each having a face value of
¥ 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh) and an aggregate
face value of ¥ 50,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Fifty Crore)
(“Debentures”) bearing ISIN INE348L08090 at the rate of
10.75% (Ten Decimal Seventy Five percentage) p.a. were
issued on March 27, 2023.

STATUTORY COMPLIANCE:

The Company has complied with Ind AS as prescribed under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has
also complied with the directions issued by RBI from time to
time.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Company has devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries
of India and that such systems are adequate and operating
effectively.

MATERIAL ORDER PASSED BY REGULATORS /
COURTS / TRIBUNALS:

There was no material order passed by Regulators / Courts
/ Tribunals during the year under review impacting the going
concern status and company’s operations in future.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL:

Internal Financial Control remains an important component
to foster confidence in a company’s financial reporting, and
ultimately, streamlining the process to adopt best practices.
In pursuance to provisions of Section 134(5)e) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(5)(viii) of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 your Company has in place adequate
internal controls with reference to financial statements and
are operating effectively. The Company has devised proper
system of internal financial control which is commensurate
with size and nature of Business. The Board has appointed
Ms. Deepika Agarwal as the Head of internal auditor and M/s.
VSSB & Associates, Chartered Accountants as a Third party
Internal Auditor of the Company pursuant to provisions of
Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 in order to ensure
proper internal financial control.

INSURANCE:

The assets of your Company have been adequately insured.
Further, company has taken D&O Insurance for Directors &
KMP.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
(KMP):

Pursuantto the provisions of Section 152 (6) of the Companies
Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification or
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) Mr. Kamlesh
C. Gandhi (DIN: 00044852) Chairman and Managing Director

of the Company is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing
AGM and being eligible to offers himself for reappointment.

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on May 10, 2023 on
the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC), further recommends to the members of
the Company for re-appointment of Mr. Kamlesh C. Gandhi
(DIN: 00044852), as Director.

Necessary resolution for the appointment of the aforesaid
directors and their detailed profiles have been included in the
notice convening the 28" AGM and details of the proposal for
appointment are mentioned in the explanatory statement of
the notice.

Your directors re-commend his appointment.

All the directors of the Company have confirmed that they
are not disqualified from being appointed as directors in
terms of section 164 & 165 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Mr. Ravi Kapoor of M/s. Ravi Kapoor & Associates has
issued a certificate as required under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, confirming that none of the
directors on the board of the company has been debarred or
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as director
of companies by SEBI / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any
such statutory authority. A certificate to this effect has been
enclosed with this report.

Ratio of remuneration of each director to the calculation
of median employee’s remuneration and other prescribed
details

Details of managerial remuneration as required under Rule
5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given as per ‘Annexure
- G’ to this report.

REPORTS ON MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
ANALYSIS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

As required under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Management
Discussion and Analysis Report and Corporate Governance
Report are forming part to this Report annexed as “Annexure
- H” and “Annexure - 1".

SEXUALHARASSMENTOFWOMENATWORKPLACE:

Your Company is committed for creating and maintaining a
secure work environment where its employees can work in an
atmosphere free of harassment, exploitation and intimidation.
To foster a positive workplace environment, free from
harassment of any nature to empower women and protect
them against sexual harassment, and as per the requirement
of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 (“POSH Act”)
and Rules made thereunder, we have institutionalized the
Anti-Sexual Harassment Initiative (ASHI) framework, through
which we address complaints of sexual harassment at the
all workplaces of the Company. Our policy assures discretion
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and guarantees non-retaliation to complainants. We follow
a gender-neutral approach in handling complaints of sexual
harassment and we are compliant with the law of the land
where we operate.

We have also constituted a Special Complaints Committee
to consider and address sexual harassment complaints
in accordance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013.

During the year under review, there were no incidences of
sexual harassment reported.

DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT
COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL MECHANISM:

The Audit Committee consists of the following members:

1. Mr. Chetan Shah (Independent Director) — Chairman
2. Mrs. Darshana Pandya (Executive Director) — Member
3. Mr. Bala Bhaskaran (Independent Director) — Member
4.  Mr. Umesh Shah (Independent Director) - Member

Ms. Riddhi Bhaveshbhai Bhayani, Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer acts as the Secretary to the Audit
Committee.

The composition and scope of Audit committee inter alia
meets with the requirement of Section 177 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and in accordance with Regulation 18 of Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

No. of Meetings of Audit Committee held during the year: 4

Sr.  Date on which Audit Total Strength of No. of Members

No. Committee Meetings the Committee Present
were held

1 04.05.2022 4 4

2 03.08.2022 4 3

3 02.11.2022 4 3

4 01.02.2023 4 4

In Compliance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013
and Regulation 22 of Listing Regulations, the Company
has established a vigil mechanism and overseas through
the Committee, the genuine concerns about unethical
behavior expressed by the employees and other Directors.
The Company has also provided adequate safeguards
against victimization of employees and Directors who
express their concerns. The Company has also provided
direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee on
reporting issues concerning the interests of employees
and the Company. The board has approved a policy for vigil
mechanism which has been hosted on the website of the
Company. The web-link for the same is https://www.mas.

co.in/policy.aspx.
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DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RBI MASTER
DIRECTION:

The disclosures pursuant to Non-Banking Financial Company
- Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and
Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, is
annexed herewith as “Annexure - J”.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY
REPORT:

A Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report as
required under Regulation 34(2)(f) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2015,
is enclosed as part of this report, vide “Annexure - K”.

CREDIT RATING:

Sr. Name of the Instrument Current Rating

No.

1 Long Term Bank Facilities ACUITE AA-/Stable
Commercial Papers ACUITE A1+
Long Term Bank Facilities CARE A+; Stable
Commercial Papers issue CARE A1+

Non Convertible Debentures
Market Linked Debentures
Subordinated Bond

CARE A+; Stable
CARE PP-MLD A+, Stable
CARE A+; Stable

N oo b lwN

DISCLOSURE FOR MAINTENANCE OF COST
RECORDS:

The provision of Application of Cost Record in Compliance
of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 & in respect of section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the
Company.

THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY
PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY
AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016)
DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

During the year under review, the Company has not made
any application before the National Company Law Tribunal
under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 for recovery of
outstanding loans against customer and there is no pending
proceeding against the Company under Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT
OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE
TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE
WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE
REASONS THEREOF DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

It is Not Applicable to the Company, during the financial year.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

The Board of Directors wishes to express their heartfelt
gratitude to the Reserve Bank of India and other regulatory
authorities for their invaluable guidance and cooperation.
Their support has been instrumental in enabling the Company
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to operate effectively within the regulatory framework. The
Board also extends its sincere appreciation to all individuals
who have placed their trust in the Company and its
management. It is with deep gratitude that we acknowledge
the loyalty and confidence of over one million customers
across all the areas where we operate, as they have provided
us with the opportunity to serve them.

Collaborating with various NBFC-MFIs, NBFCs, and HFCs has
been an inspiring experience, serving as a catalyst for their
sustainability and growth. The Company looks forward to
fostering even stronger synergies in the future, continuing to
build mutually beneficial partnerships.

The entire MAS Team deserves recognition for their
unwavering commitment and relentless pursuit of excellence.
The core team at MA S plays a pivotal role in formulating and
executing strategic decisions, contributing significantly to the
Company’s development. We take this moment to express

our heartfelt appreciation for their continuous support, hard
work, and unwavering dedication. Their contributions have
been integral to the Company’s success.

We trust this journey will continue to be a pleasant one with
their support, aware of the fact that we have “Miles to go....
with the confidence that “Together We Can and We Will.”

Best Wishes,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Kamlesh C. Gandhi
Chairman and Managing Director
(DIN: 00044852)

Darshana Pandya
Director & CEO
(DIN: 07610402)

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 10" May, 2023
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Annexure - A

REMUNERATION POLICY

The policy is prepared is in accordance with the provisions of Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and Regulation
19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’), the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee recommended the following remuneration policy relating to the remuneration being paid to Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and other employees, which was approved and adopted by the Board.

This Policy is guided by the principles and objectives as enumerated in Section 178 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules made thereunder, each as amended (the “Act”) and Regulation 19 read with Part D of Schedule Il of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (“SEBI Listing
Regulations”), to ensure reasonableness and sufficiency of remuneration to attract, retain and motivate competent resources,
a clear relationship of remuneration to performance and a balance between rewarding short and long-term performance of the
Company.

This Policy reflects the remuneration philosophy and principles of the Company and considers the pay and employment
conditions with peers / competitive market to ensure that pay structures are appropriately aligned.

1. REMUNERATION OF NON-EXECUTIVE AND INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company pays sitting fees of ¥ 50,000/- per Board meeting and ¥ 25,000/- per Committee meeting attended by Non
Executive Directors in line with the provisions of Act. Apart from sitting fees, Company is not paying any amount to Non
Executive Directors.

2. REMUNERATION OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND KMP

The payment of managerial remuneration to Executive Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
Team will be reviewed and recommended by Nomination and Remuneration Committee which will be approved by Board
of Directors and/or shareholders as per applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations. Further
remuneration of Other Employees shall be decided/ recommended and approved by the management/ Executive Directors
based on company'’s HR Policy.

Further following point’s needs to be considered while making payment of remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management:

- The Remuneration and terms of employments shall be fixed/ recommended in such a manner that the structure is
clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks.

- The Remuneration involve a good balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance
objective appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

- The remuneration will be in correlation of company’s HR Policy.

- No directors or Key Managerial Personnel should be directly involved in determining their own remuneration or their
performance evaluation.

- The ‘fit and proper'status of proposed/existing directors and that there is no conflict of interest in appointment of
directors on Board of the company, KMPs and senior management.

- That the compensation levels are supported by the need to retain earnings of the company and the need to maintain
adequate capital based on Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP).

- The Non- Executive / Independent Director shall receive remuneration by way of fees for attending meetings of Board
or Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed such amount as may be prescribed by
the Central Government from time to time.

- An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option including long term incentive in the form of RSUs of
the Company.
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CRITERIA FOR IDENTIFICATION OF PERSONS FOR APPOINTMENT AS DIRECTORS AND IN SENIOR
MANAGEMENT:

Pursuant to provisions of section 178(3) of the Act read with Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations, the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee is required to formulate the criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes and
independence of a Director and senior management and for appointment of independent director the committee shall
evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a
description of the role and capabilities required of an independent director. The criteria adopted by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee for the aforesaid purpose is as under:

Qualification:

He/ she should be qualified and eligible as per the provisions prescribed under Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and should possess appropriate skills, experience, expertise and
knowledge.

Criteria for appointing a Director:

He should be knowledgeable and diligent in updating his knowledge and should possess adequate qualification, skills,
experience and expertise by which the Company can benefit and should be person of integrity, with high ethical standards.

Independent Director, in addition to above should fulfill the criteria for being appointed as an Independent Director
prescribed under Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule IV to the said Act and the provisions of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In addition to above Executive Directors should possess quality like leadership, vision, ability to steer the organization even
in adverse condition, innovative thinking and team mentoring.

In case of Re-appointment following additional criteria shall be considered:

Executive Directors: The committee will evaluate the performance during his/her tenure as Director of the Company as
well performance of the Company including all such other factors as required under Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other applicable laws as amended from time to time to
be considered for re-appointment of director.

Non-executive Directors (including Independent Directors): The committee will evaluate the performance during his/
her tenure as Director in the Company, attendance and participation in the meetings and contribution to the activities
of the Board and including all such other factors as per Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and other applicable laws as amended from time to time to be considered for re-
appointment of director.

Criteria for appointing a Senior Management Employee/ Key Managerial Personnel:

He should possess adequate educational qualification from recognized institution.
He should have integrity, hardworking, positive thinking and other skills as required for suitable position.
Detailed background information will be cross checked from reliable sources.

Criteria under Company’s HR Policy will be followed.
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Annexure - B

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED March 31, 2023

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members
MA S Financial Services Limited

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by #1 A § Financial Services Limited (herein after referred to as “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted
in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

We have verified the soft copies of records maintained by the Company. Based on our online verification of the books, papers,
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our
opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on Marh 31, 2023 generally complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism
in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by #1 A $ Financial
Services Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on Ma'h 31, 2023 and verified the provisions of the following
acts, regulations and also their applicability as far as the Company is concerned during the period under Audit:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;
(iiiy The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI
Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

(d) Securities And Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Debt Securities) Regulations, 2021;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with clients;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;

(vi) Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
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We have also examined compliance with applicable clauses of the following
1. Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
2. Provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

i)  The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Director, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors. During the year no changes took place in the composition of the Board of Directors
and the same is in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

ii)  Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent
at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the

agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

iii)  All decisions at Board Meetings & Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the
meetings of the Board of Directors or the Committees of the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations
of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period there are no specific events / actions having a major bearing on the Company’s
affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above.

For, Ravi Kapoor & Associates

Ravi Kapoor

Company Secretary in practice

FCS No. 2587

Place: Ahmedabad C P No.: 2407
Date: May 10, 2023 UDIN: F002587E000280590

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-A and forms an integral part of this report.
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To,

ANNEXURE A

The Members
MA S Financial Services Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts
are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4.  Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of laws, rules and regulations
and happening of events, etc.

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility
of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For, Ravi Kapoor & Associates

Ravi Kapoor

Company Secretary in practice

FCS No. 2587

Place: Ahmedabad C P No.: 2407
Date: May 10, 2023 UDIN: F002587E000280590
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Annexure - C

FORM NO. AOC - 2

(PURSUANT TO CLAUSE (H) OF SUB-SECTION (3) OF SECTION 134 OF THE ACT AND RULE 8(2) OF THE
COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014)

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred
to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transaction under

third proviso

thereto.

1. Details of Contracts or Arrangements or Transactions not at Arm's length basis. #1A $ Financial Services Limited (“the
Company”) has not entered into any contract/arrangement/transaction with its related parties, which is not in ordinary
course of business or at arm’s length during FY 2022-23. The Company has laid down policies and processes/ procedures
so as to ensure compliance to the subject section in the Companies Act (“the Act”) and corresponding Rules. In addition,
the process goes through internal and external checking, followed by quarterly reporting to the Audit Committee.

Sl No. Particulars Details
A Name(s) of the related party & nature of relationship N.A.
B Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction N.A.
C Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction N.A.
D Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value, if any N.A.
E Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions. N.A.
F Date of approval by the Board N.A.
G Amount paid as advances, if any N.A.
H Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required under first N.A.
proviso to section 188
2. Details of material Contracts or Arrangements or Transactions at Arm’s length basis for the year ended on March 31, 2023

Name(s) of the
related party

& nature of
relationship

Nature of Duration of
contracts/ the contracts/
arrangements/  arrangements/
transaction transaction

Salient terms of the contracts
or arrangements or transaction
including the value, if any

Justification for entering
into such contracts
or arrangements or

transactions.

Date of
approval by
the Board

Date on which the
special resolution
was passed in
General meeting as

Amount paid
as advances,
if any

required under first
proviso to section

188
1. MMA S Rural Rendering of One year MFSL agrees to provide MRHMFL isinrequirement 02.11.2022 No such N.A.
Housing & Services MRHMFL within the premises of the premises, assets amount
Mortgage the  amenities, services, and infrastructure which was paid as
finance Limited  (Agreement for facilities-Usage of commercial is available with MFSL. advances.
Amenities) premises of MFSL, furnitures So, to fully utilise the
& fixtures including computers, premises, MRHMFL
telephone lines, networks, use has requested MFSL to
of water and water supply, and provide several amenities,
other necessary amenities for services, facilities-Usage
carrying on business activities of commercial premises
smoothly. for carrying on business
smoothly.
2. MA S Rural Recovery Two years MFSL agrees to provide service MRHMFL being a 19.05.2021 No such N.A.
Housing & Agreement to MRHMFL of collecting subsidiary company amount
Mortgage outstanding instalments and carrying out business was paid as
finance Limited other dues from its customers of Housing Finance is in advances.

and agrees to provide the
said service under the terms
and conditions as set forth in
Agreement with MRHMFL.

requirement of recovery
services for collecting its
outstanding dues.
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Name(s) of the
related party

& nature of
relationship

Nature of Duration of
contracts/ the contracts/
arrangements/  arrangements/
transaction transaction

Salient terms of the contracts
or arrangements or transaction
including the value, if any

Justification for entering
into such contracts
or arrangements or

transactions.

Date of
approval by
the Board

Amount paid
as advances,
if any

Date on which the
special resolution
was passed in
General meeting as

required under first
proviso to section
188

3. MAS Rural Cross Charge One year MFSL agrees to provide several MRHMFL being subsidiary 03.08.2022 No such amount N.A.
Housing & Mort-  Agreement intellectual services to MAS company of MFSL carrying was paid as
gage finance Rural Housing & Mortgage Fi- out business of Housing Fi- advances.
Limited nance Limited (“MRHMFL”) from  nance and being managed
the Management of the Company by the management of the
to carry out the operations of the  MFSL, in requirement of
MRHMFL and considering time carrying out its operations
slot allotted to look into the activ-  requested for entering into
ities of the MRHMFL, the Compa-  cross charge agreement
ny to receive as amount as Cross ~ with MFSL.
Charge from MRHMFL.
4. MA S Rural Servicer Agree-  Until all the MFSL has appointed MRHMFL as  MFSL is in requirement of 03.08.2022 No such amount N.A.
Housing & Mort-  ment amount a servicer to collect and receive a Service Provider who can was paid as
gage finance receivable payments in respect of the Re- collect and receive pay- advances.
Limited by assignee ceivables and the Assigned As- ments in respect of the Re-

are received
in full.

sets, and to provide certain other
services.

ceivables on behalf of the
Company

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May 10, 2023
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Kamlesh C. Gandhi
Chairman and Managing Director
(DIN: 00044852)

Darshana Pandya
Director & CEO
(DIN: 07610402)
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DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

BACKGROUND:

The Objective of this policy is to provide the Dividend
Distribution framework to the stakeholders of the
Company.

The Board of Directors shall recommend Dividend
according to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and Rules made thereunder and in accordance with the
compliance of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and other applicable legal provisions.

Under Section 2(35) of the Companies Act, 2013,
“Dividend” includes any interim dividend. In common
parlance, “dividend means the profit of a Company,
which is not retained in the business and is distributed
among the shareholders in proportion to the amount
paid up on the shares held by them.” Dividend can be
paid on equity or preference shares both.

The Board may declare one or more Interim Dividends
during the year. Additionally, the Board may recommend
Final Dividend for the approval of the shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting.

The Company has had a consistent dividend policy
that balances the objective of appropriately rewarding
shareholders through dividends and to support the
future growth.

CLASSES OF SHARES:

The Company has issued only one class of shares i.e.
Equity Shares. Parameters for Dividend payments in
respect of any other class of shares will be as per the
respective terms of issue and in accordance with the
applicable provisions of the Act, rules and regulations
and will be determined, as and when the Company
decides to issue other classes of shares.

CIRCUMSTANCES UNDER WHICH THE
SHAREHOLDER'S OF THE COMPANY MAY OR
MAY NOT EXPECT DIVIDEND:

The circumstance that may generally be considered by
the Board before making any recommendations for the
Dividend includes:

e  Cost of raising funds from alternative sources.

e  Whenever the Company has incurred losses or
there is inadequacy of profits.

e Whenever the Company undertakes any
acquisitions or enters into joint ventures requiring
significant allocation of capital.

e  Future capital expenditure plans
e  Profits earned during the financial year

e  Cash flow position and applicable taxes including
tax on dividend, subject to the guidelines as
applicable from time to time.

e Any of the below referred internal or external
factors, including any regulatory restriction, if any,
restraining the Company from considering dividend;

FINANCIAL PARAMETERS:

Dividend shall be declared or paid only out of profits
computed as per the applicable provisions of the act and
rules made thereunder and other applicable laws.

INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL FACTORS THAT
SHALL BE CONSIDERED FOR DECLARATION OF
DIVIDEND:

e Distributable surplus available as per the Act, Rules
and Regulations;

e The Company’s liquidity position and future cash
flow needs;

e Trend of dividends paid in the past years by the
Company;

e  Payout ratios of comparable companies;

e Industry outlook and stage of business cycle for
underlying businesses

e  Prevailing Taxation Policy or any amendments
expected thereof, with respect to Dividend
distribution

e Loan repayment and working capital requirements;

° Financial commitments with respect to the
outstanding borrowings and interest thereon.

° Other Corporate Action options (For ex. Bonus
issue, Buy back of shares).

e Cost and availability of alternative sources of
financing;

e  Capital expenditure requirements considering the
expansion and acquisition opportunities;

e Any windfall, extra-ordinary or abnormal gains
made by the Company;

e Any otherrelevant factors that the Board may deem
fit to consider before declaring Dividend
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UTILIZATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS:

Retained earnings will be used for the Company’s growth
plans, expected capital adequacy/liquidity requirements,
debt repayments and other contingencies.

REVIEW:

The Board is authorized to review/amend this policy
from time to time at its sole discretion and/or subject to
revision/amendment in accordance with the guidelines
as may be issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Securities Exchange Board of India or such other
regulatory authority as may be authorized, from time
to time.

Details of dividend declared during the financial year

Name of the NBFC -

DISCLOSURES:

The Dividend Distribution Policy (as amended from time
to time) will be available on the website of the Company
(www.mas.co.in) and web-link shall also be provided
in the Company’s Annual Report of the Company as
required by the Regulations in force from time to time.

REPORTS:

The Company shall prepare a report that is to be
furnished within a fortnight after declaration of dividend
to the Regional Office of the Department of Supervision
of the Reserve Bank. The format of the Report shall be
the format prescribed hereunder.

Accounting Net profit for the
period* accounting period (% crore)

Rate of dividend
(per cent) (% crore)

Amount of dividend  Dividend Payout ratio
(per cent)

* quarter or half year or year ended - as the case may be
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Annexure - E

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACTIVITIES

[Pursuant to clause (o) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

1. Brief outline on the CSR Policy of the Company:

Corporate Social Responsibility is a Company’s sense of responsibility towards the community and environment in which
it operates. It is the continuing commitment by business to behave ethically and contribute to economic development of
the society at large.

MAS Financial Services Limited has always, been actively involved in various Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
activities. We are committed to making a difference by placing priority on giving back to our community and believe that
businesses can only be successful when they are engaged in making the world a better place.

During the year, the Company has undertaken various initiatives in the areas of Education and Community Welfare.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

The Company’s CSR Committee consists of one Executive Director and two Independent Directors of the Company, and is
chaired by an Independent Director. The composition of the Committee is set out below:

Sl Name of the Directors Designation / Nature Number of Number of meetings
No. of Directorship meetings of CSR of CSR Committee
Committee held attended during the
during the year year
Mr. Umesh Shah Independent Director Chairman 2 2
Mrs. Darshana Pandya Director & CEO Member 2 2
3 Prof. Bala Bhaskaran Independent Director Member 2 2

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are
disclosed on the website of the company:

The Composition of CSR committee, Company’s CSR policy and CSR projects are available on website of the Company

Composition of CSR Committee : https://mas.co.in/Constitutionof CSRCommittee.aspx

Company’s CSR Policy - https://mas.co.in/policy.aspx

CSR Projects’ : https://mas.co.in/CSRProjects.aspx

4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report): Not Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any: Not Applicable

6. Average Net Profit of the Company as per Section 135(5): ¥ 2,13,01,27,565/-

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): ¥ 4,26,02,551/-
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: NIL
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): % 4,26,02,551/-
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8. (a) Details of CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in %)

Spent for the Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule ViI as
Financial Year Unspent CSR Account as per per second proviso to Section 135(5)
(ing%) Section 135(6)
Amount (in%¥)  Date of Transfer = Name of Fund Amount (in %) Date of Transfer
27,84,054 3,98,18,497 April 24,2023 - - -

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against Ongoing Projects for the financial year:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 1
Sr.  Name of the Project  Item from  Local Location of the Project  Amount allocated for Amount spent Amount Mode of Mode of
No. thelistof  Area Project Duration the project (in 3) inthe current  transferred to Implementation Implementation
activitiesin  (Yes/ financial Year ~ Unspent CSR - Direct - Through
Schedule VIl No) (in%) Account for the (Yes/No) Implementing Agency
to the Act. State District prO{ect as per Name CSR
Section 135(6) o
in3) Registration
(in Number
1. “SHIKSHA Education ~ Yes  Gujarat Rural 3Years  Approx. 3,34,98/463.20  1564,722.00 3,19,33,741.20 Yes NA
PROTSAHAN" locations
- PROMOTING of Gujarat
EDUCATION IN RURAL
AREAS
2. "AROGYA ABHIYAN" - Health Yes  Gujarat Ahmedabad 1-3 Years Approx.83,74,615.8 832,100.00  7542,515.80 Yes NA
MEDICAL FACILITY TO
NEEDY PEOPLE
3. GRAIN DISTRIBUTION  Food Yes  Gujarat Ahmedabad 1-3 Years Approx.5,00,000.00 1,44,960.00 3,55,040.00 Yes NA
Distribution
TOTAL Approx. 4,26,02,551.00 27,84,054.00
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than Ongoing Projects for the financial year:
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Sr. Name of the Item from the list Local Location of the Project Amount spent Mode of Mode of Implementation
No. Project of activities in Area for the project Implementation - - Through Implementing
Schedule VIito  (Yes/No) (in%) Direct (Yes/No) Agency
the Act State District Name  CSR Registration
Number
1. 75" Independence Benefit of armed  Yes Gujarat ~ Ahmedabad 2,29,472 Yes Not Applicable
Day Celebration forces veterans,
- AzadiKa Amrit  war widows and
Mahotsav their dependents
TOTAL 2,29,472
(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads : ¥ 12,800/-

(e)
U]
(9)

Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable : NA
Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) : ¥ 27,84,054.00/-

Excess amount for set-off, if any : NA
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9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:
Sr. Preceding Financial Year Amount transferredto ~ Amount spent Amount transferred to any fund specified under Amount remaining
No. Unspent CSR Account in the reporting Schedule VIl as per section 135(6), if any. to be spent in
under section 135 (6)  Financial Year ~ Nameofthe  Amount (in%¥) Date of Transfer succeeding financial
(in®) (in%) Fund years (in %)
1. 2022-23 3,98,18,497.00 27,84,054.00 - - - 3,98,18,497.00
2. 2021-22 3,98,86,563.00 46,81,438.00 - - - 3,52,05,125.00
3. 2020-21 3,84,21,095.00 1,09,69,875.00 - - - 1,81,84,115.00
TOTAL 11,81,26,155.00  1,84,35,367.00 - - - 9,32,07,737.00
(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
Sr. Project ID Name of the Project Financial Year  Project  Totalamount Amountspent  Cumulative Status of
No. in whichthe  Duration allocated for  on the project amount spent the project -
project was the project in the reporting at the end Completed /
commenced (in% Crores)  Financial Year  of reporting Ongoing
(in¥ Crores)  Financial Year
(in % Crores)
1 FY31.03.2022_1  “SHIKSHA PROTSAHAN" - 2021-22 3 Years Approx. 2.44 0.44 0.61 Ongoing
PROMOTING EDUCATION IN
RURAL AREAS
2 FY31.03.2022_1 “"AROGYA ABHIYAN" - MEDICAL 2021-22 1-3 Years  Approx. 1.5 0.03 0.23 Ongoing
FACILITY TO NEEDY PEOPLE
3 FY31.03.2022_1 MA S "KHEL PROTSAHAN 2021-22 1-3 Years  Approx. 0.48 0.00 0.00 Ongoing
ABHIYAN"
4 FY31.03.2021_1  “SHIKSHA PROTSAHAN" - 2020-21 3 Years Approx. 2.30 0.50 1.43 Ongoing
PROMOTING EDUCATION IN
RURAL AREAS
5 FY31.03.2021_2 M1 A S MENSTRUAL HYGIENE ~ 2020-21 3 Years Approx. 0.05 0.01 0.02 Ongoing
PROGRAMME (PROMOTING
SANITATION IN RURAL AREAS)
6 FY31.03.2021_3  AROGYA ABHIYAN - MEDICAL ~ 2020-21 3 Years Approx. 1.50 0.59 1.03 Ongoing
FACILITY TO NEEDY PEOPLE
10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through
CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details): NA
(a) Date of creation or acquisition of capital asset(s).
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.
(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address
etc.
(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital
asset).
11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per Section 135(5):

Citing the ongoing project of the company, we would like to emphasize that our company is deeply committed to utilizing
funds efficiently and ensuring they reach the last mile of impact. While there may have been unspent funds for CSR, we
have a clear strategy in place to address this.

The unspent funds will be allocated to long-term multiyear projects, primarily focusing on education, constructing sheds
and providing basic hygiene facilities in remote rural areas. Additionally, we have identified various projects aimed at
promoting education, sanitation, health, and overall welfare to enhance the quality of life for all. Our CSR initiatives are
rooted in the well-being and betterment of lives.

As per our CSR policy and project alignment, funds have been earmarked accordingly. We have a long-standing history of
implementing social initiatives and positively impacting communities across the state. Our goal is to increase our CSR
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impact and expenditure in the upcoming years, while concurrently prioritizing sustainable development and responsible
infrastructure.

We assure you that all efforts will be made to cover the shortfall in CSR spending in the coming years. We are dedicated
to expanding our CSR initiatives, particularly in rural development, health promotion, and sanitation. Our aim is to reach
as many deserving students as possible, ensuring the benefits directly impact those in need. While the process may
require additional time, we remain committed to fulfilling the entire required CSR expenditure as per the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Mr. Umesh Shah Mrs. Darshana Pandya
Independent Director Director & CEO
Chairman of CSR Committee Member of CSR Committee
(DIN: 07685672) (DIN: 07610402)

Date : May 10, 2023
Place : Ahmedabad
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(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with

rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/

Part “A”: Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in %)

associate companies/joint ventures

Sl. Particulars Details
No.
1. Name of the subsidiary MAS RURAL HOUSING & MASFIN INSURANCE
MORTGAGE FINANCE LIMITED  BROKING PRIVATE LIMITED
2. The date since when subsidiary was acquired 10/10/2007 05/08/2022
3.  Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if Financial Year 2022-2023
different from the holding company’s reporting period (01.04.2022 to 31.03.2023)
4.  Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the Not Applicable
last date of the relevant Financial year in the case of
foreign subsidiaries
5.  Share capital Authorised: ¥ 45,00,00,000/- Authorised: ¥ 50,00,000/-
Paid up : ¥ 41,22,64,040/- Paid up : ¥ 50,00,000/-
6 Other Equity 3 43,89,96,399/- -
7. Total assets % 3,83,44,25,492/- %48,53,949/-
8 Total Liabilities %2,98,31,65,053/- 348,53,949/-
9 Investments 3 11,62,50,709/- Nil
10. Turnover 343,75,39,642/- Nil
11. Profit before taxation 3 8,09,28,734/- -1,47,051/-
12. Provision for taxation 31,74,82,505/- Nil
13. Profit after taxation 3 6,34,46,229 /- -1,47,051/-
14. Proposed Dividend %1,30,18,867.39/- Nil
15. % of shareholding 59.67% 69.00%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1.
2.

Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations — MASFIN INSURANCE BROKING PRIVATE LIMITED

Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year — NIL
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Part “B": Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

1. Name of associates/Joint Ventures N.A.
2. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date N.A.
3. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end Number N.A.
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture Extend of Holding%
4.  Description of how there is significant influence N.A.
5. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated N.A.
6. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet N.A.
7.  Profit/Loss for the year
(i) Considered in Consolidation N.A.
(i) Not Considered in Consolidation N.A.

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: NIL

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year: NIL

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
MM AS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Kamlesh C. Gandhi Darshana Pandya
Chairman and Managing Director Director & CEO
(DIN: 00044852) (DIN: 07610402)

Riddhi B. Bhayani
Date: May 10, 2023 Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Place: Ahmedabad Membership No.: A41206
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Annexure - G

0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars of Employees (pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended)

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read

with Rules made there under:

A. Information as per Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:

1. The ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of employees of the Company for the financial

year 2022-23:

Sl Name Designation Nature of Payment Ratio against median
No. employee’s remuneration
1. Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi Chairman and Managing Director Remuneration 146.83:1
2. Mrs. Darshana Pandya Director and Chief Executive Officer Remuneration 19.24:1
3. Mr. Bala Bhaskaran Independent Director Sitting Fees 0.94:1
4. Mr. Chetan Shah Independent Director Sitting Fees 0.74:1
5. Mr. Umesh Shah Independent Director Sitting Fees 0.65:1
6. Mrs. Daksha Shah Woman Independent Director Sitting Fees 0.35:1

2. The Percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company
Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year 2022-23:

Sl Name Designation Nature of Payment Percentage Increase /
No. decrease over previous year
1. Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi Chairman and Managing Director Remuneration 36.91%

2. Mrs. Darshana Pandya Director and Chief Executive Officer Remuneration 51.02%
3. Mr. Bala Bhaskaran Independent Director Sitting Fees Nil #
4. Mr. Chetan Shah Independent Director Sitting Fees Nil #
5. Mr. Umesh Shah Independent Director Sitting Fees Nil #
6. Mrs. Daksha Shah Woman Independent Director Sitting Fees Nil #
7. Ms. Riddhi Bhayani Company Secretary and Remuneration 42.69%
Compliance Officer
8. Mr. Ankit Jain Chief Financial Officer Remuneration 18.76%

# Independent Directors are paid fixed sitting fees for every meeting attended, amount of the same is not changed during the year.

3. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: The median remuneration of
employees was increased by 16.86% over previous year.

4. The number of permanent employees on the roll of the Company: 1154 Employees

5. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last
financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof
and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration: The Average
salaries of the employees of the Company increased by 18.34% while the Managerial remuneration increased by 37.15% in
the current year. Annual increments, if any, are decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee within the salary
scale approved by the members and as per the Policy of the Company.
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Information as per Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:

a) The Company does not have any employees who is drawing remuneration in excess of limit prescribed under section
197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014.

List of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn as on March 31, 2023:

Sr.  Name of Designation ~ Remuneration Nature of Qualification and Date of Age Last Number Relative of any
No. Employee (in lakh) Employment Experience Commencement Employment  of equity Directors
of Employment shares of the
Company held
by employee
1 Mr. Saumil  President & 65.46 Onroll  Bachelor of 01/08/1996 51 14,251 shares  Husband of
Dipakbhai ~ Head Retail Commerce Has more (0.0261%) Mrs. Darshana
Pandya Assets than 2 decades of Pandya
experience
2 Mr. Ankit T.  Chief 36.87 Onroll  M.B.A.Finance Has  01/04/2010 36 25 shares
Jain Financial more than 1 decade (Negligible
Officer of experience Holding)
3 Mr. Dipak M. COO - Retail 36.87 Onroll  B.E. Chemical & MBA 26/05/2008 40 4 shares
Dangar Asset Finance Has more (Negligible
Channel than 1 decade of Holding)
experience
4 Mr. Nishant ~ Chief Risk 35.68 Onroll  Chartered Accountant 03/05/2018 35 Jain Sons
Jain Officer Has more than 10 Finlease
years of experience Limited
5 Mr. Sunil Head 35.11 Onroll  Bachelor of 01/07/1998 53 488 shares
Shah Portfolio Commerce Has more (0.0009%)
than 2 decades of
experience
6 Mr. Gaurang Head - MIS 33.31 Onroll  Bachelor of 01/08/1996 47 338 shares
Arvindbhai Commerce Has more (0.0006%)
Kasudia than 2 decades of
experience
7 Mr. Bhavesh Head - 32.09 Onroll  Bachelor of 01/04/2004 42 Nishu 338 shares
D. Patel Accounts Commerce Has more Accounts (0.0006%)
than 2 decades of Consultancy
experience
8 Mr. Dhvanil  BDM 29.68 Onroll  Bachelors in Business 20/07/2011 30 34619 shares  Son of
K. Gandhi Administration (0.0633%) Mr. Kamlesh
Has more than a Gandhi
decade of experience
9 Mr. Ravi Credit 27.13 Onroll  Bachelor of 01/12/1999 45 188 shares
Mukeshbhai Incharge Commerce Has more (0.0003%)
Shah than 2 decades of
experience
10 Mr.Lokesh  Associate 25.40 Onroll  B.Sc. 11/04/2013 49 Pace Agro
M. Bhatt Vice Private
President Limited

Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company:

The Board of Directors of the Company affirmed that remuneration of all the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company are as
per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May 10, 2023
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For s1as FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Kamlesh C. Gandhi
Chairman and Managing Director
(DIN: 00044852)
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Annexure - H

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW
Global Economy

Titled ‘A Rocky Recovery’, the IMF's World Economic Outlook
— April 2023 reported that on the surface, the global economy
appears poised for a gradual recovery from the devastation
caused by the pandemic and, later, the conflict between Russia
and Ukraine. The reopening of the Chinese economy has also
contributed to the rebound and supply-chain disruptions have
been unwinding, while the dislocations to energy and food
markets caused by the war are receding. However, it also
observed that below the surface turbulence is building, and
the situation is quite fragile, as evidenced by the recent bout
of banking instability.

At the same time, the report pointed out that the large scale
and synchronised tightening of monetary policy by most
central banks should start to bear fruit, with inflation moving
back toward its targets.

The IMF forecast that global growth will bottom out at 2.8% in
2023 before rising modestly to 3.0% in 2024. It also expects
global inflation to decrease, although more slowly than
initially anticipated, from 8.7% in 2022 to 7.0% in 2023 and
4.9% in 2024.

Growth Projections (%)

Global Economy

Advanced Economy

Emerging Market and
Developing Economies

5 , 34 2.8 3 2.7 1.3 1.4 4 3.9 4.2
4

3 4

%

2 -

‘I -

0 T T T T T

2022 2023 2024 2022 2023 2024 2022 2023 2024

The growth is expected to come from emerging market
and developing economies, which are already powering
ahead with growth rates that are nearer 4%. The advanced
economies, especially the Euro area and the United Kingdom,
are creating the drag with growth expected to fall to 0.7% and
—0.4%, respectively, in 2023 before rebounding to 1.8% and
2.0% in the two regions in 2024.

The IMF cautioned that policymakers across the globe have
a narrow path to walk to improve prospects and minimise
risks. It suggested that fiscal policymakers should buttress

monetary and financial policymakers’ actions in getting
inflation back to target while maintaining financial stability.
Overall, it advised that governments should aim for a tight
stance while providing targeted support to those struggling
most with the cost-of-living crisis.

Indian Economy

Despite the distressed global economic landscape, the Indian
economy is expected to grow at a robust 7% (in real terms)
during the year ending March 2023, after posting a growth of
8.7% in FY 2021-22 according to the Economic Survey — 2023.

Annual Report 2022-23




S TRANCIAL SERVICE,
FINA! | -s LTD)

The Power of Distribution
Indian Economy Growth
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Some of the growth drivers were the credit growth to the MSME
sector, which was remarkably high, at over 30.5% on average,
during Jan-Nov 2022. The capex of the central government,
which increased by 63.4% in the first eight months of FY
2022-23, was another growth driver of the Indian economy.
The optimistic growth forecasts also stem from a number of
positives like the rebound of private consumption, which led
to a boost in production activity.

Another factor that contributed to growth was the near-
universal vaccination coverage, which enabled people to
spend on contact-based services, such as restaurants,
hotels, shopping malls, and cinemas. Private consumption
as a percentage of GDP stood at 58.4% in Q2 of FY 2022-23,
the highest among the second quarters of all the years since
FY 2013-14, supported by a rebound in contact-intensive
services.

The return of migrant workers to cities, to work in construction
sites, led to a significant decline in housing market inventory.
This was also supported by a strengthening of the balance
sheets of corporates and the robust capitalisation of public
sector banks, which were ready to increase their credit supply.

While several advanced economies struggling with banking
sector turmoil, bank failures, and contagion risks, the Indian
banking and non-banking financial service sectors remained
healthy, and financial markets evolved in an orderly manner,
according to the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) of the
Reserve Bank of India (RBI).

Outlook

The Indian economy is expected to witness GDP growth of
6.0% to 6.8% in FY 2023-24, depending on the trajectory of
economic and political developments globally, according
to the Economic Survey 2023. The survey also projects a
baseline GDP growth of 6.5% in real terms in FY 2023-24. The
RBI projects headline inflation at 6.8% in FY 2022-23, which
is outside its target range. A surge in the growth of exports
in FY 2021-22 and the first half of FY 2022-23 resulted in
acceleration in production.
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Lookingahead,the RBIMPC expectsthathigherrabiproduction
will improve the prospects for the agriculture sector and rural
demand, while steady growth in contact-intensive services is
likely to drive urban demand. If these impulses play out, the
consumption story will continue to power growth. Moderating
commaodity prices are also providing tailwinds.

Manufacturing and investment activity are expected to
provide a strong thrust to growth, with the government's
focus on capital expenditure and capacity utilisation reaching
above its long-period average. The only concern is that despite
the positive outlook, the global headwinds could impact the
Indian economy through a drag from net external demand.

To monitor these positive and negative risks, the RBI assured
that it will continue to balance financial conditions in line with
the productive requirements of the economy, even as monetary
policy moves decisively to withdraw accommodation. The
MPC predicts real GDP growth of 6.5% for 2023-24, with the
overall outlook remaining dynamic and fast-evolving.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW
Financial Services Industry

The Indian financial services industry is a dynamic and
evolving sector, poised for further growth and innovation. It
is a vital component of the country’s economy, providing a
range of financial products and services to individuals and
businesses alike. The sector has seen significant growth in
recent years, expanding into segments that were previously
underserved or overlooked in a bid to promote financial
inclusion. The industry is diverse, with a mix of traditional
players such as commercial banks, insurance companies,
and NBFCs, along with newer entities such as payment
banks and small finance banks. The sector is well-regulated
by the RBI, which has also allowed fintech companies to
enter the fray, bringing innovation and efficiency to the
industry. The adoption of digital technology has been
a game-changer, enabling organisations to enhance
customer engagement and deliver services with speed and
transparency.


https://pib.gov.in/PressReleasePage.aspx?PRID=1894932
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According to IBEF, rising incomes in India are driving the
demand for financial services across income brackets.
Further, there are over 2,100 fintechs operating currently,
positioning India to become one of the largest digital markets,
aided by the rapid expansion of mobile and internet.

NBFCs in India

The Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) sector plays
a significant role in the Indian economy, providing credit to
individuals, small and medium-sized enterprises, and rural
areas, among others. NBFCs have emerged as a key segment
in the financial sector, bridging the gap between banks and
borrowers who are underserved or excluded from traditional
banking services. In recent years, the sector has witnessed
significant growth, fuelled by a rise in demand for credit and
the emergence of new players. The sector’s resilience and
ability to innovate have been tested during times of economic
turmoil, such as the COVID-19 pandemic.

As the economy has moved past the impact of the pandemic,
the NBFCs sector is anticipated to experience a substantial
growth in both FY2023 and FY2024, following the rebound of
the economy. ICRA Ratings predicts that during these fiscal
years, the sector will witness a loan growth of 10-12% and
a rise in profitability by 50 basis points. The PCA framework
implemented by RBI has created a level playing field for
NBFCs with banks, thus enhancing corporate governance and
leading to sustainable growth in the sector.

Retail-focussed NBFCs are expected to grow by 12-14%,
whereas housing finance companies are expected to grow
at 10-12%, primarily due to an improvement in asset quality
and an increase in overall credit demand. Microfinance and
personal loans are likely to continue growing at a high pace
and lead the growth chart.

The report reveals that the NBFC sector has witnessed an
improvement in asset quality, with higher collections and a
lower-than-anticipated share of restructured portfolio. ICRA
envisages that the majority of stress from the restructured
book is likely to be absorbed in FY 2022-23 and slippages are
expected to remain range-bound.

The rising interest rates may put some pressure on net
interest margins, but this impact has been offset by the limited
rate hikes passed on to borrowers. With stable margins and
moderation in credit cost, NBFCs are expected to report a
return of 2.6-2.9% on managed assets in FY2023.

MSME Sector

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSMEs) are a
crucial contributor to the Indian economy, accounting for
around 30% of the country’s GDP, 48% of its exports, 95% of
industrial units, and 40% of employment in India. There are
approximately 633.9 lakh MSME units in the country. Despite
facing unprecedented challenges due to the pandemic, the
MSMEs in India have evolved, grown, and emerged stronger.
Forward-looking businesses in the segment have adopted

new technologies, digitisation, and branding via online
channels, breaking out of traditional ways of doing business.

A recent survey titled ‘'MSME Digital Readiness Survey 2022’
by PayPal revealed that 52% of small businesses saw a
favourable influence of digitalisation on their business once
economies reopened after two years of the pandemic. To
enable smaller companies to raise capital through the stock
markets, both the BSE and the NSE have established separate
trading platforms called SME exchanges. The founder of
MSME, a micro-advisory platform, expects over 10,000
companies to list on the SME Exchange in the next five to
ten years. Moreover, the Union Budget 2023 has announced
several proposals to promote inclusive development and
faster growth in the entrepreneurship ecosystem of the
nation.

Key proposals for the MSME sector include budget allocation
of around ¥ 22,140 crore, tax incentives, subsidies, ¥ 10,000
crore fund for technology and infrastructure development, a
national-level mentorship programme, easier access to credit,
and reforms to reduce the credit cost. Furthermore, the budget
has established funds for promoting entrepreneurship and
enterprise development in traditional sectors like agriculture
and handicrafts along with skill building, creating a more
enabling environment for MSMEs.

Housing Finance

The housing finance market in India is evolving, with various
players offering finance for homebuyers. However, HFCs
continue to dominate the market, and government initiatives
and incentives for affordable housing could further increase
the demand for housing finance.

Over the years, the government has initiated various reforms
that have led to a rise in incomes and standards of living
across the country. This, and other trends, such as a budding
preference for nuclear families, job mobility, etc., have
resulted in an increase in housing, over and above the existing
demand-supply gap. Banks and housing finance companies
(HFCs) are the two financial players that predominantly
cater to the financing needs of the Indian housing market.
While public and private sector banks, along with foreign
banks, provide loans to prospective home buyers, the home
mortgage finance market in India is largely dominated by
HFCs.

The demand for housing is not limited to urban areas, and
there is a need for affordable housing in rural regions as
well. To address this demand-supply mismatch, there may
be special incentives for customers and builders in this
segment. Government initiatives such as ‘Housing for All
have also created demand for housing finance, especially in
the low-income segment.

According to ANAROCK data, 2022 witnessed record high
housing sales and new launches across the top 7 cities in
India. The Union Budget - 2023 has further increased the
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outlay for PM Awas Yojana by 66% to ¥ 79,000 crore. This
increase in allocation could trigger acceleration in the demand
for housing loans, especially in the lower-income segment.

Automobiles

India’s strong engineering talent base and low-cost
manufacturing expertise has made the country an attractive
global manufacturing and export hub. According to the
Society of Indian Automobile Manufacturers (SIAM), a leading
automobile industry body, the automobile sector produced a
total of 2.59 crore vehicles, including Passenger Vehicles,

Automobile Domestic Sales Trends

Commercial Vehicles, Three-Wheelers, Two-Wheelers, and
Quadricycles in April 2022 to March 2023, as against 2.3
crore units in April 2021 to March 2022.

In India, two segments dominate the domestic auto market
in India - Two-wheelers and passenger vehicles. Total
Passenger Vehicle Sales increased from 30.69 lakh to 38.9
lakh units with the sales of Passenger Cars also increasing
from 14.67 lakh to 17.47 lakh, Utility Vehicles from 14.89 lakh
to 20.03 lakh and Vans from 1.13 lakh to 1.39 lakh units, in
FY 2022-23, compared to the previous year.

(in numbers)

Category 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22
Passenger Vehicles 32,88,581 33,77,389 27,73,519 27,11,457 30,69,499 38,90,114
Commercial Vehicles 8,56,916 10,07,311 7,17,593 5,68,559 7,16,566 9,62,468
Three-Wheelers 6,35,698 7,01,005 6,37,065 2,19,446 2,60,995 4,88,768
Two-Wheelers 20200117 21179847 17416432  151,20,783 13466412  1,58,62,087
Quadricycles 0 627 942 12 124 725
Grand Total 2,49,81,312  2,62,66,179  2,1545551  1,86,20,233  1,75,13,596  2,12,04,162
Source: SIAM

According to a report by Technova, amidst the global energy crisis and continued supply-chain disruptions, the automotive
industry players are exploring options to reintroduce the sector. By implementing cloud computing and electric vehicles
technology, the industry is entering fast into a revolutionised age with the primary aim of offering the consumer a value-added

experience.

Automobile Export Trends

(in numbers)

Category 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 [ XS]
Passenger Vehicles 7,48,366 6,76,192 6,62,118 4,04,397 577,875 6,62,891
Commercial Vehicles 96,865 99,933 60,379 50,334 92,297 78,645
Three-Wheelers 3,81,002 5,67,683 5,01,651 3,93,001 4,99,730 3,65,549
Two-Wheelers 28,15,003 32,80,841 35,19,405 32,82,786 44,4318 36,52,122
Quadricycles 1,605 4,400 5,185 3,529 4,326 2,280
Grand Total 40,42,841 46,29,049 47,48,738 41,34,047 56,17,246 47,61,487

According to IBEF, India is a major exporter of automobiles
worldwide, exporting 24% of total vehicles produced as of
FY2022. Indian automobile exports comprise two-wheelers,
three-wheelers, commercial vehicles, and passenger cars.
Various initiatives from the government for instance, Make
in India, strong connectivity, availability of infrastructure
and relations with key trade partners have contributed to
an increase in exports over the years. Strong demand for
vehicles owing to the recovery of the economy and alleviation
of supply chain-related issues helped increase exports.

COMPANY OVERVIEW

MAS Financial Services Limited was founded in 1995
and is a registered Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC)
regulated by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). The Company
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operates out of Ahmedabad and specialises in providing retail
financing services to the lower and middle-income groups of
society. Over the past two and a half decades, 1A S has been
dedicated to serving the financially underserved masses
across urban, semi-urban, and rural areas, both in the formal
and informal sectors of the economy.

MAS offers a diverse range of retail finance products to
cater to the varied needs of its customers. These include
Micro Enterprise Loans, SME Loans, Two-Wheeler Loans,
Commercial Vehicle Loans, Salaried Personal Loans, and
Home Loans. The Company’s operations are built on the
foundation of a highly experienced management team, a
huge borrower base, a diverse product mix, efficient liability
management, and a well-spread branch network.
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Distribution Network

The Company has established a strong distribution network
to provide its customers with top-quality services at their
convenience. Its operations span across 149 branches,
strategically located in Gujarat, Maharashtra, Rajasthan,
Madhya Pradesh, Chhattisgarh, Tamil Nadu, Karnataka, and
Delhi NCR. This widespread network enables the Company
to serve the underserved and capture a significant share of
the untapped demand in the hinterlands by providing last-mile
delivery of credit.

The Company’s in-depth market knowledge has helped it
establish strong and time-tested connections with MFls,
HFCs, and other NBFCs that offer similar products. By
forging robust value chains, MIA S has been able to extend
its financial services to the underpenetrated regions and
the Bottom of the Pyramid (BOP) segment. Its mission is to
penetrate the informal financial sector and promote inclusivity
by leveraging its distribution network and channel partners.

As of March 31, 2023, #1A S had catered to over 7,58,000+
active loan accounts across more than 9,250+ customer
locations through its robust branch network.

Partnerships with Various NBFCs

MAS has adopted a strategic partnership model to ensure
mutual success for all stakeholders — the Company, its
partners, and customers. In this model, 1A S collaborates
with various NBFCs, offering its domain expertise and
lines of credit, while partners undertake last-mile credit
delivery more effectively. This approach helps build stronger
networks and fosters customer trust. Additionally, leveraging
the operational efficiency and customer relationships of its
partners in relatively remote areas of India allows MAS to
improve its customer base without excessive investments in
physical infrastructure.

The model aims to help target clients approach the informal
financial sector to meet their financing needs. Furthermore,
MAS has established commercial arrangements with
various sourcing partners, providing a guarantee for a part
of a loan default. These revenue-sharing arrangements offer
a relatively stable revenue source for the sourcing partners,
making them attractive.

As of March 31, 2023, #iA S had 268 sourcing intermediates
for its Commercial Vehicle Loans and 242 for its Two-Wheeler
Loans.

The Company’s business expansion can be attributed
to its strong and innovative partnership with NBFCs and
NBFC-MFIs, which has resulted in the development of a
unique and robust distribution network. This has not only
strengthened the Company’s pan-India presence but also
mitigated the risk of overdependence on any one partner.
Furthermore, this partnership model helps to control
operating expenses and maintain credit quality, as the

NBFC partner is responsible for both sourcing the end-
customer and managing the risk of default.

As of March 31, 2023, the Company had 148 strategic
partner NBFCs. Out of the 148 partners in FY 2022-23,
around 47.97% fall within the AUM range of ¥ 50 — ¥ 500
crore allowing the Company to reach a larger customer
base in remote geographies and considerably reducing
the turnaround time for extending credit to customers.
Moreover, majority of its partners maintained a healthy
Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) of more than 20%, which is
well above the threshold limit.

Regionwise NBFCs and NBFC-MFI Partners - FY 2022-23
4

o East
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e North
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BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

MAS offers a diverse range of financial products and
services and is in a strong position to meet the financial
needs of customers in the low and middle-income
segments.

Performance of various Product Offerings
MSME Loans
Micro-Enterprise Loan (MEL)

MAS offers loans to small enterprises spread across
190 business categories, including retailers, traders, small
manufacturers, and service providers. The ticket size of these
loans ranges from % 0.5 lakh to ¥ 10 lakhs.

Small & Medium Enterprises (SME) Loan

The Company offers loans to SMEs engaged in manufacturing,
trading, or services, for the purchase of fixed assets, like
machinery or industrial property, and for their working capital
requirements such as purchase of stock, replacing trade
credit, etc. The ticket size of these loans ranges from % 10
lakhs to ¥ 3 crore.

In FY 2022-23, M A S provided loans amounting to ¥ 4,766.39
crore as MEL loans and ¥ 3,117.80 crore as SME loans. The
AUM for MEL loans stood at ¥ 3,874.16 crore and SME loans
stood at % 2,986.66 crore as on March 31, 2023 as compared
to ¥ 3,249.38 crore and % 2,274.80 crore respectively as on
March 31, 2022.
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44%
° SME Loans

56% ° MEL Loans

Two-Wheeler and Commercial Vehicle Loans

Two-Wheeler Loans

MAS offers two-wheeler loans to farmers, self-employed,
businessmen, professionals, and salaried customers in
urban, semi-urban, and rural areas. The ticket size of these
loans ranges from % 25,000 to ¥ 1.50 lakhs.

Commercial Vehicle Loans

The Company provides for the purchase of commercial
vehicles. The ticket size of loans for the purchase of old/new
commercial vehicle ranges from % 1 lakh to ¥ 15 lakhs.

MAS also assists individuals and businesses in buying bikes
for personal use or to expand their transport/distribution
business. In FY 2022-23, M1 A $ provided loans amounting to
%912.69 crore.

40%

 Commercial

AUM for Commercial Vehicles and Two-Wheeler Loans stood
at ¥ 926.84 crore as on March 31, 2023 in comparison to
% 722.62 crore as on March 31, 2022.

Salaried Personal Loans

MAS entered a new product segment of Salaried Personal
Loans during Q2 of FY 2022-23. It provides loans of upto ¥ 5
lakhs to the salaried individuals of the approved companies
to satisfy their needs. In FY 2022-23, #M1A S provided loans
amounting to ¥ 331.97 crore as Salaried Person Loans. AUM
for Salaried Personal Loans stood at ¥ 304.90 crore as on
March 31, 2023.

Housing Loans

MAS Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Ltd. (MRHMFL)
is a subsidiary of MAS. It was set up as a Housing Finance
Company (HFC) in 2008, to provide affordable housing loans
to customers in the low and middle-income group, especially
in semi-urban and rural areas. MRHMFL offers housing loans
to customers for the purchase, construction, or renovation
of their homes. It also extends loans to developers for the
construction of affordable housing projects. In FY 2022-23,
MRHMFL provided housing loans amounting to ¥ 175.14 crore.

16%

¢ Non-Housing

e Housing
84%

60% Vehicles
e Two-Wheelers As on March 31, 2023, the AUM for MRHMFLs business stood
at ¥ 413.34 crore as compared to ¥ 314.15 crore as on March
31,2022.
(Amount in % Crore)
Particulars Standalone Consolidated

Year Ended on
March 31, 2023

Revenue from Operations

Year Ended on
March 31, 2022

Year Ended on
March 31, 2023

Year Ended on
March 31, 2022

(Restated)
655.57

946.09

987.83 690.24

Other Income 3.00 1.51 2.43 0.93
Total Income 949.09 657.08 990.26 691.17
Total Expenditure 684.39 445.78 718.61 474.62
Profit Before Tax 264.70 211.30 271.65 216.55
Provision for Taxation (Including Current Tax, Deferred 63.74 53.75 65.83 55.35
Tax & Income Tax of earlier Years)

Net Profit 200.96 157.55 205.82 161.20
Profit Brought Forward 21 422.28 537.08 425.33
Net Profit after profit attributable to minority shareholders - - (2.56) (1.97)
Item of other comprehensive income recognised 0.04 (0.08) 0.05 (0.07)
directly in retained earnings - on defined benefit plan

Profit Available for Appropriation 734.21 579.75 740.39 584.49
APPROPRIATIONS:

Transfer to reserve u/s 45-IC of RBI Act, 1934 (40.19) (31.51) (40.19) (31.51)
Transfer to reserve u/s 29-C of NHB Act, 1987 - - (1.16) (0.87)
Final Dividend on Equity Shares (9.57) (8.20) (9.57) (8.20)
Interim Dividend on Equity Shares (9.84) (6.83) (9.84) (6.83)
Dividend distribution tax on Equity Shares = - = -
Surplus Balance carried to Balance Sheet 674.61 533.21 679.63 537.08

Note: Till the quarter ended 31st December, 2022, the Company opted a prudent practice of amortising the income over
the tenure of loans assigned instead of booking it upfront. This practice in management’s view ensures true and fair
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financial position of the Company. The same is a deviation
from the Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’. However,
during the quarter ended March 31, 2023, the Company
has received a directive from the Reserve Bank of India to
book such gain upfront in the statement of profit and loss
in accordance with Ind AS 109 instead of amortising it over
the period of the underlying residual tenure of the assigned
loan portfolio. Please refer note 32 of the standalone
financial statements for detailed explanation on changes
in accounting policy.

Details of significant changes in Key Financial Ratios

During FY 2022-23, Operating Expense Ratio (OE Ratio)
witnessed a change exceeding 25% or more as compared to
the immediately previous financial year. For FY 2022-23 on a
standalone basis, the Company’s Operating Expense Ratiowas
2.18% as compared to 1.59% for FY 2021-22. The cognizable
change in the Operating Ratio on a comparable basis can be
contributed to the expenses incurred on strengthening and
expansion of branches, centers, employees, and partnerships
including Fintech.

Details of changes in Ratios

On a standalone basis, during FY 2022-23, the Net Interest
Margin (%) stood at 6.92% as comparedto 6.53% in FY 2021-
22. The Debt Equity Ratio was 3.92 times as compared to
3.39 times for FY 2021-22. The Interest Coverage Ratio was
1.56 times in FY 2022-23 as compared to 1.66 times for
FY 2021-22. The Company'’s return on net worth improved
to 15.25% as compared to 13.64% for FY 2021-22 due to
operational efficiency and increase in profitability.

LIABILITY MANAGEMENT

MAS considers liability management as a critical function.
Prudent liability management has enabled the Company
to tide over challenges within the industry, as well as raise
adequate liability as per regulatory requirements.

Over the years, the Company has established strong bonds
and long-standing relationship with leading banks and
various financial institutions. It intends to leverage its strong
reputation, fund management experience and expertise to
deliver benefits for its clients and value for its stakeholders.
The Company continued to efficiently manage its Asset
Liability Management (ALM) with a strategy of a judicious
mix of borrowings between term loans, debentures, direct
assignment, and cash credit.

As on March 31, 2023, the total borrowings of the Company
stood at ¥ 5,908.21 crore. Around 85% of the asset portfolio
comprises of MSME loans, which qualifies as Priority Sector
Lending. The Company aims to maintain 20% to 25% of
AUM as off book through direct assignment and co-lending
transactions, which is with door-to-door maturity and without
recourse to the Company. This further strengthens the liability
management.

Source of Fund as on March 31, 2023

8%

Direct Assignment
(Incl. Co-lending)

o Cash Credit
e Term Loan
e Sub Debt

Non-Convertible
Debentures

Following prudent practices, the total Cash credit limit
available to the Company is ¥ 1,690 crore spread across
14 banks. The utilisation level is maintained at 65% - 70%
of the total Cash Credit Facility, ensuring sufficient liquidity
on hand.

As on March 31, 2023, the Company had a liquidity buffer of
around ¥ 800 crore and an unutilised Cash Credit facility of
around % 375 crore. In addition, the Company has a sanction
on hand to the tune of ¥ 1,250 crore in the form of Term Loan,
NCD and Direct assignment.

MAS has also assessed its structural liquidity for the period
ended March 31,2023 and concluded that there is no negative
impact on liquidity and the cash flow.

The Company has also stress-tested its liquidity model and
is comfortably placed to meet its repayment obligations for
the entire year.

RESOURCE MOBILISATION

Share Capital: As on March 31, 2023, the issued and paid-up
Equity Share Capital of the Company stood at ¥ 54.66 crore
consisting of 5.46 crore Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each.

Term Loan: For FY 2022-23, the Company availed term loans
amounting to ¥ 2,563.50 crore with an average tenure around
of 4 years.

Assignment of Loan Portfolio/Co-Lending: For FY 2022-23,
the Company has done assignment of portfolio/co-lending to
the tune of ¥ 1,674.41 crore.

Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs): For FY 2022-23,
the Company has issued NCDs (Including Subordinated
Debentures of ¥ 160 crore) to the tune of ¥ 510 crore.
CREDIT RATINGS

For FY 2022-23, the below credit rating was obtained from:

Acuite Ratings & Research

Acuite has reaffirmed its long-term rating of ‘ACUITE AA-
(read as ACUITE double A minus) on the ¥ 4,500 crore bank
facilities with ‘Stable’ Outlook.

Acuite has assigned its long-term rating of ‘ACUITE AA-'(read
as ACUITE double A minus) on the ¥ 1,500 crore bank facilities
with ‘Stable’ Outlook.
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Acuite has reaffirmed its short-term rating of ‘ACUITE A1+
(read as ACUITE A one plus) on the ¥ 300 crore Commercial
Paper Programme.

CARE Ratings

CARE has reaffirmed its rating of CARE A+ (read as Single
A Plus) on the % 6,000 crore Long Term Bank Facilities with
‘Stable’ Outlook.

CARE has reaffirmed its rating of CARE A+ (read as Single
A Plus) on the ¥ 250 crore Non-Convertible Debenture (NCD)
Issue with ‘Stable’ Outlook.

CARE has reaffirmed its rating of CARE A1+ (read as A One
Plus) on the ¥ 250 crore Commercial Paper Issue.

CARE has reaffirmed its rating of CARE PP-MLD A+ (read
as Principal Protected-Market Linked Debentures Single A
Plus) on the ¥ 475 crore Principal Protected Market Linked
Debenture (MLD) Issue with ‘Stable’ Outlook.

CARE has assigned its rating of CARE PP-MLD A+ (read
as Principal Protected-Market Linked Debentures Single A
Plus) on the ¥ 300 crore Principal Protected Market Linked
Debenture (MLD) Issue with ‘Stable’ Outlook.

CARE has assigned its rating of CARE A+ (read as Single A
Plus) on the ¥ 200 crore Subordinated bonds Facilities with
‘Stable’ Outlook.

CARE has reaffirmed its rating of CARE A+ (read as Single A
Plus) on the ¥ 200 crore Subordinated bonds Facilities with
‘Stable’ Outlook.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

MAS is committed to maintaining a strong and stable
financial position, with a focus on maximising returns
on capital employed while adhering to RBI guidelines.
The Company employs prudent capital management
strategies to achieve this objective and continuously
seeks to improve its practices in order to strengthen its
balance sheet. By maintaining a healthy balance between
risk and return, M1A S can provide sustainable value to
its stakeholders while maintaining a stable and robust
financial position.

CREDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

MAS acknowledges that risk management is a crucial
aspect of its operations. The Company recognises that risks
can originate from both internal and external sources, and
has instituted various measures to identify, evaluate, and
mitigate these risks.

MAS defines its risk appetite, functional policies, and key
risk indicators (KRIs) to explicitly determine the level and
nature of risk that it is willing to take. The Company’s risk
management structure proactively identifies and addresses
risks through risk assessment, arisk catalogue, a risk appetite
framework, risk planning, risk culture, internal controls, and
good governance.

To mitigate credit risk, MIAS has developed customised
credit analysis procedures for each product based on
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customer nature, loan purpose, and loan amount. The risk and
collection department continuously align credit and collection
policies, and resourcing, obtaining external data from credit
bureaus, and regularly reviewing portfolios and delinquencies
by senior and middle management teams. Additionally, A S
maintains sufficient spreads, offers relatively short tenure
loans, and resets lending rates periodically to mitigate the risk
of interest rate volatility.

At the end of FY 2022-23, the net NPAs of the Company stood
at 1.52% of total AUM. During the year under consideration,
it has extended loans with an average tenure of 22 months.
Besides, MA S has a well-diversified portfolio of borrowers
within its business segments. The inter-segment and intra-
segment diversity applies to a very large market size, serves as
a very potent protection against market risks that could occur
due to various macro-economic developments. Moreover, the
Company on a regular basis tracks the market developments
and undertakes appropriate actions whenever required.

OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS

MAS constantly monitors the external environments and
internal situation so that it is aware of the opportunities and
threats that emerge. This enables the Company to tap into
the positive prospects that come its way while overcoming or
bypassing the challenge of threats.

Opportunities
e Diverse loan book and pan-India presence to accelerate
growth

e Unique Business Model helps to minimise risk and
operating cost

e  Adequate capitalisation to support medium-term growth
plans

e  Brand recognition among lower income and middle-
income groups of the society spread across urban, semi
urban, and rural areas

e  Operates in underpenetrated business segment with
huge growth potential

e  Successful track record of catering to the MSME sector

e Initiatives by the Government to further boost MSME
sector

Threats
e  Unpredictable policy changes by the Government

e Increasing competition from local and global players

e  Higher exposure to semi-formal and informal sector
customers

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR
ADEQUACY

MAS has adequate internal controls and standardised
operating processes that are envisaged to protect assets and
business efficiency. The Company has established strong and
well-entrenched internal control procedures commensurate
with its size and operations and relevant to its broad domain
of the lending business.
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Internal financial controls have been developed for and
implemented at every business process across the Company.
This ensures strict adherence and compliance with statutes
and laws. Checks and balances and control systems have
been established to ensure that assets are safeguarded,
utilised with proper authorisation, and recorded in the books
of account. The Company takes a complete view of the credit
assessment process by framing credit screens based on
reliable demographic data and strict adherence of the same
with an element of adaptability. At the same time, there is
no compromise on the fundamentals of extending credit,
where it is outstanding. MA S is continuously strengthening
its due diligence, audit process, evaluation, and the
exposure matrix for all its NBFC partners. Internal controls
also include regular monitoring of operational expenditure
with an endeavour to bring it down through improved
efficiencies. The efficacy and adequacy of internal controls
and their execution are driven by the ethos of striving for
constant improvement. The Company’s Audit Committee
reviews the internal control system and looks into the
observations of the statutory and internal auditors. This
includes review of policies and procedures adopted by the
Company for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business and fixing responsibility against all the controls.
The management tests the controls across processes
and redressal of any deviations in business operations
is undertaken. The Audit function provide reasonable
assurance regarding the effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, safeguarding of assets, reliability of financial
records and reports and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations.

HUMAN RESOURCES

MAS recognises the crucial role played by its employees
in driving its growth and success. To this end, the Company
prioritises providing a supportive work environment that
fosters employee satisfaction and motivation to achieve
both personal and professional goals. M1A S has cultivated
an inclusive work culture that values responsibility and
instils a sense of pride in its employees, resulting in a high
retention rate.

The Company regularly reviews its business and people
policies to identify opportunities for improvement. It has
implemented strong talent management practices that
include development programs, productivity initiatives, and
reward mechanisms aimed at achieving organisational goals
and retaining employees. Furthermore, 1A S is committed
to supporting the continuous growth and development of its
workforce through Learning & Organisational Development
initiatives.

MAS also upholds the highest standards of corporate
governance, with its leaders and management team
demonstrating proactive involvement in the Company’s
strategic direction. The senior management team consists
of seasoned lending professionals with long-standing
associations with 1A S.

As on March 31, 2023, the employee strength of the Company
stood at 1,154.

OUTLOOK

NBFCs are becoming increasingly important players in the
financial sector, as they cater to the needs of previously
overlooked or underserved segments of the population. Their
market share and product range are expected to expand as
they target this vast and growing segment. Digital tools and
technology are already being used by NBFCs to enhance
their efficiency and customer outreach, and their clients will
continue to use their services as they rise in economic status,
provided they have positive experiences and are offered
suitable products.

In this dynamic landscape, MAS has a clear path forward
in terms of its approach to asset creation and liability
management. It plans to continue serving the LIG and MIG
class of customers in rural, semi-urban, and urban areas,
focussing on SME and housing finance as key growth drivers.
The Company intends to prioritise asset quality and profitability
to enhance shareholder value, with growth expected to remain
in the range of 20% to 25% over the next five years.

To achieve this growth and maintain healthy returns, A S
seeks to strengthen its distribution network in existing states
and explore potential opportunities in new geographies.
It plans to maintain an ideal debt resource mix and ensure
continuous flow of funds while optimising the use of capital.
The Company also prioritises operational excellence and is
committed to learning and improving efficiency in all areas
of operation.

DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

Till the quarter ended 31st December, 2022, the Company
opted a prudent practice of amortising the income over
the tenure of loans assigned instead of booking it upfront.
This practice in management’s view ensures true and fair
financial position of the Company. The same is a deviation
from the Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’. However,
during the quarter ended March 31, 2023, the Company
has received a directive from the Reserve Bank of India to
book such gain upfront in the statement of profit and loss
in accordance with Ind AS 109 instead of amortising it over
the period of the underlying residual tenure of the assigned
loan portfolio. Please refer note 32 of the standalone
financial statements for detailed explanation on changes
in accounting policy.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

This document contains statements about expected future
events, financial and operating results of MA S, which are
forward-looking. By their nature, forward-looking statements
require the Company to make assumptions and are subject
to inherent risks and uncertainties. There is significant
risk that the assumptions, predictions, and other forward-
looking statements will not prove to be accurate. Readers
are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking
statements as a number of factors could cause assumptions,
actual future results and events to differ materially from those
expressed in the forward-looking statements. Accordingly,
this document is subject to the disclaimer and qualified in its
entirety by the assumptions, qualifications and risk factors
referred to in the management’s discussion and analysis of
the Company’s Annual Report FY 2022-23.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Report on Corporate Governance pursuant to Schedule V (C) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the Listing Regulations) and forming Part of the Directors’
Report for the year ended on March 31, 2023.

COMPANY'’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE:

Your Company believes that effective Corporate Governance
is not just the framework enforced by the regulation but it
is supported through the principles of transparency, unity,
integrity, spirit and responsibility towards the stakeholders,
shareholders, employees and customers. Good Corporate
Governance requires competence and capability levels to
meet the expectations in managing the business and its
resources and helps to achieve goals and objectives of the
organization; It enhances long term Shareholders value
through assisting the top management in taking sound
business decisions and prudent financial management and
achieving transparency and professionalism in all decisions
and activities of the Company.

The Company is in compliance with the requirements
stipulated under Regulation 17 to 27 read with Schedule V
and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing
Regulations”), as applicable, with regard to corporate

CONSTITUTION OF BOARD:

governance and the Regulations of RBI for Non-Banking
Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit
taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016 (the ‘NBFC Regulations’), as applicable to the
Company.

Good Corporate Governance should provide proper incentives
for the board and management to pursue objectives that are
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders and
should facilitate effective monitoring. The Company acutely
and consistently reviews its systems, policies and internal
controls with an objective to establish sound risk management
system and impeccable internal control system.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

At the helm of the Company’s Corporate Governance practice
is its Board. The Board provides strategic guidance and
independent views to the Company’s senior management
while discharging its fiduciary responsibilities. The Board
also provides direction and exercises appropriate control to
ensure that the Company is managed in a manner that fulfills
stakeholder’s aspirations and societal expectations.

The Company'’s policy encourages having an appropriate blend of independent and non-independent directors to maintain the
independence of the Board and to separate the Board functions of governance and management.

a) The Board of the Company comprises six (6) Directors out of which one (1) is Promoter Executive Director, one (1) is
Woman Executive Director, one (1) is Woman Independent Director and Three (3) are Independent Directors as on March

31, 2023, the details of which are as below:

Name of Directors Designation Category Date of Total No. of Committee Membership/ No. of Equity
Appointment  Directorship chairman in other Domestic ~ Shares held as
including this Companies including this on March 31,
Company Company* 2023
Chairman* Members #

Mr. Kamlesh Chairman & Managing Executive Director 25/05/1995 6 63,40,508

Chimanlal Gandhi  Director (Promoter)

Mrs. Darshana Director & CEO Executive Director 23/09/2016 5 - 3 19,446

Pandya (Non-Promoter,

Non-Independent)

Mr. Balabhaskaran Independent Director ~ Non - Executive Director  25/05/1995 4 1 2 945

Mr. Chetan Independent Director  Non - Executive Director  06/06/2008 2 2 1 Nil

Ramniklal Shah

Mr. Umesh Independent Director ~ Non - Executive Director  21/12/2016 1 - 1 250

Rajanikant Shah

Mrs. Daksha Independent Woman  Non - Executive Director  14/03/2019 9 - 2 Nil

Niranjan Shah Director

A Committee includes Audit Committee and Stakeholder Relationship Committee across all Public Companies.
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# Details of Chairman in Committees:

Director Committee
Mr. Balabhaskaran 1. Audit Committee — a1A$ Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited
Mr. Chetan Shah 1. Audit Committee — a1A S Financial Services Limited

2. Stakeholder Relationship Committee — s A s Financial Services Limited

## Details of Membership in Committees:

Name of Director Membership in Committees
Mr. Balabhaskaran 1. Audit Committee - #iA s Financial Services Limited
2. Stakeholder Relationship Committee - M1 A $ Financial Services Limited
Mr. Umesh Shah 1. Audit Committee — #1A S Financial Services Limited
Mr. Chetan Shah 1. Audit Committee — a1A $ Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited

Mrs. Darshana Pandya 1. Audit Committee — #1A s Financial Services Limited
2. Stakeholder Relationship Committee — #1 A S Financial Services Limited
3. Audit Committee — s#1A $ Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited

None of the above Directors bear inter-se relation with other Directors.

The composition of Board complies with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”).

None of the Directors on the Board holds directorships in more than seven listed companies and none of the Independent
Director serves as an Independent Director on more than seven listed companies.

None of the Directors of Board is a member of more than ten Committees or Chairman of more than five committees across
all the Public companies in which they are Director. The necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions have been made
by all the Directors.

b) Names of the other listed entities where the person is a Director and the Category of Directorship:

Names of Directors Name of the listed entities Category of Directorship

Mrs. Daksha Shah Sadbhav Infrastructure Project Limited Non-Executive - Independent Director

Board Meetings:

Regular meetings of the Board are held at least once in a quarter, inter-alia, to review the quarterly results of the Company.
Additional board meetings are convened, as and when required, discussing and deciding on various business policies, strategies
and other businesses. The Board meetings are held at Ahmedabad.

During the year under review, Board of Directors of the Company met 6 (Six) times, viz May 04, 2022, July 06, 2022, August 03,
2022, November 02, 2022, February 01, 2023 and February 20, 2023. The gap between two consecutive meetings has been less
than one hundred and twenty days.

During the year, one circular resolution was passed with requisite majority on March 29, 2023.

The details of attendance of each Director at the Board Meeting and Annual General Meeting are given below:

. No. of Board meeting held No. of Board Meeting attended Attended the previous
Name of Directors

during the year (2022-23) during the year (2022-23) AGM (Yes or No)
Mr. Kamlesh C. Gandhi 6 6 Yes
Mrs. Darshana Pandya 6 6 Yes
Mr. Balabhaskaran 6 6 No
Mr. Chetan R. Shah 6 4 Yes
Mr. Umesh R. Shah 6 4 Yes
Mrs. Daksha N. Shah 6 6 Yes
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Directorship & Membership of Board / Committees:

Name of Directors

Directorship

Category

*No. of Committees

Mr. Kamlesh
Chimanlal Gandhi

. MAS Financial Services Limited#

Executive Director

. MAS Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited

Executive Director

. Prarthna Marketing Private Limited

Executive Director

Swalamb Mass Financial Services Ltd

Executive Director

. Finance Industry Development Council

Non-Executive Director

. MASFIN Insurance Broking Private Limited

Executive Director

Mrs. Darshana
Pandya

1
2
3
4.
5
6
1

. MAS Financial Services Limited*”

Executive Director

Audit Committee — Member
SRC - Member

. MAS Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited

Executive Director

Audit Committee — Member

. Swalamb Mass Financial Services Ltd.

Executive Director

. Prarthna Marketing Private Limited

Executive Director

. MASFIN Insurance Broking Private Limited

Executive Director

Mr. Balabhaskaran

=g |~ |wWwN

. MAS Financial Services Limited#

Non - Executive Director

Audit Committee — Member
Nomination & Remuneration
Committee — Member

SRC - Member

. MAS Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited

Non - Executive Director

Audit Committee — Chairman
Nomination & Remuneration
Committee - Chairman

. Swalamb Mass Financial Services Ltd

Non - Executive Director

. Kesavan Chandrika Foundation

Non - Executive Director

Mr. Chetan Ramniklal
Shah

1. MA S Financial Services Limited#

Non - Executive Director

Audit Committee — Chairman
Nomination & Remuneration
Committee — Member

SRC - Chairman

. MAS Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited

Non - Executive Director

Audit Committee — Member
Nomination & Remuneration
Committee - Member

Mr. Umesh Rajanikant
Shah

. MAS Financial Services Limited#

Non - Executive Director

Audit Committee — Member
Nomination & Remuneration
Committee — Chairman

Mrs. Daksha Niranjan
Shah

. M A S Financial Services Limited#

Non - Executive Director

. Saline Area Vitalisation Enterprise Limited

Non - Executive Director

3. Sadbhav Infrastructure Project Limited*

Non - Executive Director

Stakeholders Relationship
Committee - Member

. Altura Financial Services Limited

Executive Director

5. Rohtak — Panipat Tollway Private Limited

Non - Executive Director

. Rohtak — Hissar Tollway Private Limited

Non - Executive Director

~

. Sadbhav Jodhpur Ring Road Private Limited

Non - Executive Director

o]

. Sadbhav Kim Expressway Private Limited

Non - Executive Director

9

. Sadbhav Gadag Highway Private Limited

Non - Executive Director

Audit Committee - Member

*Committee includes Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee (SRC) across all

Public Companies.

# Securities of the Entity are listed on Stock Exchange.

Annual Report 2022-23




0 CORPORATE OVERVIEW @ STATUTORY REPORTS @ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

List of Matrix/chart of special skill:

Sr.
No.

Name of the Directors Skills/Expertise identified by
the Board

Specialization

Mr. Kamlesh C. Gandhi . Management & Governance
. Financial Services
. Integrity

. Ability to function as Team

Mrs. Darshana Pandya . Leadership Quality
. Commitment

. Future Vision & Innovation

Mr. Balabhaskaran

Mr. Chetan R. Shah

Mr. Umesh R. Shah

Mrs. Daksha N. Shah

He is Founder, Chairman and Managing Director of the Company. He manages
the Company with the guidance and support of the Board. He is a proficient
and experienced industry practitioner with a brilliant track record. He has over
two decades managed and propelled the Company’s growth. He holds Higher
secondary school examination certificate from the Gujarat Secondary Education
Board, Gandhinagar in 1983. His understanding and the vision is among the key
enables for the consistent performance of the Company.

She is having vast experience in Finance sector for past 26 years. She is a
commerce graduate who joined the Company in 1996 as a junior executive
and through her hard work, immaculate working and determination to excel,
accompanied by enabling support from the management; rose to the level of
Director & CEO. She is very dedicated towards her roles & responsibilities. She
is having good exposure in the Finance sector. During her career span, she has
successfully established and led many innovative services which have led the
organization grow. (i.e. created value in the organization). She is responsible for
leading the operations at M1 A S and also the relationship of the company with
its more than 90 NBFC-MFI & NBFC Partners.

He has over 26 years of professional experience and has in the past held
various positions with Shanti Business School as Director, PGDM, Gujarat
Industrial Investment Corporation Limited as Senior Manager (Overseas Cell),
Jyoti Limited as the Corporate Planning Officer, Bihar State Credit & Investment
Corporation Private Limited as Development Officer, Indian Institute of
Management as a researcher, Tata Merlin & Gerin Limited as Junior Engineer,
Khira Steel Works Private Limited as Trainee Industrial Engineer, and Reunion
Engineering Company Private Limited as Trainee Engineer.

He holds a bachelor's of technology degree in electrical engineering (power)
from Indian Institute of Technology, Madras, a post graduate diploma in
management from Indian Institute of Management, Bangalore and a doctorate
in management from Sardar Patel University. He is also a qualified chartered
financial analyst registered with the Institute of Chartered Financial Analysts
of India.

The Company is benefitted from the valuable experience, knowledge and
Expertise of Mr. Balabhaskaran.

He has over 37 years of experience in the financial services sector and has in
the past worked with the Natpur Co-Operative Bank as the Manager - Finance.
He holds bachelor's degrees in commerce and law (general) from Gujarat
University and He is also a qualified chartered accountant registered with the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

The Company is benefitted from the valuable experience, knowledge and
Expertise of Mr. Chetan R. Shah.

He has more than three decades of experience in the diversified fields connected
with Finance, Accounting, Auditing and Taxation. He is Bachelor of Commerce
and Chartered Accountant holding membership of the Institute of the Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI).

The Company is benefitted from the valuable experience, knowledge and
Expertise Mr. Umesh R. Shah.

She hasrich experience of more than three decades in diversified fields of Textile,
Chemical and Financial services. She worked as a Programme Director of Vikas
Centre for Development and Friends of Women's World Banking by serving and
building capacity of more than 80 Microfinance Organizations all over India. She
has served on the Board of various MFIs as well as Trustee of various Trusts
involved in social and humanitarian work. She worked as Managing Director
of Pahal Financial Services Pvt. Ltd from 2011 to 2014. At present she is the
Managing Director of Altura Financial Services Ltd since 2014.

She is a business graduate from Indian Institute of Management (lIM),
Ahmedabad, specializing in Finance and Marketing and also a student of
Economics and Statistics. She has undergone various courses such as the
course in Microfinance at the Economic Institute, Boulder, Colorado, USA.

The Company is benefitted from the valuable experience, knowledge and
expertise of Mrs. Daksha N. Shah.
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In the opinion of the Board, the independent directors fulfill
the conditions specified in Listing Regulations and are
Independent of the Management.

No Independent Director has resigned before the expiry of
their tenure during the year; therefore there is no requirement
to make any disclosure in the said matter.

Independent Directors and Evaluation of Directors and the
Board:

In terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
rules made there under, the Company has Four Independent
Directors in line with the Companies Act, 2013 and the
provisions of Listing Regulations. The terms and conditions
of appointment of Independent Directors and Code for
Independent Directors are hosted on the website of the
Company at www.mas.co.in. The Company has received
necessary declaration from each Independent Directors
under Section 149 (7) of the Companies Act, 2013 that they
meet the criteria of independence laid down in Section 149 (6)
of the Companies Act, 2013 alongwith in compliance in Rule
6 (1) and (3) of Companies (Appointment and Qualifications
of Directors) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time and
Regulation 25 (8) & (9) of Listing Regulations.

With the objective of enhancing the effectiveness of the board,
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee formulated the
methodology and criteria to evaluate the performance of the
board and of each director. The evaluation of the performance
of the board is based on the approved criteria such as the
board composition, strategic planning, role of the Chairman,
non-executive directors and other senior management,
assessment of the timeliness and quality of the flow of
information by the Company to the board and adherence to
compliance and other regulatory issues.

A separate meeting of Independent Directors was held
on March 30, 2023 to review the performance of Non-
Independent Directors and Board as whole.

Familiarization Programme:

The Company has adopted the Familiarization Programme
to familiarize Independent Directors of the Company.
The Company has held programmes for the Independent
Directors and some of such programmes carried out during
the year were as under:

+  Various presentations were made by the Senior
Executives, Statutory Auditor inter alia, about the
business of the Company and of its subsidiaries from
time to time, on different functions and areas, with
special reference to the nature of the industry in which
these companies operate.

. Deliberations were held and presentations were made
from time to time on major development in the areas
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of the Companies Act 2013, notifications including
amendments in existing regulations issued by
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI),
and amendments in circular of Reserve Bank of
India (RBI).

. Presentation related to the Risk Management Framework
including technological risk, operational risk, financial
risk, market risk, compliance risk, etc.;

. The regular meeting of the Independent Directors is
being held with Executive Directors to interact with
the strategy, operation and functions of the Company.
Further, the Independent Directors are provided with
opportunity to interact with the Management of the
Company and help them to understand the Company’s
strategy, business model, operations, service and
product offerings, markets, organization structure,
finance, human resources, technology, quality, facilities
and risk management and such other areas as may arise
from time to time.

The Company conducted Four (4) programmes during the
year 2022-23 and the time spent by Independent Directors
was in the range of 1- 2 hours.

It may be noted further that the independent directors
of the Company being persons of great eminence and
expertise were already well conversant with the business
and functioning of the Company, as also with other
aspects referred to in the above-said regulation. Further,
considering the variety of programmes conducted for
the independent directors, the particulars of number of
programmes, numbers of hours spent in such programmes
& such other details of familiarization programmes are not
being provided separately.

The Familiarization Programme, as adopted by the Board,
has been uploaded on the website of the Company at
www.mas.co.in and the same can be accessed through the

weblink: https://mas.co.in/policy.aspx.

Details of Committees:
A. Audit Committee:

The Company has formed Audit Committee in line
with the provisions Section 177 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of Listing Regulations.
Audit Committee meetings are generally held once
in a quarter for the purpose of recommending the
quarterly / half yearly / yearly financial result and the
gap between two meetings did not exceed one hundred
and twenty days. Additional meetings are held for the
purpose of reviewing the specific item included in
terms of reference of the Committee. During the year
under review, Audit Committee met 4 (four) times on
May 04,2022, August 03,2022, November 02, 2022 and
February 01, 2023.
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The composition of the Committee and the details of
meetings attended by its members are given below:

Name Designation Number of meetings
during the financial year
2022-23
Held Attended
Mr. Chetan Shah Chairman 4 3
Mr. Balabhaskaran Member 4 4
Mr. Umesh Shah Member 4 3
Mrs. Darshana Member 4 4

Pandya

The Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors of the Company
are invited in the meeting of the Committee wherever required.

Mr. Chetan Shah, the Chairman of the Audit Committee had
attended last Annual General Meeting of the Company held
on August 24, 2022.

The Company Secretary & Compliance Officer acts as the
Secretary to the Committee.

Recommendations of Audit Committee have been accepted
by the Board of wherever/whenever given.

A.

Broad terms of Reference:

The role of the audit committee shall include the
following:

(1) Oversight of the listed entity’s financial reporting
process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial statement
is correct, sufficient and credible;

(2) Recommendation for appointment, remuneration
and terms of appointment of auditors of the listed
entity;

(3) Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any
other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

(4) Reviewing, with the management, the annual
financial statements and auditor's report thereon
before submission to the board for approval, with
particular reference to:

(a) mattersrequiredto be included in the director’s
responsibility statement to be included in the
board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-
section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies
Act, 2013;

(b) changes, if any, in accounting policies and
practices and reasons for the same;

(c) major accounting entries involving estimates
based on the exercise of judgment by
management;
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(d) significant adjustments made in the financial
statements arising out of audit findings;

(e) compliance with listing and other legal
requirements relating to financial statements;

(f) disclosure of any related party transactions;
(g) modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;

(5) Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly
financial statements before submission to the
board for approval;

(6) Reviewing, with the management, the statement
of uses / application of funds raised through an
issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue,
etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes
other than those stated in the offer document /
prospectus / notice and the report submitted by
the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation
of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making
appropriate recommendations to the board to take
up steps in this matter;

(7) Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s
independence and performance, and effectiveness
of audit process.

(8) Approval or any subsequent modification of
transactions of the listed entity with related parties;

(9) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

(10) Valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed
entity, wherever it is necessary;

(11) Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk
management systems;

(12) Reviewing, with the management, performance of
statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the
internal control systems;

(13) Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function,
if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official
heading the department, reporting structure
coverage and frequency of internal audit;

(14) Discussion with internal auditors of any significant
findings and follow up there on;

(15) Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations
by the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal
control systems of a material nature and reporting
the matter to the board;

Annual Report 2022-23




S TRANCIAL SERVICE,
FINA! | -s LTD)

The Power of Distribution

(16) Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit
commences, about the nature and scope of audit
as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any
area of concern;

(17) To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in
the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared
dividends) and creditors;

(18) To review the functioning of the whistle blower
mechanism;

(19) Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer
after assessing the qualifications, experience and
background, etc. of the candidate;

(20) Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in
the terms of reference of the audit committee.

(21) Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances
from/investment by the holding Company in the
subsidiary exceeding Rupees 100 crore or 10% of
the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower
including existing loans / advances / investments
existing as on the date of coming into force of this
provision.

(22) Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits
and impact of schemes involving merger, demerger,
amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its
shareholder.

(23) The Committee shall review compliance with the
provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of
Indian (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015 at least once in a financial year and shall verify
that the systems for internal control are adequate
and are operating effectively.

(24) The Committee shall review & recommend any
variation in the remuneration of CMD, CEO and CFO.

The audit committee shall mandatorily review the
following information:

1.  management discussion and analysis of financial
condition and results of operations;

2. statement of significant related party transactions
(as defined by the audit committee), submitted by
management;

3. management letters / letters of internal control
weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

4. internal audit reports relating to internal control
weaknesses; and

5. the appointment, removal and terms of
remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be
subject to review by the audit committee.
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6. statement of deviations:

a) Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report
of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to
stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1).

b) Annual statement of funds utilized for purposes
other than those stated in the offer document/
prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7).

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE:

The Company has formed Nomination and Remuneration
Committee in line with the provisions Section 178 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of Listing
Regulations. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
meetings are generally held for identifying the person
who is qualified to become Director or Key Managerial
Personnel and may be appointed in senior management
and recommending their appointments and removal and
also to review key result areas and key performance
expected from the directors during the quarters and to
review remuneration paid to the directors, key managerial
personnel and senior management team. During the
year under review, the members of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee met 4 (Four) times on May 04,
2022, August 03,2022, November 02, 2022 and February
01, 2023.

The composition of the Committee and the details of
meetings attended by its members are given below:

Name

Designation Number of meetings
during the financial

year 2022-23
Held Attended

Mr. Umesh Shah

Chairman 4 3

Mr. Chetan Shah

Member 4 3

Mr. Balabhaskaran

Member 4 4

Broad terms of reference:

(1) formulation of the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of a director and recommend to the board of
directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of
the directors, key managerial personnel and other
employees;

(2) formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance
of independent directors and the board of directors;

(3) To identify persons who are qualified to become
Directors and who may be appointed in Senior
Management in accordance with the criteria laid
down and recommend to the board of directors
their appointment and removal.

(4) To carry out evaluation of Director’s performance.
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To recommend to the Board the appointment and
removal of Directors and Senior Management.

To recommend to the Board policy relating to
remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management.

To devise a policy on Board diversity, composition,
size.

To ensure that level and composition of
remuneration is reasonable and sufficient,
relationship of remuneration to performanceis clear
and meets appropriate performance benchmarks.

(9) To carry out any other function as is mandated by
the Board from time to time and/or enforced by any
statutory notification, amendment or modification,

as may be applicable.

(10) To oversee the framing, review and implementation
of Compensation Policy as and when applicable.

(11) To work in close coordination with Risk
Management Committee (RMC) of the Company to
achieve effective alignment between compensation
and risks.

(12) To ensure ‘fit and proper’ status of proposed/
existing directors and that there is no conflict of
interest in appointment of directors on Board of the
company, KMPs and senior management

(13) To perform such other functions as may be
necessary or appropriate for the performance of its
duties.

Remuneration of Directors:

The Company has not entered into any pecuniary
relationship or transactions with Non-Executive Directors
of the Company.

Further, criteria for making payment, if any, to non-
executive directors are provided under the Nomination
and Remuneration Policy of the Company which is
hosted on the website of the Company viz https:/

www.mas.co.in/policy.aspx

During the year under review, the Company has paid
remuneration to Executive Directors of the Company,
details of which are as under:

Sr.  Name of Designation Component Remuneration
No. Directors of payment  paid (Amount
in ¥ Lakh)
1. Mr. Kamlesh Chairman &  Salary 507.70
Gandhi Managing (including
Director bonus)
2. Mrs. Darshana Director & Salary 66.53
Pandya CEO (including
bonus)
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During the year under review, the Company has paid
Sitting fees to Non — Executive Independent Directors of
the Company, details of which are as under:

Sr. No. Name of Directors

(Amount in %)

1. Mr. Bala Bhaskaran 3,25,000
2. Mr. Chetan Shah 2,55,000
3. Mr. Umesh Shah 2,25,000
4. Mrs. Daksha Shah 1,20,000

The remuneration of the Executive Directors is decided
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee based
on the performance of the Company in accordance with
the Nomination and Remuneration Policy within the limit
approved by the Board and Members.

The Company believes that non-executive director's
compensation must reflect the time, effort, attendance
and participation in Board and Committee meetings. The
payment which is proportionate to attendance ensures
directors’ remuneration is commensurate with their time,
effort, attendance and participation. Accordingly, the
sitting fees previously paid to the Independent Directors
were fixed amount of ¥ 15,000/- per committee meeting
& % 25,000/- per Board meeting.

No other performance linked incentives or any other
fees are paid to any of the Directors.

The Company has not entered into any Service Contract
with the Directors, except agreement with the Managing
Director entered with Mr. Kamlesh C. Gandhi and Whole-
Time Director agreement with Mrs. Darshana Pandya
who is the Whole-time Director of the Company.

The Notice Period of the Executive Directors of the
Company is 6 months. Further, there is no notice period
for the Independent Directors of the Company.

The Company does not pay any severance fees to any of
the Directors.

Stock option details, if any and whether issued at a
discount as well as the period over which accrued and
over which exercisable: Not Applicable.

STAKEHOLDER'S RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

The Company has constituted Stakeholder’s Relationship
Committee in pursuance to the provisions of Section
178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
20 of the Listing Regulations, mainly to focus on the
redressal of Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievances, if any,
like Transfer / Transmission / Demat of Shares; Loss
of Share Certificates; Non-receipt of Annual Report;
Dividend Warrants; etc.
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During the year under review, Stakeholder’s Relationship
Committee 4 (Four) times on May 04, 2022, August 03,
2022, November 02, 2022 and February 01, 2023.

The composition of the Committee and the details of
meetings attended by its members are given below:

Name Designation = Number of meetings

during the financial
year 2022-23

Held Attended

Mr. Chetan Shah Chairman 4 3

Mrs. Darshana Member 4 4

Pandya

Mr. Balabhaskaran ~ Member 4 4

warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the
shareholders of the company.

D. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:

The Company has constituted Risk Management
Committee in pursuance to the Regulation 21 of
Listing Regulations as amended, to assess the risk
associated, mitigation of such risk and formulation of
Risk Management Plan.

During the year under review, Risk Management
Committee has 4 (Four) times on May 04, 2022, August
03, 2022, November 02, 2022 and February 01, 2023.

The composition of the Committee and the details of
meetings attended by its members are given below:

Complaint:

During the year, the Company had not received any complaints
from the Shareholders of the Company. Therefore there was
no complaint pending as on March 31, 2023.

Mr. Chetan Shah, the Chairman of the Committee had
attended last Annual General Meeting of the Company held
on August 24, 2022.

Name and designation of the Compliance Officer and the
Investor Grievances Officer:

Ms. Riddhi Bhaveshbhai Bhayani

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

6, Narayan Chambers, Ground Floor,

Behind Patang Hotel, Ashram Road,

Ahmedabad - 380 009

E-Mail: greivance@mas.co.in
Phone: +91-79-41106638

Broad terms of reference:

1. Resolving the grievances of the security holders
including complaints related to transfer/transmission
of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of
declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates,
general meetings etc.;

2. Review of measures taken for effective exercise of
voting rights by shareholders;

3. The equity shares of the Company are compulsorily
traded in electronic form on the stock exchanges and
hence the handling of physical transfer of shares is
minimal, the Company has no transfers pending at
the closure of the financial year. The Committee shall
also review services rendered by the Registrar & Share
Transfer Agent;

4. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted
by the listed entity in respect of various services being
rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent; and

5. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by
the Company for reducing the quantum of unclaimed
dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend
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Name Designation = Number of Meetings
held during the
financial year 2022-23
Held Attended
Mr. Chetan Shah Chairman 4 3
Mr. Umesh Shah Member 4 3
Mrs. Darshana Member 4 4

Pandya

Chief Risk Officer: Mr. Nishant Jain
Board Terms of Reference:

1. To formulate a detailed risk management policy which
shall include:

a) A framework for identification of internal and
external risks specifically faced by the listed
entity, in particular including financial, operational,
sectoral, sustainability (particularly, ESG related
risks), information, cyber security risks or any other
risk as may be determined by the Committee.

b) Measures for risk mitigation including systems and
processes for internal control of identified risks.

c) Business Continuity Plan

2. To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes
and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate risks
associated with the business of the Company;

3. To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk
management policy, including evaluating the adequacy
of risk management systems;

4. To periodically review the risk management policy, at

least once in two years, including by considering the
changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity;

5. To keep the board of directors informed about the nature
and content of its discussions, recommendations and
actions to be taken;

6. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of
the Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall be subject to review
by the Risk Management Committee.

7. To work in close coordination with Nomination and

remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Company to
achieve effective alignment between compensation and
risks
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In compliance with the Reserve Bank of India Circular No. DNBR (PD) CC.N0.099/03.10.001/2018-19 dated May 16, 2019
the Company had appointed Mr. Nishant Jain as the Chief Risk Officer of the Company, in order to carry out all functions and
discharge all responsibilities as per the terms of the aforesaid RBI circular.

E. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:
a. Annual General Meetings:

Financial Year Date Location of Meeting Time No. of Special
Resolutions passed
2021-22 August 24, 2022 The Company had conducted the Annual General 11.30 A.M. 3
Meeting through Video Conferencing (VC)/ Other Audio
Visual Means (OVAM) in line with the MCA Circular
2020-21 August 25, 2021 The Company had conducted the Annual General 11.30 AM. Nil
Meeting through Video Conferencing (VC)/ Other Audio
Visual Means (OVAM) in line with the MCA Circular
2019-20 December 09, 2020 The Company had conducted the Annual General 11.30 AM. 2

Meeting through Video Conferencing (VC)/ Other Audio
Visual Means (OVAM) in line with the MCA Circular

Following Special Resolutions were passed through remote E-voting and e-voting during the meeting, as per the procedure
prescribed under Section 108 & Section 109 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2011 under the overall supervision of the Scrutinizer, Mr. Ravi Kapoor, Practicing Company Secretary.

Resolution(s) Details of Resolution(s) Resolution(s)  Total No. of Total No. of % of votes in % of votes
Passed on votes in favour votes against favour against
Special Re-appointment Mr. Umesh Shah (DIN: August 24, 4,92,43,864 4,86,166 99.02 0.98
07685672) as an Independent Director 2022
of the Company for a term of 5 years.
Special Approval for increasing the Borrowing  August 24, 4,96,82,589 47,441 99.90 0.10
Powers under Section 180(1)(c) upto 2022
%10,000 Crores
Special Approval for creation of charges, August 24, 4,96,82,223 47,807 99.90 0.10
mortgages, hypothecation on the 2022
immovable and movable properties of
the Company under section 180(1)(a).
Special Approval for increasing the Borrowing December 09, 4,64,47,584 5,877 99.98 0.01
Powers under Section 180(1)(c) upto 2020
¥ 7500 Crores
Special Approval for creation of charges, December 09,  4,64,47,584 5,877 99.98 0.01

mortgages, hypothecation on the 2020
immovable and movable properties of

the Company under section 180(1)(a).

All of the aforesaid resolutions were passed by the shareholders by overwhelming and requisite majority.

The Company has not passed any special resolution last year through postal ballot.

The Company has not proposed any Special Resolutions through Postal Ballot during the year under reference.

F. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

a. Financial Results:
The quarterly, half-yearly and annual results are
published in widely circulating national and local dailies
such as “Free Press Gujarat” in English and “Lok Mitra”
in Gujarati language and are displayed on the website of
the Company www.mas.co.in.

b. Website:

The Company's website www.mas.co.in contains a
separate dedicated section namely “Investors” where

C.

shareholders information is available. The Annual
Report of the Company is also available on the website
of the Company https://www.mas.co.in/annual-reports.
aspx in a downloadable form.

Presentations/News Releases:

During the year under review, the Company has made
presentations to institutional investors / to the analysts
and it is available on the website of the Company https://
WWww.mas.co.in/investor-presentation.aspx. Further, the
Company has displayed official news releases which are
available on company’s website www.mas.co.in.
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GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION:
Company Registration details:

The Company is registered in the State of Gujarat, India.
The Corporate Identity Number (CIN) allotted to the
Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is
L65910GJ1995PLC026064.

Registered Office:

6, Narayan Chambers, Ground floor, B/H Patang Hotel
Ashram Road, Ahmedabad - 380 009, Gujarat.

Date, time and venue of the 28th Annual General
Meeting:

28" Annual General Meeting is to be held on Wednesday,
July 26, 2023 at 11:30 A.M. through Video Conferencing
(“VC") / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”).

Financial Year:

Financial year is April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2024 and
financial results will be declared as per the following
schedule:

Particulars

Tentative Schedule

Quarterly Results

Quarter ending on June 30, 2023

On or before August 14, 2023

Quarter ending on September 30,2023  On or before November 14, 2023

Quarter ending on December 31,2023  On or before February 14, 2024

Annual Result of 2023-24

On or before May 30, 2024

Dividend Payment:

The Company had paid an Interim Dividend of ¥ 1.80/-
(Rupees One decimal Eighty only) per share on
5,46,62,043 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- fully paid up (18%)
aggregating to ¥ 9,83,91,677/- (Rupees Nine Crore Eighty
Three Lakh Ninety One Thousand Six Hundred Seventy
Seven Rupees), during the financial year 2022-23.
The same was declared by Board of Directors in their
meeting held on February 01, 2023. The said dividend
was paid on February 17, 2023.

Your Directors are pleased to recommend a Final Dividend
of ¥ 1.85/- (Rupees One decimal Eighty Five Paise Only)
per Equity Share on 5,46,62,043 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/-
fully paid up (18.5%) aggregating to 10,11,24,779.55/-
(Rupees Ten Crore Eleven Lakh Twenty Four Thousand
and Seven Hundred Seventy Nine Rupees and Fifty
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Five Paisa Only) for the Financial year 2022-23, subject
to the approval of members in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting of the Company. The payment of Final
Dividend shall be paid to those members whose names
appears in the Register of Members of the Company or
in the records of depositories as beneficial owners of
Equity Shares as on July 19, 2023. The payment of final
dividend will be subject to deduction of tax at source as
per the applicable rate.

Tax deducted at source (TDS) on dividend:

As per the amended Income Tax Act, 1961, through the
Finance Act, 2020, there will be no dividend distribution
tax payable by the Company. The dividend, if declared,
will be taxable in hands of the shareholders. For details,
shareholders are requested to refer to the Notice of
AGM.

Book closure date:

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of
the Company will be closed from Thursday, July 20, 2023
to Wednesday, July 26, 2023 (both days inclusive) for the
purpose of 28" Annual General Meeting.

Listing on Stock Exchanges:

The Company’s Equity Shares are listed on the both the
stock exchange details of the same are given below. The
ISIN of the Company is INE348L01012.

Mumbai - 400 001
Scrip Code: 540749

BSE Limited National Stock Exchange
PhirozeJeejeebhoy Towers of India Limited
Dalal Street Exchange Plaza

Plot No. C/1, G Block
Bandra-Kurla Complex
Bandra (East)

Mumbai — 400 051
Trading Symbol: MASFIN

The Company’s Debt Securities are listed on BSE Ltd.

Annual listing fees for the year 2023-2024 have been paid by
the Company to BSE Ltd. & National Stock Exchange of India
Limited.
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h. Market Price Data:

Month Price of Company’s Shares
High (In %) - BSE Low (InX) - BSE

April, 2022 673.55 539.55
May, 2022 675.00 525.75
June, 2022 566.40 485.00
July, 2022 584.50 485.00
August, 2022 755.60 543.20
September, 2022 807.10 700.05
October, 2022 871.00 714.25
November, 2022 938.25 769.00
December, 2022 898.90 696.05
January, 2023 854.95 765.05
February, 2023 873.00 765.80
March, 2023 845.15 731.90

The performance of the equity share price of the Company at Stock Exchange at BSE is as under:

Month MASFIN Share Price at BSE** SENSEX**
April, 2022 643.45 57,060.87
May, 2022 551.10 55,566.41
June, 2022 494.65 53,018.94
July, 2022 539.20 57,570.25
August, 2022 752.45 59,537.07
September, 2022 736.30 57,426.92
October, 2022 767.85 60,746.59
November, 2022 851.15 63,099.65
December, 2022 811.65 60,840.74
January, 2023 791.50 59,549.90
February, 2023 814.45 58,962.12
March, 2023 803.65 58,991.52

** closing data on the last day of the month
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The Power of Distribution
Month Company'’s Shares
High (In%) - NSE Low (In%) — NSE
April, 2022 674.90 538.05
May, 2022 673.00 525.45
June, 2022 564.80 487.90
July, 2022 571.20 480.50
August, 2022 755.95 540.00
September, 2022 808.75 698.90
October, 2022 884.10 714.00
November, 2022 937.95 767.05
December, 2022 900.00 707.00
January, 2023 849.80 762.45
February, 2023 873.00 764.00
March, 2023 848.95 730.00
The performance of the equity share price of the Company at Stock Exchange at NSE is as under:
Month MASFIN Share Price at NSE** NIFTY**
April, 2022 640.10 17102.55
May, 2022 542.85 16584.55
June, 2022 494.05 15780.25
July, 2022 540.00 17158.25
August, 2022 752.10 17759.30
September, 2022 738.80 17094.35
October, 2022 765.60 18012.20
November, 2022 851.50 18758.35
December, 2022 810.70 18105.30
January, 2023 794.05 17662.15
February, 2023 815.25 17303.95
March, 2023 801.50 17359.75
19,000.00 1000
18,000.00 900
H
17,000.00 / W 800
16,000.00 //._/ 700
15,000.00 / 600
/\° 500
14,000.00
13,000.00 i i i i i i i i i i 400
N > N o » N A o v v v
AN SRR AN, e & & V@
VQ& @r‘) )\3 )0 V‘OQ’ %Q,Q OO éo QQ; Sb Qéo @’b

Annual Report 2022-23




0 CORPORATE OVERVIEW @ STATUTORY REPORTS @ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i.  Registrar & Transfer Agents: Branch/Correspondence Address:
Link Intime India Private Limited 506 To 508, Amarnath Business Centre — 1,
Registered Office Address: Beside Gala Business Centre,
C-101, 18t Floor, Nr. St. Xavier's College Corner, Off, Chimanlal Girdharlal Rd,
247 Park Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg, Sardar Patel Nagar, Ellisbridge,
Vikhroli (West), Mumbai — 400 083 Ahmedabad - 380006
Tel No.: +91 22 -49186200 Tel No.: +91 79 26465179 /86 / 87
Fax No.: +91 22 -49186195 Fax No.: +91 79 26465179

Email: mas.ipo@linkintime.co.in

Web: www.linkintime.co.in

j-  Share Transfer Procedure:

All the physical transfers of shares are processed by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents and are approved by the

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee.

Pursuant to Regulation 40(9) of the Listing Regulations, the Company obtains a Certificate from a Practicing Company

Secretary on yearly basis, for due compliance of share transfer formalities.

Pursuant to SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 1996 and SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulations,
2018, a certificate have also been obtained from a Practicing Company Secretary for timely dematerialization of the
shares of the Company and for conducting Secretarial Audit on a quarterly basis for reconciliation of the share capital of
the Company. The Company files copy of these certificates with the stock exchange as required.

k. Shareholding as on March 31, 2023:
a. Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2023:

Range of No. of Shares No. of Shareholders Shares held
From - To Number % Number %
1-500 23,746 94.4288 12,22,493 2.2365
501-1000 813 3.2330 6,02,147 1.1016
1001-2000 312 1.2407 4,39,208 0.8035
2001-3000 83 0.3301 2,04,390 0.3739
3001-4000 48 0.1909 1,66,099 0.3039
4001-5000 28 0.1113 1,26,505 0.2314
5001-10000 56 0.2227 3,97,452 0.7271
10001 and above 61 0.2426 5,15,03,749 94.2221
Total 25,147 100 5,46,62,043 100.00
b. Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2023:
Category No. of shares held Total No. of Shares % of Holding
Physical Demat
Promoter and Promoter Group - 4,03,00,654 4,03,00,654 73.73
Mutual Funds - 55,27,413 55,27,413 10.11
Banks/Fl/Central Govt./State Govts/ Trusts & - 4,90,654 4,90,654 0.90
Insurance Companies
Foreign Institutional Investors/ Portfolio Investor - 8,67,499 8,67,499 1.59
NRI - 1,96,197 1,96,197 0.36
Foreign Nationals - - - -
Foreign Companies - - - -
Bodies Corporate - 3,84,188 3,84,188 0.70
Clearing Member - 1,958 1,958 0.00
Directors / Relatives of Director - 33,697 33,697 0.06
Indian Public / HUF - 28,15,204 28,15,204 5.15
Trusts - 40,44,579 40,44,579 7.40
NBFCs registered with RBI - - - -
Alternate Investment Funds - - - -
Total - 5,46,62,043 5,46,62,043 100.00
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Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity:

The Company’s shares are traded in dematerialized form.
All the Equity shares of the Company are dematerialized
as on March 31, 2023.

The Company'’s shares are traded on the ‘BSE Limited’
and ‘National Stock Exchange of India Limited'".

Under the Depository System, the International Securities
Identification Number (ISIN) allotted to the Company’s
shares is INE348L01012.

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible
instrument, conversion and likely impact on equity:

There is no outstanding ADR/GDR, Warrants, or any
other convertible instrument likely impact on equity.

Commodity Price Risk / Foreign Exchange Risk and
Hedging:

Commodity Price Risk / Foreign Exchange Risk and
Hedging is not applicable to the company.

Site location:

The Company is in service sector and does not have any
Site / Plant locations. However, the Company operates
from its Registered Office only and has 149 branches as
on March 31, 2023.

Address of Correspondence:

i) #MAS Financial Services Limited
Ms. Riddhi Bhaveshbhai Bhayani
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
6, Narayan Chamber, Ground Floor,
Behind Patang Hotel, Ashram Road,
Ahmedabad - 380 009

E-Mail: riddhi_bhayani@mas.co.in
Phone: +91-79-41106638

ii) For transfer/dematerialization of shares, change
of address of members and other queries:
Link Intime India Private Limited
506 to 508, Amarnath Business Centre — 1,
Beside Gala Business Centre,

Nr. St. Xavier's College Corner, Off. Chimanlal
Girdharlal Rd.,

Sardar Patel Nagar, Ellisbridge,

Ahmedabad - 380006

Tel No.: +91 79 26465179 /86 / 87

Fax No.: +91 79 26465179

Email: mas.ipo@linkintime.co.in

Web: www.linkintime.co.in

Credit Ratings:

During the year, your Company’'s long term credit
ratings have been reaffirmed to ACUITE AA- with Stable
Outlook. Also, your company’s short term rating remains
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H.
a.

the highest ACUITE A1+ by Acuite Ratings & Research.
The Credit rating was obtained from Acuite Ratings &
Research on 315t July 2020.

Other Disclosures:

There were no materially significant Related Party
Transactions and pecuniary transactions that may have
potential conflict with the interest of the Company at
large. The details of Related Party Transactions are
disclosed in Notes to Financial Statements of this
Annual Report. The Board has approved a policy for
related party transactions which is uploaded on the
website of the Company at www.mas.co.in.

There has been no instance of non-compliance by the
Company on any matter related to capital markets
during the last three years except in one instance
where Company has made delay in furnishing prior
intimation under Regulation 29(2) of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 to the
stock exchange(s) about agenda of recommendation
of interim dividend and no penalties or strictures have
been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges
or SEBI or any statutory authority except in one instance
mentioned above however the Company has paid the
necessary fines with the Stock Exchange(s) for the said
non-compliance.

The Company has established a vigil mechanism and
accordingly framed a Whistle Blower Policy. The policy
enables the employees to report to the management
instances of unethical behavior, actual or suspected
fraud or violation of Company's Code of Conduct. Further
the mechanism adopted by the Company encourages
the Whistle Blower to report genuine concerns or
grievances and provide for adequate safe guards
against victimization of the Whistle Blower who avails
of such mechanism and also provides for direct access
to the Chairman of the Audit Committee, in exceptional
cases. The functioning of vigil mechanism is reviewed
by the Audit Committee from time to time. None of the
Whistle blowers has been denied access to the Audit
Committee of the Board. The Whistle Blower Policy of
the Company is available on the website of the Company
at www.mas.co.in.

The Company has complied with all mandatory
requirements laid down by the Regulation 27 of the
Listing Regulations. The non-mandatory requirements
complied with wherever requires and the same has been
disclosed at the relevant places.

The Company has two Subsidiary Companies and
therefore, the Company has adopted Policy for
determining Material Subsidiary which is uploaded on
the website of the Company at www.mas.co.in and the

weblink for the same is https://mas.co.in/policy.aspx.
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The details of Subsidiary Companies are as under:

Name of the Subsidiary Company

Date & Place of Incorporation

Statutory Auditors

MAS Rural Housing and Mortgage
Finance Ltd.

July 24,2007, Ahmedabad

M/s. MAAK & Associates has been appointed as Statutory
Auditor of the company on June 22, 2022

MASFIN Insurance Broking Private
Limited

August 05, 2022, Ahmedabad

M/s. Mukesh M. Shah & Co. has been appointed as Statutory
Auditor of the company on September 03, 2022

f. ~ The Company has adopted Related Party Transactions
Policy which is uploaded on the website of the Company
at www.mas.co.in and the weblink of the same is https://

mas.co.in/policy.aspx.

g. Commodity Price Risk / Foreign Exchange Risk and
Hedging is not applicable to the company.

h. Company has not raised funds through preferential
allotment or qualified institutions placement therefore
details regarding utilization of funds raised through
preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement
as specified under Regulation 32(7A) is Not Applicable
to the Company, except for the issuance of NCDs on a
private placement basis.

i.  The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial
Officer have furnished a Certificate to the Board for
the year ended on March 31, 2023 in compliance with
Regulation 17(8) of Listing Regulations. The certificate
is appended as an Annexure to this report. They have
also provided quarterly certificates on financial results
while placing the same before the Board pursuant to
Regulation 33 of Listing Regulations.

j. A qualified Practicing Company Secretary carried out a
reconciliation of Share Capital Audit to reconcile the total
admitted capital with National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India)
Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed capital.
The Secretarial Audit confirms that the total issued/paid-
up capital of the Company is in agreement with the total
number of shares in physical form and the total number
of dematerialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL.

k.  We have obtained a certificate from Practicing Company
Secretary that none of the directors on the board of the
company have been debarred or disqualified from being
appointed or continuing as directors of companies by
the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such
statutory authority.

I. There were no circumstances where board had no
accepted any recommendation of any committee of the
board during the year.

m. Total fees paid for the services to the statutory auditors
is ¥ 45,68,600/- Lakh for the financial year 2022-23.

Particulars Amount in Lakhs
Statutory audit 19.84
Limited review of quarterly results 25.41
Other Services 0.44
Reimbursements of expenses 0
Total 45.69

n. As per the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of

Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013, the Company has constituted a
Special Complaints Committee. During the year 2022-
23, no complaints were received by the Committee.

o. disclosure by Company and its subsidiaries of ‘Loans

and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies
in which directors are interested by name and amount’:

The designated Senior Management Personnel of the
Company have disclosed to the Board that no material,
financial and commercial transactions have been made
during the year under review in which they have personal
interest, which may have a potential conflict with the
interest of the Company at large.

Sr. No. Name of the Senior Nature of Amount
Management Transaction (% In Crores)
Personnel
Nil

p. The Company has also adopted Material Events Policy,

and Policy on Preservation of Documents which is
uploaded on the website of the Company at www.mas.
co.in and the weblink of the same is https://mas.co.in/
policy.aspx.

g. Details of the familiarization programme of the

independent directors are available on the website of the
company at www.mas.co.in and the weblink of the same

is https:/mas.co.in/policy.aspx.

With a view to regulate trading in securities by the
directors and designated employees, the Company has
adopted a Code of Conduct for Prohibition of Insider
Trading www.mas.co.in.

s. The Company has complied with all the mandatory

requirements specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and
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clauses (b) to (i) of sub — regulation (2) of Regulation
46 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. It has obtained a
certificate affirming the compliance of Conditions
of Corporate Governance from Practising Company
Secretary, CS Ravi Kapoor and the same is attached to
this Report.

The Company has executed the Listing Agreement with
the BSE Ltd. and the National Stock Exchange of India
pursuant to Listing Regulations.

As required under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, particulars of Director seeking
appointment/re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM
are mentioned and in the Annexure to the Notice of the
28" AGM to be held on July 26, 2023.

In the preparation of the financial statements, the
Company has followed the accounting policies and
practices as prescribed in the Accounting Standards.

The Company does not have any demat suspense
account/unclaimed suspense account and therefore,
the details pertaining the same are not given.

During the year under review, there were no complaint
i.e. incidences of sexual harassment reported.

There is no non-compliance of any requirement of
Corporate Governance Report of sub-para (2) to (10)
of Schedule V read with Regulation 34(3) of SEBI LODR
Regulations.

There are no promoter’s shares in Lock-in.

The Company has complied with all the mandatory
requirements of the SEBI Listing Regulations including
but not limited to the provisions of regulations 17 to 27
and 46(2)(b) to (i) of the said Regulations.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
M A S FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Kamlesh C. Gandhi
Chairman and Managing Director
(DIN: 00044852)

Darshana Pandya
Director & CEO
(DIN: 07610402)

Riddhi Bhayani
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Membership No.: A41206

Date : May 10, 2023
Place : Ahmedabad
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CERTIFICATE OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

We, Mrs. Darshana Pandya, Director & Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Ankit Jain, Chief Financial Officer of #1A S FINANCIAL
SERVICES LIMITED certify that:

We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023
and to the best of our knowledge and belief:

i.  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that
might be misleading.

ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

iii. To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year ended March 31,
2023 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

iv. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal control system and that we have evaluated the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit
Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of internal control system, if any, of which we are aware and the steps
we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

v.  We further certify that we have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee:
a. There have been no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting system during the year;

b.  There have been no significant changes in accounting policies during the year except for the changes disclosed in
the note no. 32 to the standalone financial statements; and

c. There have been no instances of significant fraud, of which we have become aware, involving management or any
employee having a significant role in the Company'’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Darshana Pandya Ankit Jain
Director & Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
(DIN: 07610402)

Date: May 10, 2023
Place: Ahmedabad

DECLARATION

|, Darshana Pandya, Director & Chief Executive Officer of #1A$ Financial Services Limited hereby declare that as of March
31, 2023 all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct and
Ethics for Directors and Senior Management Personnel laid down by the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Darshana Pandya
Director & Chief Executive Officer
(DIN: 07610402)
Date: May 10, 2023

Place: Ahmedabad
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

[pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To,

The Members of

MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
6, Narayan Chambers Ground Floor
B/H Patang Hotel, Ashram Road,
Ahmedabad - 380 009.

We have examined online the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of MA S
Financial Services Limited having CIN L65910GJ1995PLC026064 and having registered office at 6, Narayan Chambers Ground
Floor, B/H Patang Hotel, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad — 380 009. (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us
by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C
Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number
(DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its
officers, We hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending
on March 31, 2023 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in Company
1 Kamlesh Chimanlal Gandhi 00044852 25/03/2010
2 Daksha Niranjan Shah 00376899 14/03/2019
3 Balabhaskaran 00393346 25/05/1995
4 Chetankumar Ramniklal Shah 02213542 06/06/2008
5 Darshana Saumil Pandya 07610402 23/09/2016
6 Umesh Rajanikant Shah 07685672 21/12/2016

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management
of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For, Ravi Kapoor and Associates

Ravi Kapoor

Proprietor

Mem. No FCS. 2587

Date: May 10, 2023 CP No. 2407
Place: Ahmedabad UDIN: FO02587E000388115
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,
The Members of
M A S FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

We have examined the Compliance Conditions of Corporate Governance by M A S FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED for the year
ended on March 31, 2023 as per Para E of Schedule V read with Regulation 34(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) for the period 01t April, 2022 to
March 31, 2023. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of certification.

The Compliance of Conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to
review of the procedures and implementations thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions
of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the representation made
by the Directors and the Management, we certify that the Company has materially complied with the conditions of Corporate

Governance as stipulated in Listing Regulations.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For, Ravi Kapoor and Associates

Ravi Kapoor

Proprietor

Mem. No FCS. 2587

Date: May 10, 2023 CP No. 2407
Place: Ahmedabad UDIN: F0O02587E000388115
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Annexure - J

Disclosures pursuant to Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit
taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 last updated June 14, 2022 (“said Master Direction”).

*  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Pursuant to clause 4.3 of Annex XIV of the said Master Direction)

(1) Details of all material transaction with related parties are disclosed at Note No. 36 to the Standalone Financial
Statements and Note No. 36 to the Consolidated Financial Statements;

(2) The web-link for the policy on dealing with the Related Party Transactions is https://mas.co.in/policy.aspx
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Annexure - K

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY & SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

SECTION A: GENERAL DISCLOSURES

Details of the listed entity

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Listed
Entity

L65910GJ1995PLC026064

2. Name of the Listed Entity MA S Financial Services Limited
3. Year of incorporation 1995
4 Registered office address 6 Ground Floor, Narayan Chambers, B/h Patang Hotel, Ashram Road,
Ahmedabad, Gujarat — 380009
5.  Corporate address 6 Ground Floor, Narayan Chambers, B/h Patang Hotel, Ashram Road,
Ahmedabad, Gujarat — 380009
6.  E-mail mfsl@mas.co.in
7.  Telephone 079-41106500
8.  Website WWWw.mas.co.in
9.  Financial year for which reporting is being done  April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023
10 Name of the Stock Exchange(s) where shares BSE Ltd. and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.
are listed
11. Paid-up Capital 3 54,66,20,430/-
12. Name and contact details (telephone, email Name: Ms. Riddhi Bhayani
?ndggzzsc)) fO;n;hsquiI:;ZnV\;Ez ;;aSber(Z:ngaCted Designation: Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
E-mail Id: riddhi_bhayani@mas.co.in
Contact Number: 079-41106638
13. Reporting boundary - Are the disclosures under this Standalone basis

report made on a standalone basis (i.e. only for
the entity) or on a consolidated basis (i.e. for the
entity and all the entities which form a part of its
consolidated financial statements, taken together). :

Products/services

14. Details of business activities (accounting for 90% of the turnover):

S. No.

Description of Main Activity

Description of Business Activity % of Turnover of the entity

1.

Financial service activities, except insurance and Other financial activities 97.42%

Pension funding

15. Products/Services sold by the entity (accounting for 90% of the entity’s Turnover):

S. No.

Product/Service

NIC Code % of total Turnover Contributed

1.

Non-Banking Finance Company engaged in lending 65923 97.42%

and allied activities
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lll. Operations

16. Number of locations where plants and/or operations/offices of the entity are situated:

Location Number of plants Number of offices* Total

National. 149 149
. NA

International NA NA

*includes branches and corporate office as on March 31, 2023.

17. Markets served by the entity:

a. Number of locations

Location Total
National (No. of States) 7 States and NCR of Delhi
International (No. of Countries) NA

* Includes states and union territories as on March 31, 2023.
b.  What is the contribution of exports as a percentage of the total turnover of the entity: Nil

c. Abrief ontypes of customers: M1 A S Financial Services Limited caters a diverse range of financial products and services.
Our primary focus lies in delivering dependable and accessible financial services to those in need. We strive to support
small and medium enterprises by providing tailored financial solutions, while also offering assistance in the form of two-
wheeler loans, personal loans, and commercial vehicle loans. Our objective is to empower individuals and businesses
alike by enabling their financial aspirations and fostering economic growth.

IV. Employees
18. Details as at the end of Financial Year:

a. Employees and workers (including differently abled):

S. Particulars Total Male Female
No. (A) No. (B) % (B/A) No. (C) % (C/A)
EMPLOYEES
1. Permanent (D) 1154 1065 92.29% 89 7.71%
2. Other than Permanent (E) NIL
3. Total employees (D + E) 1154 1065 92.29% 89 7.71%
WORKERS

4. Permanent (F)
Other than Permanent (G)

NIL

6. Total workers (F + G)
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b. Differently abled Employees and workers:

S. Particulars Total Male Female
No. (A) No. (B) % (B/A) No. (C) % (C/A)
DIFFERENTLY ABLED EMPLOYEES
1. Permanent (D) 1 1 100%
2. Other than Permanent (E) 0 0 0%
3. Total differently abled employees (D + E) 1 1 100% 0 0
DIFFERENTLY ABLED WORKERS
Permanent (F)
Other than Permanent (G) NIL
6. Total differently abled workers (F + G)
19. Participation/Inclusion/Representation of women:
Total (A) No. and percentage of Females
No. (B) % (B/A)
Board of Directors 06 02 33.33%
Key Management Personnel 04 02 50%
20. Turnover rate for permanent employees and workers
(Disclose trends for the past 3 years)
FY FY FY

(Turnover rate in current FY)

(Turnover rate in previous  (Turnover rate in the year prior

FY) to the previous FY)
Male Female Total Male Female Total Male Female Total
Permanent Employees 27.10 20.38 26.62 34.74 29.13 3440 32.30 36.14 32.50
Permanent Workers NA NA NA

V. Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies (including joint ventures)

21. (a) Names of holding / subsidiary / associate companies / joint ventures

Sr. Name of the holding / subsidiary/ associate Indicate whether % of shares  Does the entity indicated
No. companies / joint ventures (A) holding/ held by at column A, participate in
Subsidiary/ listed entity the Business Responsibility
Associate/Joint initiatives of the listed
Venture entity? (Yes/No)
1. MA S Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited Subsidiary 59.67% No
2. MASFIN Insurance Broking Private Limited Subsidiary 69% No

VI. CSR Details

22. (i)
(i) Turnover (in %): 949.09 Crore
(iiiy Net worth (in%) : 1505.73 Crore

Whether CSR is applicable as per section 135 of Companies Act, 2013: Yes
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23. Complaints/Grievances on any of the principles (Principles 1 to 9) under the National

Transparency and Disclosures Compliances

Guidelines on Responsible Business Conduct:

Stakeholder group from whom Grievance Redressal

FY 2022-23 Current Financial Year

FY 2021-22 Previous Financial Year

complaint is received Mechanismin Place  Number of Numberof ~ Remarks Numberof  Numberof Remarks
(ves/No) (If yes, then  complaints  complaints complaints  complaints
provide web-link for filed during pending filed during  pending
grievance redress the year resolution at the year resolution at
policy) close of the close of the
year year
Communities Yes 0 0 NA 0 0 NA
Investors (other than shareholders) Yes 0 0 NA 0 0 NA
Shareholders Yes 0 0 NA 0 0 NA
Employees and workers Yes 0 0 NA 0 0 NA
Customers Yes 138 2 Nil 55 0 Nil
Value Chain Partners Yes
Other (please specify) Yes 0 0 NA 0 0 NA

The company, in adherence to its policies, practices, and processes, upholds the principle of engaging with stakeholders and
seeks to address any disparities in a manner that is just, fair, equitable, and consistent. Should the need arise; the company
will take necessary corrective actions to rectify the situation. In addition the grievance mechanism is made available on the

company’s website.

24. Overview of the entity’s material responsible business conduct issues

Please indicate material responsible business conduct and sustainability issues pertaining to environmental and social matters
that present a risk or an opportunity to your business, rationale for identifying the same, approach to adapt or mitigate the risk
along-with its financial implications, as per the following format.

S. Material issue Indicate Rationale for identifying the In case of risk, approach to adapt or mitigate Financial implications of
No. identified whether risk  risk / opportunity the risk or opportunity
or opportunity (Indicate positive or
(R/0) negative implications)
1. Financial inclusion  Opportunity The majority of the The company is extending credit to unbanked Positive
population of the country & underbanked borrowers by providing them
is still unbanked or access to appropriate, affordable, and timely
underbanked financial products and services.
2. Climate Risk Risk & Risk: ESG framework is put in place. Company will do  Positive & Negative
Opportunity enhanced due diligence and monitoring on ESG

The Company is extending
credit to used commercial
vehicle which may have
adverse impact on
environment.

Reputational Risk may
arise if company is not able
to achieve stakeholders
expectation on climate
related disclosures.

Opportunities: Increased
awareness about climate
change has accelerated the
adoption of environment
friendly products such

as electric vehicles, CNG
Vehicle etc, thereby creating
an opportunity to finance
and insure such class of
assets.

risk on certain loans.

The company will Recognise opportunities

to increase energy efficiency across the
organisation which will bring in cost efficiencies
over the longer term
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S. Material issue Indicate Rationale for identifying the In case of risk, approach to adapt or mitigate Financial implications of
No. identified whether risk  risk / opportunity the risk or opportunity
or opportunity (Indicate positive or
(R/0) negative implications)
3. Social responsibility Opportunity The company keeps a The company through its CSR activities supports  Positive
towards society portion of its profit to the environmental and social activities and create
support CSR activities. long term positive impact for the society
4. Customer Risk Company is catering to Strong Customer grievance policy and process Negative
relationship many customers and any and continuous education to customer and staff
event or activity could helps the company to mitigate the risk
impact the customer and
reputation of the company
5. Data Security Risk Companies are assessed To mitigate data security and privacy risks, the Negative
and Privacy based on the amount Company has implemented measures such

of personal data they
collect, their exposure
to evolving or increasing
privacy regulations, their

as installing firewalls, upgrading security and
creating data backups.

vulnerability to potential data

breaches, and their data
protection systems.

SECTION B: MANAGEMENT AND PROCESS DISCLOSURES
This section is aimed at helping businesses demonstrate the structures, policies and processes put in place towards adopting

the NGRBC Principles and Core Elements.

Disclosure Questions P P P P P P P P P
1 2 3 4 5 5 7 8 9

Policy and management processes

a. Whether your entity’s policy/policies cover each Yes
principle and its core elements of the NGRBCs. (Yes/

No)

b. Has the policy been approved by the Board? (Yes/No) Yes

c. Web Link of the Policies, if available h ://www.mas.co.in/poli X

2. Whether the entity has translated the policy into Yes
procedures. (Yes / No)

3. Do the enlisted policies extend to your value chain No
partners? (Yes/No)

4. Name of the national and international codes/ The formulation of all policies has been guided by industry best
certifications/labels/  standards (e.g.  Forest practices and in compliance with regulatory mandates.
Stewardship Council, Fairtrade, Rainforest Alliance,

Trustea) standards (e.g. SA 8000, OHSAS, ISO, BIS)
adopted by your entity and mapped to each principle.
5. Specific commitments, goals and targets set by the As we begin our ESG journey, we recognize the importance

entity with defined timelines, if any.

of setting targets to measure our adherence to the principles
of the National Guidelines on Responsible Business Conduct.
Despite being in our first year of ESG adoption, we aim to
establish objectives and targets in the upcoming reporting
period. Our commitment lies in aligning ESG efforts with our
business goals, implementing a comprehensive strategy
for sustainability and long-term stakeholder value. We are
dedicated to improving our ESG practices and eagerly look
forward to sharing our progress in the future.
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6. Performance of the entity against the specific
commitments, goals and targets along-with reasons
in case the same are not met.

We are fully committed to providing detailed performance
updates, prioritizing clear communication of achievements,
financial outcomes, and strategic progress in the years ahead
with diligence and transparency.

Governance, leadership and oversight

7. Statement by director responsible for the business responsibility related challenges, targets and achievements (listed

entity has placement of this disclosure)

Please refer to message from the Chairman & Managing Director.

8. Details of the highest authority responsible for
implementation and oversight of the Business
Responsibility policy (ies).

Name: Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi
Designation: Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00044852

9. Does the entity have a specified Committee of the
Board/ Director responsible for decision making on
sustainability related issues? (Yes / No). If yes, provide
details.

Yes, ESG Committee of the Board of Directors consisting of
senior management personnel of the Company to monitor
various aspects of social, environmental and governance
responsibilities is responsible for decision making on
sustainability related issues

10. Details of Review of NGRBCs by the Company:

Indicate whether review was
undertaken by Director / Committee of the

Frequency (Annually/ Half yearly/
Quarterly/ Any other - please specify)

Board/ Any other Committee

P P P P P
1 2 3 4 5

PP PP PP PP PP PP P
6 7 8 9 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

Performance against above
policies and follow up action

As a standard procedure, the company’s policies undergo regular or as-needed reviews by
the board to ensure their relevance and effectiveness.

Compliance with statutory The company is in compliance with the extant regulations as applicable.

requirements of relevance to the
principles, and, rectification of
any non-compliances

11. Has the entity carried out independent assessment/  P1 P2 P3 P4 PS5 P6 P7 P8 P9
evaluation of the working of its policies by an external Eyajuation is a continuous process and is done internally.
agency? (Yes/No). If yes, provide name of the agency.

12. If answer to question (1) above is “No” i.e. not all Principles are covered by a policy, reasons to be stated:
Questions P P P P P P P P P

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

The entity does not consider the Principles material to NA
its business (Yes/No)

The entity is not at a stage where it is in a position to NA
formulate and implement the policies on specified

principles (Yes/No)

The entity does not have the financial or/human and NA
technical resources available for the task (Yes/No)

It is planned to be done in the next financial year (Yes/No) NA
Any other reason (please specify) NA
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PRINCIPLE 1 BUSINESSES SHOULD CONDUCT AND GOVERN THEMSELVES WITH INTEGRITY, AND IN A
MANNER THAT IS ETHICAL, TRANSPARENT AND ACCOUNTABLE.

Essential Indicators

1. Percentage coverage by training and awareness programmes on any of the Principles during the financial year:

Segment

Total number
of training and
awareness
programmes held

Topics/ principles covered under the training
and its impact

%age of persons
in respective
category covered
by the awareness
programmes

Board of Directors &
Key Managerial Personnel

BOD -4
KMP -7

The company carries out familiarization
programmes for its directors, as required under
the SEBI Listing regulations. Stage of induction
of Independent directors.

Updating the Independent directors about the
ongoing events and developments relating to
the Company.

Training on BRSR Requirements and Company's
preparedness towards BRSR Reporting.

Functioning of various Committees of the
Board and business and operations of the
Company, risk management, IT strategies, etc.

Significant changes in regulatory framework,
quarterly and financial results through the
Board/Committee meetings and program(s).

100%

Employees other than BoD
and KMPs

1511

The Company places substantial emphasis on
employee training and development, dedicating
resources to keep them well-informed about
the latest trends and technologies. Regular
awareness programs are also conducted,
covering a wide range of relevant topics
including code of conduct, ethics, cyber
security, data privacy, ESG Awareness, KYC —
AML compliances, fraud prevention, Functional
Trainings and insider trading.

100%

Workers

NA

2. Details of fines / penalties /punishment/ award/ compounding fees/ settlement amount paid in proceedings (by the
entity or by directors / KMPs) with regulators/ law enforcement agencies/ judicial institutions, in the financial year, in the

following format.

Note: the entity shall make disclosures on the basis of materiality as specified in Regulation 30 of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Obligations) Regulations, 2015 and as disclosed on entity’s website:

Monetary
NGRBC Principle Name of the Amount (in ) Brief of the Case Has an appeal been
regulatory/ preferred? (yes/No)
enforcement
agencies/judicial
institutions
Penalty/ Fine Nil Nil 0 Nil Nil
Settlement Nil Nil 0 Nil Nil
Compounding Fee Nil Nil 0 Nil Nil
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Non-Monetary
NGRBC Principle Name of the regulatory/ Brief of the Case Has an appeal been preferred?
enforcement agencies/ (yes/No)
judicial institutions

Imprisonment Nil Nil Nil Nil

Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil
3. Of theinstances disclosed in Question 2 above, details of the Appeal/Revision preferred in cases where monetary or non-

monetary action has been appealed.
Not Applicable

Does the entity have an anti-corruption or anti-bribery policy? If yes, provide details in brief and if available, provide a web-
link to the policy.

Yes.

The Company has zero tolerance towards unethical business practices and prohibits bribery and corruption in any form
in all of its business dealings through necessary policies, codes and charters. All the employees of the Company must
adhere to the commitment of integrity and other responsible business conduct principles laid down in Employee Charter.

Some of these policies, codes and charters are available on Company’s website: https://mas.co.in/policy.aspx

Number of Directors/KMPs/employees/workers against whom disciplinary action was taken by any law enforcement
agency for the charges of bribery/ corruption:

FY 2022-23 (Current Financial year) FY 2021-22 (Previous Financial year)
Directors Nil Nil
KMPs Nil Nil
Employees Nil Nil
Workers NA NA

Details of complaints with regard to conflict of interest:

FY 2022-23 (Current Financial FY 2021-22 (Previous Financial

year) year)
Number Remarks Number Remarks
Number of complaints received in relation to Nil Nil Nil Nil
issues of Conflict of Interest of the Directors
Number of complaints received in relation to Nil Nil Nil Nil

issues of Conflict of Interest of the KMPs

Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway on issues related to fines/penalties/action taken by regulators/
law enforcement agencies/ judicial institutions, on cases of corruption and conflicts of interest. — N.A.

Leadership Indicators

1.

Awareness programmes conducted for value chain partners on any of the Principles during the financial year:

We are committed to influencing our value chain partners for responsible and sustainable business conduct and the
details of awareness programed will be conducted in the upcoming years.

Does the entity have processes in place to avoid/ manage conflict of interests involving members of the Board? (Yes/No)
If Yes, provide details of the same.

We maintain a zero-tolerance policy towards unethical business practices and prioritize adherence to relevant principles,
including those related to conflict of interest. Additionally, the company ensures compliance with our Code of Conduct by
obtaining annual declarations from directors affirming their commitment to upholding ethical standards. In addition the
Company has policies on related party transaction which requires all the transactions done in ordinary course of business
are at arm’s length price to avoid dealing with possible conflicts of Interest.
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PRINCIPLE 2 BUSINESSES SHOULD PROVIDE GOODS AND SERVICES IN A MANNER THAT IS
SUSTAINABLE AND SAFE

Essential Indicators

1.

Percentage of R&D and capital expenditure (capex) investments in specific technologies to improve the environmental
and social impacts of product and processes to total R&D and capex investments made by the entity, respectively.

Given the nature of MFSL's business, we continuously make expenditure in specific technologies including on IT hardware
and software. We believe better adoption of digital platforms not only brings in increased efficiencies of operations but
also ensures substantially through reduced consumption of paper.

Current Financial Year Previous Financial Year Details of improvements in
environmental and social impacts
R&D 0 0 NA
Capex 0 0 NA

a. Does the entity have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing?

The Company provides financial products and services, and thus neither has a sizeable consumption of any raw
material nor produces any tangible goods. Its activities are limited to providing financial solutions to serve the needs
of the people; hence we do not currently maintain records for sustainable sourcing. However, we nurture a culture of
conservation of resources and encourage innovations that aid in reducing the dependence on natural resources.

b. If yes, what percentage of inputs was sourced sustainably?
Refer point 2(a) above

Describe the processes in place to safely reclaim your products for reusing, recycling and disposing at the end of life, for (a)
Plastics (including packaging) (b) E-waste (c) Hazardous waste and (d) other waste. - Given the nature of the business of
providing financial services to its customers and does not manufacture any products, hence we do not currently maintain
records for hazardous and other waste generation.

Whether Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) is applicable to the entity’s activities (Yes / No). If yes, whether the waste
collection plan is in line with the Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) plan submitted to Pollution Control Boards? If

not, provide steps taken to address the same.

Given the nature of our business, the above is not applicable.

Leadership Indicators

1.

Has the entity conducted Life Cycle Perspective / Assessments (LCA) for any of its products (for manufacturing industry)
or for its services (for service industry)? If yes, provide details in the following format?

Given the nature of the business of providing financial services to its customers and does not manufacture any products,
hence this won't be applicable.

NIC Code Name of % of total Boundary for Whether Results communicated in
Product / Turnover which the conducted by public domain (Yes/No)
Service contributed Life Cycle independent If yes, provide the web-link.
Perspective/  external agency
Assessment (Yes/No)

was conducted
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2. If there are any significant social or environmental concerns and/or risks arising from production or disposal of your
products / services, as identified in the Life Cycle Perspective / Assessments (LCA) or through any other means, briefly
describe the same along-with action taken to mitigate the same.

None other than those identified in S. No. 24 of Section A above.

3. Percentage of recycled or reused input material to total material (by value) used in production (for manufacturing industry)
or providing services (for service industry).

As our company operates in the financial services sector and does not engage in manufacturing, the specific clause
mentioned does not apply to our business operations.

4.  Of the products and packaging reclaimed at end of life of products, amount (in metric tonnes) reused, recycled, and safely
disposed, as per the following format:

As our company operates in the financial services sector and does not engage in manufacturing, the specific clause
mentioned does not apply to our business operations

5. Reclaimed products and their packaging materials (as percentage of products sold) for each product category.

As our company operates in the financial services sector and does not engage in manufacturing, the specific clause
mentioned does not apply to our business operations

PRINCIPLE 3 BUSINESSES SHOULD RESPECT AND PROMOTE THE WELL-BEING OF ALL EMPLOYEES,
INCLUDING THOSE IN THEIR VALUE CHAINS

Essential Indicators

1. a. Details of measures for the well-being of employees:

Category % of employees covered by
Total Health Insurance Accident Maternity Paternity Benefits Day Care
(A) Insurance Benefits Facilities

Number % Number % Number % Number % Number %
(B) (B/A) © (C/A) (D) (D/A) (E) (E/A) (F) (F/A)
Permanent employees

Male 1065 - - 1065 100% - - 49 4.60 - -

Female 89 - - 89 100% 1 1.12 - - - -

Total 1154 - - 1154 100% 1 1.12 49 4.60 - -
Other than Permanent employees

Male

Female Nil

Total

b. Details of measures for the well-being of workers: Not Applicable

2. Details of retirement benefits, for Current Financial year and Previous Financial year.

Benefits FY 2022-23 (Current Financial Year) FY 2021-22 (Previous Financial Year)
No. of No. of Deducted and No. of No. of Deducted and
employees workers deposited employees workers deposited
covered as covered as with the covered as  covered as with the
a% of total a % of total authority a% of total  a% of total authority
employees workers (y/N/N.A.) employees workers (y/N/N.A.)
PF 71.84% Nil Yes 78.12% Nil Yes
Gratuity 100% NA 100% NA
ESI* 17.50% Yes 23.78% Yes

Others — Please Specify
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Accessibility of workplaces: Are the premises / offices of the entity accessible to differently abled employees and workers,
as per the requirements of the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016? If not, whether any steps are being taken by

the entity in this regard.

Our premises/offices are accessible to differently abled employees wherever they are employed.

Does the entity have an equal opportunity policy as per the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 20167 If so, provide a

web-link to the policy.

Yes. https://mas.co.in/policy.aspx

Return to work and Retention rates of permanent employees and workers that took parental leave.

Permanent workers

Return to work rate

Retention rate

Gender Permanent employees
Return to work rate Retention rate
Male 100% 100%
Female 100% 100%
Total 100% 100%

Nil

Is there a mechanism available to receive and redress grievances for the following categories of employees and worker?

If yes, give details of the mechanism in brief.

Yes/No (If yes, then give details of the mechanism in brief)

Permanent Workers NA
Other than Permanent Workers NA
Permanent Employees Yes.

The ERP System is available for any employee to enter his/
her grievances. The portal is directly accessed by HR Head
of the Company and complete confidentiality is maintained
on receiving the complaints/ grievance. The HR Head of the
Company works on all issues for speedy resolution.

Other than Permanent Employees

NA

Membership of employees and worker in association(s) or Unions recognised by the listed entity:

Employees of MFSL are currently not part of any employee association.

Benefits FY 2022-23 (Current Financial Year) FY 2021-22 (Previous Financial Year)
Total employees No. of employees % (B/A) Total employees No. of % (D/C)
/ workers in / workers in /workers in employees/
respective respective respective workers in
category (A) category, who category (C) respective
are part of category, who
association(s) are part of
or Union (B) association(s) or
Union(D)
Total Permanent Employees
- Male
- Female
Total Permanent Workers
- Male Nil
- Female
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8. Details of training given to employees and workers:

Category FY 2022-23 Current Financial year FY 2021-22 Previous Financial year
Total (A) On Health and On Skill Total On Health and On Skill upgradation
safety measures upgradation (D) safety measures
No.(B) % (B/A) No.(C) % (C/A) No.(E) % (E/D) No.(F) % (F/D)
Employees
Male 1065 443 41.60% 552 51.83% 879 357 40.61% 421 47.90%
Female 89 39 43.82% 36 40.45% 67 26 38.81% 22 32.84%
Total 1154 482 41.77% 588 50.95% 946 383 40.49% 443 46.83%
Workers
Male
Female N.A.
Total
9. Details of performance and career development reviews of employees and worker:
Performance appraisal was conducted during the year for all the eligible employees as per Company’s policies.
Benefits FY 2022-23 (Current Financial FY 2021-22 (Previous Financial Year)
Year)
Total No. (B) % (B/A) Total No. (D) % (D/C)
(A) (C)
Total Permanent Employees 1154 642 55.63% 946 547 57.82%
- Male 1065 598 56.15% 879 519 59.04%
- Female 89 44 49.44% 67 28% 41.79%
Total Permanent Workers Nil

- Male
- Female

10. Health and safety management system:

a.  Whether an occupational health and safety management
system has been implemented by the entity? (Yes/ No).
If yes, the coverage such system?

The Company acknowledges that there are no occupational
health and safety hazards associated with its business
operations. However, the well-being of its employees remains
a top priority. We ensure the availability of a first aid kit at our
locations. We also advise our employees to use helmets while
riding through various training programs.

Moreover, the Company is committed to provide a safe and
healthy workplace by minimizing the risk of accidents, injury
and exposure to health risks and it complies with applicable
laws and regulations with respect to safety at workplace.
The Company also provides Accident Policy for the employees.

The Company sends periodic internal communication and
alerts to employees and conducts awareness sessions on
health and safety related aspects such always wear a helmet,
drink enough water, stay on the move, choose to use the
stairs, etc.

b.  What are the processes used to identify work-related
hazards and assess risks on a routine and non- routine
basis by the entity?

In light of our business operations, hazard identification may
not be directly applicable. Nonetheless, we recognise the
importance of continuously conducting hazard identification.

c. Whether you have processes for workers to report the
work related hazards and to remove themselves from
such risks. (Y/N)

NA
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d. Do the employees/ worker of the entity have access to The Company has accidental insurance policies for the
non-occupational medical and Healthcare services? employees.
(Yes/ No)

11. Details of safety related incidents, in the following format:

Safety Incident/Number Category FY 2022-23 Current FY 2021-22 Previous
Financial year Financial Year

Lost Time Injury Frequency Employees
Rate (LTIFR) (per one million- \workers
person hours worked)

Total recordable work-related Employees

injuries Workers il
i
No. of fatalities Employees
Workers
High consequence work- Employees
related injury or ill-health Workers
(excluding fatalities)
12. Describe the measures taken by the entity to ensure a safe and healthy work place.
Refer 10(a) above
13. Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:
FY 2022-23 Current Financial year FY 2021-22 Previous Financial Year
Filed Pending Remarks Filed during Pending Remarks
during the resolution the year resolution
year at the end of at the end of
year year

Working Conditions
Health & Safety

Nil

14. Assessments for the year:

% of your plants and offices that were assessed (by entity or statutory authorities
or third parties)

Health and safety practices The Company strives to keep the workplace environment safe, hygienic and

Working Conditions humane. Branches across the group are internally assessed periodically through
internal audits for various aspects of health and safety measures and related
working conditions.

15. Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway to address safety-related incidents (if any) and on significant
risks / concerns arising from assessments of health & safety practices and working conditions.

NA
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Leadership Indicators
1. Does the entity extend any life insurance or any compensatory package in the event of death of (A) Employees (Y/N) - No

2. Provide the measues undertaken by the entity to ensure that statutory dues have been deducted and deposited by the
value chain partners.

We ensure that all statutory payment challans of previous month are attached with current invoice of our regular vendors
3. Provide the number of employees / workers having suffered high consequence work-related injury / ill-health / fatalities

(as reported in Q11 of Essential Indicators above), who have been are rehabilitated and placed in suitable employment or
whose family members have been placed in suitable employment.

Total No. of effected employees/ Workers No. of employees/workers that are rehabilitated
and placed in suitable employment or whose
family members have been placed in suitable

employment.

FY 2022-23 (Current  FY 2021-22 (Previous = FY 2022-23 (Current  FY 2021-22 (Previous
FY) FY) FY FY)

Employees

Not Applicable
Workers PP

4. Does the entity provide transition assistance programs to facilitate continued employability and the management of
career endings resulting from retirement or termination of employment? (Yes/ No)

No

5. Details on assessment of value chain partners:

% of value chain partners (by value of business done with such
partners) that were assessed.

Health and safety practices

. . NA
Working Condition

6. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks / concerns arising from
assessments of health and safety practices and working conditions of value chain partners.

In absence of any significant risks / concerns, no corrective action plan has been necessitated.
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PRINCIPLE 4: BUSINESSES SHOULD RESPECT THE INTERESTS OF AND BE RESPONSIVETO ALL ITS
STAKEHOLDERS

Essential Indicators

1. Describe the processes for identifying key stakeholder groups of the entity.
The company recognizes and identifies key stakeholders as individuals or groups who are interested, impacted by, or
concerned with its current and future activities. Accordingly, our key stakeholders encompass shareholders and investors,
customers, government and regulators, value chain partners, employees, and the society as a whole.
2. List stakeholder groups identified as key for your entity and the frequency of engagement with each stakeholder group.
Stakeholder Group Whether Channels of communication Frequency of Purpose and scope of engagement
identified as (Email, SMS, Newspaper, engagement (Annually/ including key topics and concerns
Vulnerable & Pamphlets, Advertisement, Half yearly/ Quarterly/ raised during such engagement
Marginalised Community Meetings, Notice others - please
Group (yes/No) Board, Website), Other specify)
Shareholders No Email, SMS, Newspaper, Quarterly/ As and when  To inform about quarterly
Website, Notice required performance, call for meeting and
other relevant updates.
Investors No Email, Newspaper, Community Quarterly/ As and when  To inform about quarterly
Meetings, Website required performance, call for meeting and
other relevant updates.
Customers Yes Email, SMS, Newspaper, As and when required To provide financial services,
Website resolve queries and grievances.
Employees Yes Email, Website As and when required Work related updates, providing
awareness programmes
Government and Yes Email As and when required To update on various compliances
Regulators and to seek approvals
Value Chain Partners  Yes Email As and when required To further strengthen the business

relationship

Society Yes

Website, Advertisement,
Newspaper

As and when required To promote social welfare activities

including gathering feedback

Leadership Indicators

1.

Provide the processes for consultation between stakeholders and the Board on economic, environmental, and social
topics or if consultation is delegated, how is feedback from such consultations provided to the Board.

At our company, we prioritize transparent communication and provide access to pertinent information regarding decisions
that affect our stakeholders, while ensuring the protection of confidential competitive plans and information. Engaging
with stakeholders is an ongoing process, and the board regularly receives updates on significant developments resulting
from such engagement efforts.

Whether stakeholder consultation is used to support the identification and management of environmental, and social
topics (Yes / No). If so, provide details of instances as to how the inputs received from stakeholders on these topics were
incorporated into policies and activities of the entity.

Yes. The engagement with stakeholders on a continuous basis plays a crucial role in meeting their expectations and
enables our company to better serve their needs. By actively involving our stakeholders, we strive to enhance our
understanding of their requirements, foster stronger relationships, and ultimately deliver more effective solutions.

Provide details of instances of engagement with, and actions taken to, address the concerns of vulnerable/ marginalized
stakeholder groups.

Our company is dedicated to making a positive impact on society through its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

initiatives. We have undertaken diverse activities and initiatives that aim to benefit various segments of the society,
contributing to their well-being and creating a sustainable and inclusive future.
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The Company through its CSR policy has taken up at the various initiatives and activities across work centres and locations
of the company, for the benefit of different segments of the society, with focus on the marginalized, poor, needy, deprived,
under-privileged and differently abled persons

PRINCIPLE 5 BUSINESSES SHOULD RESPECT AND PROMOTE HUMAN RIGHTS

Essential Indicators

1. Employees and workers who have been provided training on human rights issues and policy(ies) of the entity, in the

following format:

Category FY 2022-23 (Current FY) FY 2021-22 (Previous FY)
Total (A) No. of % (B/A) Total (C) No. of % (D/C)
employees employees
workers workers
covered (B) covered (D)
Employees
Permanent 1154 448 38.82% 946 283 29.91%
Other than permanent Nil
Total Employees 1154 448 38.82% 946 283 29.91%
Workers

Permanent

Other than permanent

Total Employees

Nil

2.  Details of minimum wages paid to employees and workers, in the following format:

Category FY 2022-23 Current Financial Year FY 2021-22 Previous Financial Year
Total (A) Equal to Minimum More than Equal to Minimum More than
Wage Minimum Wage Wage Minimum Wage
No.(B) % (B/A) No.(C) % (C/A) Total (D) No.(E) % (E/D) No.(F) % (F/D)
Employees
Permanent 1154 180 15.60% 974 84.40% 946 306 32.35% 640 67.65%
Male 1065 175 16.43% 890 83.57% 879 291 33.11% 588 66.89%
Female 89 5 5.62% 84 94.38% 67 15 22.39% 52 77.61%s
Other than permanent
Male Nil
Female
Workers
Permanent
Male
F |
emale NA
Other than permanent
Male
Female
3. Details of remuneration/salary/wages, in the following format:
Male Female
Number Median remuneration/ Number Median remuneration/ salary/
salary/wages of respective wages of respective category
category (Rs. in Crores) (Rs. in Crores)
Board of Directors (BOD) 4 5.08 2 0.67
Key Managerial Personnel 1 0.37 1 0.13
Employees other than BOD 1063 0.04 87 0.03
and KMP
Workers 0 - 0 -
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4. Do you have a focal point (Individual/ Committee) responsible for addressing human rights impacts or issues caused or
contributed to by the business? (Yes/No) - Yes
5. Describe the internal mechanisms in place to redress grievances related to human rights issues.
The Company respect for human rights as one of its fundamental and core values and strives to support, protect and
promote human rights to ensure that fair and ethical business and employment practices are followed.
MFSL believes that every workplace shall be free from violence, harassment, intimidation and/or any other unsafe or
disruptive conditions, either due to external or internal threats. The Company has a well-defined grievance redressal
mechanism for its employees. A formal grievance mechanism is available to all employees, to report or raise their
concerns confidentially and anonymously, without fear of any retaliation.
6. Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:
FY 2022-23 Current Financial Year FY 2021-22 Previous Financial Year
Filed during Pending Remarks Filed during Pending Remarks
the year resolution at the year resolution at
the end of year the end of year
Sexual Harassment
Discrimination at workplace
Child Labour
NA

Forced Labour/Involuntary Labour

Wages

Other human rights related issues

7. Mechanisms to prevent adverse consequences to the complainant in discrimination and harassment cases.
Aformal grievance mechanismis available to allemployees to report or raise their concerns confidentially and anonymously,
without fear of retaliation, along with mechanism to consult on ethical issues through the ERP system provided to all the
employees.
8. Do human rights requirements form part of your business agreements and contracts? (Yes/No)
Yes
9. Assessments for the year:
%age of your plants and offices that were assessed
(by entity or statutory authorities or third parties)
Child labour

Forced/involuntary labour

Sexual harassment

0%

Discrimination at workplace

Wages

Others — please specify

10. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks / concerns arising from the

assessments at Question 9 above. - NA

Leadership Indicators

1.

Details of a business process being modified / introduced as a result of addressing human rights grievances/complaints.

There have been no significant human rights grievances / complaints warranting modification / introduction of business
processes
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2. Details of the scope and coverage of any Human rights due-diligence conducted.
Not Applicable

3. Isthe premise/office of the entity accessible to differently abled visitors, as per the requirements of the Rights of Persons
with Disabilities Act, 20167

We are committed to ensuring full compliance with the Persons with Disabilities Act 2016, as we actively enhance our
premises to provide optimal accessibility for all visitors, including differently abled

4. Details on assessment of value chain partners:

%age of your plants and offices that were assessed
(by entity or statutory authorities or third parties)

Child labour The Company expects and strives to influence its value chain partners
Forced/involuntary labour to adhere to the same values, principles and business ethics upheld by
Sexual harassment MFSL. No specific assessment in respect of value chain partners has
Discrimination at workplace been carried out.

Wages

Others — please specify

5. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks / concerns arising from the
assessments at Question 4 above.

No corrective actions pertaining to Question 4 was necessitated by the Company during the year under review.

PRINCIPLE 6: BUSINESSES SHOULD RESPECT AND MAKE EFFORTS TO PROTECT AND RESTORE THE
ENVIRONMENT

Essential Indicators
1. Details of total energy consumption (in Joules or multiples) and energy intensity, in the following format:

Parameter FY 2022-23 (Current Financial year) FY 2021-22 (Previous Financial year)
Total electricity consumption (A) (in gigajoules) 3724 2919
Total fuel consumption (B) (in gigajoules) 4539 3568

Energy consumption through other sources (C) - -

Total energy consumption (A+B+C) (in gigajoules) 8262 6487

Energy intensity per rupee of turnover (Total Energy

Consumption (GJ)/ Turnover in million INR) 0.87 0.99

Energy intensity (optional) — the relevant metric
may be selected by the entity

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes,
name of the external agency.

2. Does the entity have any sites / facilities identified as designated consumers (DCs) under the Performance, Achieve and

Trade (PAT) Scheme of the Government of India? (Y/N) If yes, disclose whether targets set under the PAT scheme have
been achieved. In case targets have not been achieved, provide the remedial action taken, if any. — No
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3. Provide details of the following disclosures related to water, in the following format:

Parameter FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

(Current Financial year) (Previous Financial year)
Water withdrawal by source (in kilolitres) The usage of water is restricted to human consumption purposes only which
()  Surface water is not accounted. Efforts have been made to ensure that water is consumed

(i) Groundwater judiciously in the office/branch premises.

(iii) Third party water

(iv) Seawater / desalinated water
(v) Others

Total volume of water withdrawal (in kilolitres) (i + ii +
i +iv+v)

Total volume of water consumption (in kilolitres)

Water intensity per Lac of turnover (Water consumed /
turnover)

Water intensity (optional) — the relevant metric may be
selected by the entity

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes,
name of the external agency.

4. Has the entity implemented a mechanism for Zero Liquid Discharge? If yes, provide details of its coverage and
implementation. — No

5. Please provide details of air emissions (other than GHG emissions) by the entity, in the following format:

Parameter Please specify FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
unit (Current Financial year) (Previous Financial year)

Nox

Sox

Particulate matter (PM)

Persistent organic pollutants (POP)
Volatile organic compounds (VOC)
Hazardous air pollutants (HAP)
Others— please specify

Not Applicable

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes,
name of the external agency.

6. Provide details of greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions) & its intensity, in the following format:

Parameter Unit FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
(Current Financial year) (Previous Financial year)
Total Scope 1 emissions (Break-up of ~ Metric tonnes of CO2 317 249

the GHG into CO2, CH4, N20, HFCs, equivalent

PFCs, SF6, NF3, if available)

Total Scope 2 emissions (Break-up of ~ Metric tonnes of CO2 740 580
the GHG into CO2, CH4, N20, HFCs, equivalent

PFCs,SF6, NF3, if available)

Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions  Metric tonnes of CO2 0.11 0.13
per Million of turnover equivalent/million INR

Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emission - - -

intensity (optional)- the relevant metric

may be selected by the entity

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes,
name of the external agency.
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7. Does the entity have any project related to reducing Green House Gas emission? If Yes, then provide details. — No

8. Provide details related to waste management by the entity, in the following format:

Parameter FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Total Waste generated (in metric tonnes)
Plastic waste (A) 0.0491 0.0351
E-waste (B) 0.849 0.630
Bio-medical waste (C) NA NA
Construction and demolition waste (D) NA NA
Battery waste (E) NA NA
Radioactive waste (F) NA NA
Other Hazardous waste. Please specify, if any. (G) NA NA
Other Non-hazardous waste generated (H). Please specify, if any. (Break-up by NA NA
composition i.e. by materials relevant to the sector)
Total A+B+C+D+E+F+G+H) 0.8981 0.6651

For each category of waste generated, total waste recovered through recycling, re-using or other recovery operations
(in metric tonnes)

Category of waste

(i)  Recycled NA NA
(i) Re-used NA NA
(iii) Other recovery operations NA NA
Total NA NA

For each category of waste generated, total waste disposed by nature of disposal method (in metric tonnes)

Category of waste

(i) Incineration NA NA
(i) Landfilling NA NA
(iii) Other disposal operations NA NA
Total NA NA

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external agency? (Y/N) If yes,
name of the external agency.

9. Briefly describe the waste management practices adopted in your establishments. Describe the strategy adopted by your
company to reduce usage of hazardous and toxic chemicals in your products and processes and the practices adopted to
manage such wastes.

Given the nature of the business, there is no usage of hazardous and toxic chemicals by the Company.

10. If the entity has operations/offices in/around ecologically sensitive areas (such as national parks, wildlife sanctuaries,
biosphere reserves, wetlands, biodiversity hotspots, forests, coastal regulation zones etc.) where environmental approvals
/ clearances are required, please specify details in the following format:

Sr. No. Location of operations/ Type of operations Whether the conditions of environmental approval /
offices clearance are being complied with? (Y/N) If no, the
reasons thereof and corrective action taken, if any.

Not Applicable

11. Details of environmental impact assessments of projects undertaken by the entity based on applicable laws, in the current
financial year:

Name and brief EIA Date Whether conducted by Results communicated Relevant Web link
details of project  Notification independent external in public domain (yes
No agency (yes / No) / No)

Not Applicable
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12. Is the entity compliant with the applicable environmental law/ regulations/ guidelines in India; such as the Water
(Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, Environment protection act and
rules thereunder (Y/N). If not, provide details of all such non-compliances, in the following format:

Sr. No.  Specify the law/ regulation/ Provide details of the non- Any fines / penalties /action  Corrective action taken, if any
guidelines which was not compliance taken by regulatory agencies
complied with such as pollution control

boards or by courts

Based on the nature of business, MFSL is in compliance with applicable environmental norms.

Leadership Indicators*
Does the entity have a business continuity and disaster management plan? Give details in 100 words/ web link.

Yes. The Company has business continuity strategy and framework which is also compliant with applicable regulatory
requirements. BCP envisages the likely disruptive events, their probability and impact on business operations which is assessed
through business impact analysis. The BCP includes Disaster Recovery procedures to quickly recover from an emergency.

*Given the nature of the business, certain points are not applicable to the Company and there has been no adverse impact to
the environment.

PRINCIPLE 7 BUSINESSES, WHEN ENGAGING IN INFLUENCING PUBLIC AND REGULATORY POLICY,
SHOULD DO SO IN A MANNER THAT IS RESPONSIBLE AND TRANSPARENT

Essential Indicators
1. a.  Number of affiliations with trade and industry chambers/ associations.

Company is member of 5 trade and industry chambers/ associations.

b. List the top 10 trade and industry chambers/ associations (determined based on the total members of such body)
the entity is a member of/ affiliated to.

S. Name of the trade and industry chambers/Associations Reach of trade and industry
No. chambers/ associations
(State/National)
1 Finance Industry Development Council (FIDC) National
2 Gujarat Finance Companies Association (GFCA) National
3 Fintech Association for Consumer Empowerment (FACE) National
4 The Associated Chambers of Commerce and Industry of India (ASSOCHAM) National
5 Fintech Association for Consumer Empowerment (FACE) National

2. Provide details of corrective action taken or underway on any issues related to anti- competitive conduct by the entity,
based on adverse orders from regulatory authorities.

N.A.

Leadership Indicators
1. Details of public policy positions advocated by the entity:

The Company actively participates in putting forward its views on the setting of new industry standards or regulatory

developments pertaining to the NBFC sector. While making recommendations, MFSL attempts to balance the interest of
various stakeholders.
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PRINCIPLE 8 BUSINESSES SHOULD PROMOTE INCLUSIVE GROWTH AND EQUITABLE DEVELOPMENT
Essential Indicators

1. Details of Social Impact Assessments (SIA) of projects undertaken by the entity based on applicable laws, in the current
financial year.
No project was required to be assessed for their impact during the year under the regulatory requirement. However, the
Company uses social sector experts and independent professionals to conduct social and financial assessments of the
projects.
2. Provide information on project(s) for which ongoing Rehabilitation and Resettlement
(R&R) is being undertaken by your entity, in the following format:
N.A.
3. Describe the mechanisms to receive and redress grievances of the community.
The company has the mechanism to receive and redress grievances of various stakeholders. One can register their query/
grievances on Companies website https://mfsl.co.in/Grievance/FrmGrievanceRequestForm.aspx?compld=1
4. Percentage of input material (inputs to total inputs by value) sourced from suppliers:
FY 2022-23 Current FY 2021-22 Previous
Financial year Financial year
Directly sourced from MSMEs/ small producers NA NA
Sourced directly from within the district and neighboring districts NA NA

Leadership Indicators

1.

Provide details of actions taken to mitigate any negative social impacts identified in the Social Impact Assessments
(Reference: Question 1 of Essential Indicators above):

Not Applicable

Provide the following information on CSR projects undertaken by your entity in designated aspirational districts as
identified by government bodies:

None

(a) Do you have a preferential procurement policy where you give preference to purchase from suppliers comprising
marginalized /vulnerable groups? (Yes/No)

(b) From which marginalized /vulnerable groups do you procure?

(c) What percentage of total procurement (by value) does it constitute?
Not Applicable

Details of the benefits derived and shared from the intellectual properties owned or acquired by your entity (in the current
financial year), based on traditional knowledge:

Not Applicable

Details of corrective actions taken or underway, based on any adverse order in intellectual property related disputes
wherein usage of traditional knowledge is involved.

Not Applicable
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6. Details of beneficiaries of CSR Projects

S.No CSR Project No. of persons benefitted from CSR % of beneficiaries from vulnerable
Projects and marginalised groups

1 MAS Arogya Abhiyan 150 100%

2 Shiksha Abhiyan 7,800 students 100%

3 MA S Menstrual Hygiene Programme 1,200 (on Quarterly basis) 100%

4 Grain Distribution 200 100%

PRINCIPLE 9 BUSINESSES SHOULD ENGAGE WITH AND PROVIDE VALUE TO THEIR CONSUMERS IN A
RESPONSIBLE MANNER

Essential Indicators
1. Describe the mechanisms in place to receive and respond to consumer complaints and feedback.

Complaints received from customers with regard to their grievances/concerns are adressed under the Grievances
Redressal Mechanism. Customer Relationship Management (CRM) address the complaints and requests raised by the
customers through various channels like by calling the Centre/Branch; via sending e-mail or through the Company’s official
website. All the issues/requests raised by customers through various modes such as Call centre/Branch/Company’s
website/mails/ letters etc., are first entered into CRM Application and resolved as soon as possible. The details of the
same are enumerated under the section of Customer’s corner on the website of the Company.

2. Turnover of products and/ services as a percentage of turnover from all products/service that carry information about:

As a percentage to total turnover

Environmental and social parameters relevant to the All our loan products and Most Important Terms & Conditions
product are completely transparent and disclose all product related

Safe and responsible usage details.

Recycling and/or safe disposal

3. Number of consumer complaints in respect of the following:

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
(Current Financial year) (Previous Financial year)
Received Pending Remarks Received Pending Remarks
during the  resolution at during the  resolution at
year end of year year end of year

Data privacy
Advertising
Cyber-security Nil
Delivery of essential services
Restrictive Trade Practices
Unfair Trade Practices
Other 138 2 Nil 55 0 Nil

4. Details of instances of product recalls on account of safety issues:

Number Reasons for recall
Voluntary recalls Nil N.A.
Nil N.A.

Forced recalls

5. Does the entity have a framework/ policy on cyber security and risks related to data privacy? (Yes/No) If available, provide
a web-link of the policy. Yes https://mas.co.in/policy.aspx

6. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway on issues relating to advertising, and delivery of essential
services; cyber security and data privacy of customers; re-occurrence of instances of product recalls; penalty / action

taken by regulatory authorities on safety of products / services. - NA
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Leadership Indicators

1.

Channels / platforms where information on products and services of the entity can be accessed (provide web link, if
available).

WWW.Mmas.co.in

Steps taken to inform and educate consumers about safe and responsible usage of products and/or services.
All Information related to products offered to customers are available at Company’s website.

Mechanisms in place to inform consumers of any risk of disruption/discontinuation of essential services.

During the year, there were no major disruptions of critical services. Owing to COVID-19 related disruptions, customers
were intimated of the same through the call centres, electronic communications or through MFSL Group'’s website.

Does the entity display product information on the product over and above what is mandated as per local laws? (Yes/No/
Not Applicable) If yes, provide details in brief. Did your entity carry out any survey with regard to consumer satisfaction
relating to the major products / services of the entity, significant locations of operation of the entity or the entity as a
whole? (Yes/No)

None of the products withhold any relevant information needed by the customers to make informed decisions.

Provide the following information relating to data breaches:

a. Number of instances of data breaches along-with impact - None

b.  Percentage of data breaches involving personally identifiable information of customers - None
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of M1 A $ Financial Services Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

OPINION

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial
statements of MAS Financial Services Limited (‘the
Company’), which comprise the standalone Balance Sheet as
at March 31, 2023, the standalone Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the standalone
Statement of cash flows and the standalone Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to
the Standalone financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (“the Standalone Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone
financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, (Ind AS’) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and its profit, total
comprehensive income, cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year then ended.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit of the Standalone financial statements
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (‘SAs’) specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor's

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI')
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the Standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
standalone financial statements.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Attention is invited to Note 32 to the Statement regarding
the change in accounting policy in respect of Gain / loss
on derecognition of loans upon assignment and related
disclosures in accordance with the applicable requirements
of Ind AS.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements is not
modified in respect of the above matters.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
standalone financial statements as a whole and in forming
our opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. We have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.

Sr. No. Key Audit Matter

Auditor's Response

1 Impairment of Loans

Charge: INR 3.26 Crores for the year ended 315t March,

2023
Provision: INR 103.46 Crores as at 315t March, 2023

Under Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, allowance for
loan losses is determined using expected credit loss
(‘ECL) estimation model. The estimation of ECL on
financial instruments involves significant judgement
and estimates. The key areas where we identified
greater levels of management judgement and therefore
increased levels of audit focus in the

Company’s estimation of ECLs are:

. Data inputs - The application of ECL model requires
several data inputs. This increases the risk of
completeness and accuracy of the data that has
been used to create assumptions in the model.

Principal Audit Procedures

Procedures performed by us have been enumerated herein
below:

We performed end to end process walkthroughs to identify
the key systems, applications and controls used in ECL
processes. We tested the relevant manual (including
spreadsheet controls), general IT and application controls
over key systems used in ECL process.

Key aspects of our controls testing involved following:

. Testing the design and operating effectiveness of the
key controls over the completeness and accuracy of
the key inputs, data and assumptions into the Ind AS
109 impairment models.

. Testing the ‘Governance Framework’ controls over
validation, implementation and model monitoring in
line with Reserve Bank of India guidance.
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Sr. No.

Key Audit Matter

Auditor's Response

. Model estimations - Inherently judgmental
models are used to estimate ECL which involves
determining Probabilities of Default (“PD"), Loss
Given Default (“LGD"), and Exposures at Default
(“EAD"). The PD and the LGD are the key drivers of
estimation complexity in the ECL and as a result
are considered the most significant judgmental
aspect of the Company’s modelling approach.

. Economic scenarios — Ind AS 109 requires the
Company to measure ECLs on an unbiased
forward-looking basis reflecting a range of future
economic conditions. Significant management
judgement is applied in determining the economic
scenarios used and the probability weights
applied to them especially when considering the
current uncertain economic environment.

J Qualitative adjustments - Adjustments to
the model-driven ECL results are recorded by
management to address known impairment
model limitations or emerging trends as well as
risks not captured by models. They represent
approximately 19.36% of ECL balances as at 31
March 2023. These adjustments are inherently
uncertain and significant management judgement
is involved considering internal assessment of
emerging forward looking economic factors and
related uncertainties. The underlying forecasts
and assumptions used in the estimates of
impairment loss allowance are subject to
uncertainties which are often outside the control
of the Company. Given the size of loan portfolio
relative to the balance sheet and the impact of
impairment allowance on the standalone financial
statements, we have considered this as a key
audit matter.

Disclosures:

The disclosures regarding the Company’s application
of Ind AS 109 are key to explaining the key judgements
and material inputs to the Ind AS 109 ECL results.

. Testing the design and operating effectiveness of the
key controls over the application of the staging criteria.

. Testing key controls relating to selection and
implementation of material macro-economic variables
and the controls over the scenario selection and
application of probability weights.

. Testing management’s controls over authorisation
and calculation of post model adjustments and
management overlays.

. Testing management’s controls on compliance with
Ind AS 109 disclosures related to ECL.

. Testing key controls operating over the information
technology system in relation to loan impairment
including system access and system change
management, program development and computer
operations.

Test of Details:

Key aspects of our testing included:

. Sample testing over key inputs, data and assumptions
impacting ECL calculations to assess completeness,
accuracy and relevance of data and reasonableness of
economic forecasts, weights, and model assumptions
applied.

. Model calculations testing through re-performance,
where possible.

. Test of details of post model adjustments, considering
the size and complexity of management overlays,
to assess the reasonableness of the adjustments
by challenging key assumptions, inspecting the
calculation methodology and tracing a sample of the
data used back to source data.

. Assessing disclosures - We assessed whether the
disclosures appropriately disclose and address the
uncertainty which exists when determining ECL. In
addition, we assessed whether the disclosure of the key
judgements and assumptions made was sufficiently
clear.

Information Technology

IT Systems and controls

The Company'’s key financial accounting and reporting
processes are highly dependent on the automated
controls in information systems, such that there exists
a risk that gaps in the IT control environment could
result in the financial accounting and reporting records
being materially misstated.

IT general and application controls are critical to ensure
that changes to applications and underlying data are
made in an appropriate manner. Adequate controls
contribute to mitigating the risk of potential fraud or
errors as a result of changes to the* applications and
data.

Due to the pervasive nature of role of information
technology systems in financial reporting, in our
preliminary risk assessment, we planned our audit by
assessing the risk of a material misstatement arising
from the technology as significant for the audit, hence
the Key Audit Matter.

In course of audit, our focus was on user access management,
change management, segregation of duties, system
reconciliation controls and system application controls
over key financial accounting and reporting systems. We
performed a range of audit procedures, which included:

. Review of the report of IS Audit carried during the year
by an independent firm of Chartered Accountants
pertaining to IT systems general controls including
access rights over applications, operating systems and
databases relied upon for financial reporting.

. Our other processes include:
o selectively recomputing interest calculations and
maturity dates;
o Selectively re-evaluating masters updation,
interface with resultant reports;
o Testing of the system generated reports and
accounting entries manually for core financial

reporting matters (i.e. verification around the
computer system)
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Sr. No. Key Audit Matter

Auditor’s Response

o Evaluating the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of the significant
accounts-related IT automated controls which are
relevant to the accuracy of system calculation,
and the consistency of data transmission

o Other areas that were independently
assessed included password policies, system
configurations, system interface controls, controls
over changes to applications and databases.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s
Annual Report, but does not include the standalone financial
statements and our audit reports thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these Standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the Ind-AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
implementation and maintenance of accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and

presentation of the financial statement that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone financial statements,
management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the Standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to

Annual Report 2022-23




S TRANCIAL SERVICE,
FINA! | -s LTD)

The Power of Distribution

the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)
(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management'’s use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the Standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the Standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Standalone financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the
Standalone Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of
areasonably knowledgeable user of the Standalone Financial
Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the Standalone Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the Standalone financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
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audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY
REQUIREMENTS

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020
(“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the “Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by
law have been kept by the company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books. The backup
of the books of account and other books and papers
maintained in electronic mode, has been maintained on
a daily basis on servers physically located in India during
the year.

c) Thestandalone Balance Sheet, the standalone Statement
of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the standalone Cash Flow Statement and
standalone Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received
from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B".

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.
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With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations as at March 31, 2023 on its financial
position in its Standalone financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts
including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses.

The Company is not required to transfer any amount
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company.

(a) The management has represented that, to
the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
company to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend to or
invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to
the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the company from any
persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we have
considered reasonable and appropriate in

Vi.

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 10, 2023

the circumstances, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations given under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material mis-statement.

As stated in Note no. 21.2 of the standalone
financial statements

(a) The final dividend proposed in the previous
year, declared and paid during the year by the
company is in compliance with section 123 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

(b) The interim dividend declared and paid by the
company during the year and until the date of
this report is in compliance with section 123
of the Companies Act, 2013.

(c) The Board of Directors of the Company has
proposed final dividend for the year which is
subject to the approval of the members in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting. The amount
of proposed dividend is in accordance with
section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

As per proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), which
provides for maintaining books of account in
accounting software having a feature of recording
audit trail of each and every transaction, creating
an edit log of each change made in the books of
account along with the date when such changes
were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot
be disabled, is applicable to the company only with
effect from the financial year beginning April T,
2023, the reporting under clause (g) of Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
(as amended), is currently not applicable.

For MUKESH M. SHAH & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 106625W

Chandresh S. Shah

Partner

Membership No.: 042132
UDIN: 23042132BGVIVV4408
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“Annexure A’ to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the standalone financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose
of reporting a true and fair view on the Standalone financial
statements of the Company and taking into consideration
the information and explanations given to us and the books
of account and other records examined by us in the normal
course of audit, we report that:

1. (a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

A. The Company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and
Equipment.

B. The Company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars of intangible assets.

The Company has a program of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment so as to cover
all the items of Property, Plant and Equipment in a
phased manner. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. Pursuant to the program, certain Property,
Plant and Equipment were physically verified by
the Management during the year. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations
given to us and based on the examination of the
registered sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance
deed provided to us, we report that, the title deeds,
comprising all the immovable properties of land
and buildings which are freehold, are held in the
name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.
In respect of the immovable properties taken on
lease and disclosed under “Right of use asset” in
the financial statements, the lease agreements are
in the name of the Company, where the Company is
lessee in the agreement.

According to the information and explanations
given to us and the records examined by us and
based on the examination, the Company has not
revalued any of its property, plant and equipment
(including Right of Use assets) and intangible
assets during the year.

According to the information and explanations
given to us and the records examined by us and
based on the examination, no proceedings have
been initiated during the year or are pending against
the Company as at March 31, 2023 for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016)
and rules made thereunder. Refer Note 47 to the
standalone financial statements.

The Company is a non-banking finance company
(‘NBFC’) and does not hold any inventories.
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(b)

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

During the year, the company has availed sanctioned
working capital limit in excess of Rs. 5 Crores from
banks on the basis of security of current assets.
Based on our examination of the records of the
company, the quarterly returns/ statements filed by
the company with the said bank are materially in
agreement with the books of accounts maintained
by the company.

Since the Company’s principal business is to give
loans. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(iii)
(a) of the Order is not applicable to it.

In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the investments
made, guarantees provided, security given and the
terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and
advances in the nature of loans and guarantees,
provided during the year are, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

The company, being a Non-Banking Financial
Company (‘NBFC’), registered under provisions
of RBI Act, 1934 and rules made thereunder, in
pursuance of its compliance with provisions
of the said Act/Rules, particularly, the Income
Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning
Norms, monitors repayments of principal and
payment of interest by its borrowers as stipulated.
In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, in respect of loans
and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule
of repayment of principal and payment of interest
has been stipulated and in cases where repayment
of principal and payment of interest is not received
as stipulated, the cognizance thereof is taken by
the Company in course of its periodic regulatory
reporting. Refer note 8.1 to the Standalone Financial
Statements for summarised details of such loans/
advances which are not repaid by borrowers as
per stipulations. According to the information and
explanations given to us, reasonable steps are
taken by the Company for recovery thereof.

The company, being a Non-Banking Financial
Company (‘NBFC’), registered under provisions
of RBI Act, 1934 and rules made thereunder, in
pursuance of its compliance with provisions
of the said Act/Rules, particularly, the Income
Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning
Norms, monitors and report total amount overdue
including principal and /or payment of interest by its
customers for more than 90 days. In cases where
repayment of principal and payment of interest
is not received as stipulated, the cognizance
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thereof is taken by the Company in course of its
periodic regulatory reporting. Refer note 8.1 to the
Standalone Financial Statements for summarised
details of such loans/advances which are not

by the Company Law Board or National Company Law
Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any
other Tribunal, in this regard.

. ) . . 6. The Central Government has not prescribed the
repaid by borrowers as per stipulations. According maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
:Zatsllen;r;)flzrr:taegzna?:iaiglat?;ttlgzscilr\:qepnax :‘Jc?r section 148 of the Act for any of the services rendered
recovery thereof by the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause

' 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) Since the Compa.nys principal busme§§ Is to give 7. According to the information and explanations given to
loans, the reporting under clause 3(iii)(e) of the us, in respect of statutory dues:
Order are not applicable to it. ’ ’

(f) Based on our audit procedures and the information (@) gzgos(i:t?r:gpi?;iishpiste dbesetr;tuqt?)?;riiILyesrei%lcjzllizir:;
and explanation made available to us, the Company Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’
has not granted any loans or advances in the nature State Insurance Incom'e-tax Sales-tax'Service tax
of loans either repayable on demand or without Duty of Custorn’ Duty of Ex'cise Valué added Tax'
specifying any terms or period of repayment. Cess and any ot'her material stat'utory dues. '

According to the information and explanations given to (b) There were no material undisputed amounts

us and on the basis of examination of the records, the payable in respect of Goods and Service Tax

Company has not granted any loans, made investments Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,

or provided guarantees in contravention of the provisions Income-tax Sale's-tax Service tax, Duty of Custom'

of Section 185 of the Act and has complied with the Duty of Ex'cise, Valule added Ta;<, Cess and an);
applicable provisions of Section 186 (1) of the Act. other material statutory dues in arrears as at March

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the 31,2023 for a period of more than six months from

meaning of the provisions of section 73 to 76 of the Act the date they became payable.

or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules (c) Details of dues of Income Tax which have not been

framed thereunder. Further, according to the information deposited as on March 31, 2023 on account of

and explanations given to us, no order has been passed disputes are given below: ’

Sr. Name of Statute Nature of Dues Amount Period to which the  Forum where dispute
No. [Z in Crores] amount relates is pending

1 Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 0.12[4] AY 2017-2018 Deputy Commission

of Income Tax (A)

[*] after adjusting the amount of refund claimed by the company amounting Rs. 0.33 Crore.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there
were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded
income that were surrendered or disclosed as income
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(43 of 1961) during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to
us and on the basis of our examination of the books of
account, we report that

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of
loans or borrowings or interest thereon from any
financial institution, banks, government or due to
debenture holders during the year.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter
by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c) The Company has utilised the money obtained by
way of term loans from banks and other financial
institutions during the year for the purposes for
which they were obtained. Unutilised funds are held
by the Company in the form of deposits or in current
accounts till the time of subsequent utilisation.

10. (a)

(d) The funds raised on short term basis have not been
utilized for the long-term purpose.

(e) The company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the
year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary
company.

The Company did not raise any money by way of
initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) and hence reporting under clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or
optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the company.

(a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the
information and explanations given to us, there
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12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

are 17 instances of fraud by customers relating
to availment of loans by falsifying the records
and documents. The total amount of such frauds
amounts to Rs. 1.89 Crore.

(b) According to the information and explanations
given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by
the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule
13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year.

(c) According to the information and explanations
given by management/Audit Committee, there
were no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to
us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the company is in compliance with section
177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all the
transactions with the related parties and details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone
financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the
Company is required to strengthen the internal audit
function by expanding the scope and coverage to
include Risk Based Internal Audit to commensurate
the internal audit system with the size and nature of
its business. Accordingly, the company has appointed
an independent firm to conduct such audit.

(b) We have considered, during the course of our audit,
the reports of the internal auditor issued till date
for the period under audit in accordance with the
guidance provided in SA 610 “Using the work of
Internal Auditors”.

According to the information and explanations given to
us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with
them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company and hence provisions of
section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanations given to
us and based on the examination of the records of the
Company, we report that

(a) The Company is required to be registered under
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934 and the Company has obtained the required
registration.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking
Financial or Housing Finance activities without
obtaining a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR)
from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.
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17.

18.

19.

20.

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 10, 2023

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company
(‘CIC’) as defined under the Regulations by the
Reserve Bank of India.

(d) As per information provided in course of our audit,
the group to which the Company belongs does not
have CIC.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current
financial year and in the immediately preceding financial
year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors
during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order
is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements and our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and Management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that
our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

(a) According to the information and explanations
given to us, there are no unspent amount in respect
of other than ongoing projects that are required to
be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VIl to
the Act.

(b) Accordingtotheinformation and explanations given
to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has transferred the
amount remaining unspent in respect of ongoing
projects, to a Special Account till the date of our
report in compliance with provision of sub section
(6) of section 135 of the Act. Relevant disclosures
are made in Note 34 (c) of the Standalone financial
statement of the Company.

For MUKESH M. SHAH & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 106625W

Chandresh S. Shah

Partner

Membership No.: 042132
UDIN: 23042132BGVIVV4408
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“Annexure B” to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Control clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of MM A S Financial Service Limited (“the Company”)
as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
Standalone financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL
FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial control based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India [“ICAI"].
These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company'’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
control system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the material misstatement of the Standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company'’s internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that:

1.  pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to therisk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For MUKESH M. SHAH & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 106625W

Chandresh S. Shah

Partner

Membership No.: 042132
UDIN: 23042132BGVIVV4408

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 10, 2023
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Standalone Balance Sheet

as at 31 March 2023

(X in Crores)

Note As at As at As at
no. RNV Liy2E 31 March 2022 1 April 2021
(Restated refer (Restated refer
note 32) note 32)
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 237.86 270.58 965.06
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 6 533.77 560.23 31.80
Trade receivables 7 4.27 1.00 2.21
Loans 8 5,910.16 4,553.80 3,805.14
Investments 9 826.12 538.06 235.03
Other financial assets 10 60.24 52.62 47.65
Total financial ts 7,572.42 5,976.29 5,086.89
Non-financial ts
Income tax assets (net) 30 2.52 6.23 5.92
Deferred tax assets (net) 30 18.22 12.79 10.26
Property, plant and equipment 11(a) 13.95 12.39 10.81
Capital work-in-progress 11(c) 57.66 52.04 50.03
Right-of-use asset 11(d) 1.06 0.53 0.38
Intangible assets under development 11(e) 0.33 0.04 -
Other intangible assets 11(b) 1.03 0.22 0.09
Other non-financial assets 12 9.33 3.68 2.32
Total non-financial assets 104.10 87.92 79.81
Total assets 7,676.52 6,064.21 5,166.70
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Payables 13
()  Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.13 - -
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 11.51 14.12 6.56
enterprises and small enterprises
(1)  Other payables
(i)  total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - -
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 1.84 1.55 1.01
enterprises and small enterprises
Debt securities 14 627.26 362.03 314.12
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 15 4,957.56 3,732.73 2,919.75
Subordinated liabilities 16 252.70 137.22 59.97
Other financial liabilities 17 305.65 457.59 632.53
Total financial liabilities 6,156.65 4,705.24 3,933.94
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) 30 1.86 2.25 11.77
Provisions 18 9.48 7.16 3.96
Other non-financial liabilities 19 2.80 8.97 12.06
Total non-financial liabilities 14.14 18.38 27.79
Total liabilities 6,170.79 4,723.62 3,961.73
EQUITY
Equity share capital 20 54.66 54.66 54.66
Other equity 21 1,451.07 1,285.93 1,150.31
Total equity 1,505.73 1,340.59 1,204.97
Total liabilities and equity 7,676.52 6,064.21 5166.70

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these financial statements

In terms of our report of even date attached
For Mukesh M Shah & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No: 106625W

Chandresh S. Shah
Partner
Membership No: 042132

Darshana S. Pandya
(DIN - 07610402)

Riddhi B. Bhayani

(Company Secretary & Compliance Officer)

(Membership No: A41206)
Ahmedabad
10 May 2023

Ahmedabad
10 May 2023

Annual Report 2022-23

(Director & Chief Executive Officer)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
MA S Financial Services Limited

Kamlesh C. Gandhi
(Chairman & Managing Director)

(DIN - 00044852)

Ankit Jain

(Chief Financial Officer)
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Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss

for the year ended 31 March 2023

Note Year ended
no. 31 March 2023

Revenue from operations

@ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(R in Crores)

Year ended
31 March 2022
(Restated refer

Interest income 22 806.57 561.11
Gain on assignment of financial assets (Refer note 32) 68.04 63.87
Fees and commission income 49.99 20.30
Net gain on fair value changes 23 21.49 10.29
Total revenue from operations 946.09 655.57
Other income 24 3.00 1.51
Total income 949.09 657.08
Il. Expenses
Finance costs 25 474.82 319.54
Fees and commission expense 57.24 23.09
Impairment on financial assets 26 53.00 34.10
Employee benefits expenses 27 62.49 42.23
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 28 2.40 1.78
Others expenses 29 34.44 25.04
Total expenses 684.39 445.78
Profit before exceptional items and tax (I - 1I) 264.70 211.30
Exceptional items - -
lll. Profit before tax 264.70 211.30
IV. Tax expense:
Current tax 30 65.10 54.23
Short / (excess) provision for tax relating to prior years 30 (2.47) (0.50)
Net current tax expense 62.63 53.73
Deferred tax expense / (credit) 30 1.11 0.02
Net tax expense 63.74 53.75
V.  Profit for the year (Il - V) 200.96 157.55
VI. Other comprehensive income
(A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Re-measurement of the defined benefit liabilities 0.06 (0.11)
Income tax impact on above (0.02) 0.03
Total (A) 0.04 (0.08)
(B) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss:
Loans and advances through other comprehensive Income (26.05) (10.01)
Income tax impact on above 6.56 2.52
Total (B) (19.49) (7.49)
Other comprehensive income (A+B) (19.45) (7.57)
VIl. Total comprehensive income (V + VI) 181.51 149.98
VIIl. Earnings per equity share (of Z 10 each): 31
Basic (%) 36.76 28.82
Diluted (%) 36.76 28.82

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these financial statements

In terms of our report of even date attached
For Mukesh M Shah & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No: 106625W

Chandresh S. Shah
Partner
Membership No: 042132

Ahmedabad
10 May 2023

Darshana S. Pandya
(Director & Chief Executive Officer)
(DIN - 07610402)

Riddhi B. Bhayani

(Company Secretary & Compliance Officer)
(Membership No: A41206)

Ahmedabad

10 May 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
MA S Financial Services Limited

Kamlesh C. Gandhi
(Chairman & Managing Director)
(DIN - 00044852)

Ankit Jain
(Chief Financial Officer)
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S INANCIAL SERVICE,
FINA! S LTD)

The Power of Distribution

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 march 2023

(A) EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(% in Crores)

Equity Share of ¥ 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

Balance at 1 April 2021 54.66
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors -
Restated balance at 1 April 2021 54.66
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance at 31 March 2022 54.66
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors -
Restated balance at 31 March 2022 54.66

Changes in equity share capital during the year -

Balance at 31 March 2023 54.66

(B) OTHER EQUITY

(X in Crores)

Reserves and surplus Other comprehensive income Total

Reserveu/s.  Securities  Retained Equity Loans and

45-IC of the RBI premium earnings  instruments advances

Act, 1934 through OCl  through OCI
Balance at 31 March 2021 173.92 426.87 396.36 * 120.76 1,117.91
Impact due to changes in accounting policy 6.48 - 25.92 - - 32.40
Restated balance at 1 April 2021 (Refer note 32) 180.40 426.87 422.28 * 120.76 1,150.31
Profit for the year - - 157.55 - - 157.55
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans (net of taxes) - - (0.08) - - (0.08)
Other comprehensive income (net of taxes) - - - - (6.82) (6.82)
Final dividend on equity shares - - (8.20) - - (8.20)
Interim dividend on equity shares - - (6.83) - - (6.83)
Transfer to reserve u/s. 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934 31.51 - (31.51) - - -
Restated balance at 31 March 2022 (Refer note 32) 211.91 426.87 533.21 * 113.94 1,285.93
Profit for the year - - 200.96 - - 200.96
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans (net of taxes) - - 0.04 - - 0.04
Other comprehensive income (net of taxes) - - - - (16.45)  (16.45)
Final dividend on equity shares - - (9.57) - - (9.57)
Interim dividend on equity shares - - (9.84) - - (9.84)
Transfer to reserve u/s. 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934 40.19 - (40.19) - - -

Balance at 31 March 2023 252.10 426.87 674.61 * 97.49 1,451.07

* Represents amount less than ¥ 50,000

In terms of our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Mukesh M Shah & Co. M A S Financial Services Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No: 106625W

Chandresh S. Shah Darshana S. Pandya Kamlesh C. Gandhi

Partner (Director & Chief Executive Officer) (Chairman & Managing Director)

Membership No: 042132 (DIN - 07610402) (DIN - 00044852)
Riddhi B. Bhayani Ankit Jain
(Company Secretary & Compliance Officer) (Chief Financial Officer)
(Membership No: A41206)

Ahmedabad Ahmedabad

10 May 2023 10 May 2023
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Standalone Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2023

(X in Crores)

Year ended
31 March 2022
(Restated refer note 32)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit before tax 264.70 211.30
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation 2.40 1.78
Finance cost 474.82 319.54
Impairment on financial assets 53.00 34.10
(Profit) / loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (0.10) -
Interest income (806.57) (561.11)
Gain on assignment of financial assets (68.04) (63.87)
Net gain on fair value changes (2.74) 3.12)
Net gain on sale of investments measured at amortized cost (1.35) -
Financial guarantee commission income (0.01) (0.01)
Dividend income (1.12) (0.66)
Gain on derecognition of leased assets (31 March 2022: ¥ 7,364) = -
(349.71) (273.35)
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES (85.01) (62.05)
Changes in working capital:
Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in operating assets:
Loans (1,340.37) (716.44)
Trade receivables (3.26) 1.21
Advances received against loan agreements (6.38) 8.00
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 0.57 (0.55)
Other financial asset (7.44) (4.69)
Other non-financial asset (13.02) (3.91)
Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payable and other payable (2.19) 8.10
Other financial liabilities (172.94) (178.91)
Other non-financial liabilities (6.17) (3.07)
Provisions (also refer note 34) 2.01 (1,549.19) 3.72 (886.54)
CASH GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) OPERATIONS (1,634.20) (948.59)
Interest income received 701.70 516.43
Dividend received 1.12 0.66
Interest income on Investment measured at amortised cost 48.61 10.56
Finance cost paid (463.37) 288.06 (335.59) 192.06
(1,346.14) (756.53)
Income tax paid (net) (59.31) (63.55)
NET CASH FLOW GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) (1,405.45) (820.08)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property, plant and equipments and intangible assets, (10.51) (5.22)
including capital advances
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipments and intangible 0.24 -
assets
Change in Earmarked balances with banks and other free deposit 25.89 (527.87)
Interest income from bank deposits 37.84 23.91
Purchase of investments (2,824.51) (1,192.11)
Redemption of investments 2,541.16 892.29
Net gain on sale of investments measured at amortized cost 1.35 -
NET CASH FLOW GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) (228.54) (809.00)
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S INANCIAL SERVICE,
FINA! S LTD)

The Power of Distribution

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows (contd.)

for the year ended 31 March 2023

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Year ended
31 March 2022
(Restated refer note 32)

Year ended
31 March 2023

Proceeds from debt securities and borrowings 3,073.48 1,949.22
Repayments of debt securities and borrowings (1,236.21) (1,048.77)
Net increase / (decrease) in working capital borrowings (216.37) 49.60
Repayment of lease liabilities (0.22) (0.42)
Dividends paid (19.41) (15.03)
NET CASH FLOW GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) 1,601.27 934.60
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) (32.72) (694.48)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 270.58 965.06
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 1 below) 237.86 270.58
Notes:
(% In Crores)
As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

1. Cash and bank balances at the end of the year comprises:

(a) Cashonhand 0.14 0.10
(b) Balances with banks 67.64 233.52
Total 67.78 233.62
(c) Bank deposits with original maturity of 3 months or less 170.08 36.96
Cash and cash equivalents as per the balance sheet 237.86 270.58

2. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the “indirect method” as set out in the Ind AS - 7 on statement of cash flows

specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

3. The Company as at 31 March 2023 has undrawn borrowing facilities amounting to ¥ 1290.78 Crores that may be available for future

operating activities and to settle capital commitments.

4. Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

31 March 2022 Cash flows Non-cash changes*

Debt securities 362.03 266.25 (1.02) 627.26
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 3,732.73 1,234.65 (9.82) 4,957.56
Subordinated liabilities 137.22 120.00 (4.52) 252.70
Total liabilities from financing activities 4,231.98 1,620.90 (15.36) 5,837.52

1 April 2021 Cash flows Non-cash changes* 31 March 2022
Debt securities 314.12 50.00 (2.09) 362.03
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 2,919.75 820.06 (7.08) 3,732.73
Subordinated liabilities 59.97 80.00 (2.75) 137.22
Total liabilities from financing activities 3,293.84 950.06 (11.92) 4,231.98

* Non-cash changes represents the effect of amortization of transaction cost.
The notes referred to above form an integral part of these financial statements

In terms of our report of even date attached
For Mukesh M Shah & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No: 106625W

Chandresh S. Shah

Partner
Membership No: 042132

Ahmedabad
10 May 2023
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10 May 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
MA S Financial Services Limited
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(Chief Financial Officer)
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Notes

Forming part of the Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

2.2

CORPORATE INFORMATION

MAS Financial Services Limited (the “Company”) is a
public Company domiciled in India and incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. It is
registered as a systematically important non deposit
taking non-banking finance Company (“NBFC”) with
Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”). The Company is engaged
in the business of providing Micro Enterprise loans
("MEL”), Small and Medium Enterprise loans (“SME"),
Two Wheeler loans (“TW"), Commercial Vehicle loans
(“CV") and loans to NBFCs - to create the underlying
assets of MEL, SME, TW and CV. Its shares are listed
on two recognised stock exchanges in India i.e. BSE
Limited (“BSE”) and the National Stock Exchange of
India Limited (“NSE”").

The Company’s registered office is at 6, Ground Floor,
Narayan Chambers, Behind Patang Hotel, Ashram Road,
Ahmedabad-380009, Gujarat, India.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These standalone financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting standards (“Ind AS”) as per the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended
and notified under section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”), and in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India and other relevant
provisions of the Act. Further, the Company has complied
with all the directions related to Implementation of Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed for Non-Banking
Financial Companies (NBFCs) in accordance with the
RBI notification no. RBI/2019-20/170 DOR NBFC).CC.PD.
No0.109/22. 10.106/2019-20 dated 13 March 2020.

Any application guidance/ clarifications/ directions
issued by RBI or other regulators are implemented as
and when they are issued/ applicable.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and
the Statement of Changes in Equity are prepared and
presented in the format prescribed in the Division Il of
Schedule Ill to the Act. The Statement of Cash Flows has
been prepared and presented as per the requirements of
Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows”.

Basis of measurement

The standalone financial statements have been prepared
on a historical cost convention and on an accrual basis,
except for certain financial instruments which are
measured at fair values as required by relevant Ind AS.

23

2.4

Functional and presentation currency

The standalone financial statements are presented in
Indian Rupees (%) which is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates
(the “functional currency”). Amounts in the standalone
financial statements are presented in crores rounded off
to two decimal places as permitted by Schedule Ill to the
Act, except when otherwise indicated.

Use of estimates, judgements and assumptions

The preparation of the standalone financial statements
in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions considered in
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including
contingent liabilities) and the reported income and
expenses during the year. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
prospectively.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting
policies, management has made judgements, which
have a significant risk of causing material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

i)  Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets
depends on the results of business model and the
solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI")
test. The Company determines the business model
at a level that reflects how groups of financial
assets are managed together to achieve a particular
business objective. This assessment includes
judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including
how the performance of the assets is evaluated and
their performance measured, the risks that affect
the performance of the assets and how these are
managed and how the managers of the assets are
compensated. The Company monitors financial
assets measured at amortised cost or fair value
through other comprehensive income that are
derecognised prior to their maturity to understand
thereason for their disposal and whether the reasons
are consistent with the objective of the business for
which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the
Company'’s continuous assessment of whether the
business model for which the remaining financial
assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it
is not appropriate whether there has been a change
in business model and so a prospective change to
the classification of those assets.
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FINA! | -s LTD)

The Power of Distribution

Notes

Forming part of the Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Contd.)

Estimates and assumptions iii) Impairment of financial asset
The key assumptions concerning the future and The measurement ofimpairmentlossesacross
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at all categories of financial assets requires
the reporting date, that have a significant risk of judgement, in particular, the estimation of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying the amount and timing of future cash flows
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next and collateral values when determining
financial year, are described below. The Company impairment losses and the assessment of
based its assumptions and estimates on a significant increase in credit risk. These
parameters available when the standalone financial estimates are driven by a number of factors,
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances changes in which can result in different levels
and assumptions about future developments, of allowances.

however, may change due to market changes or

circumstances arising that are beyond the control The Company's expected credit loss (“ECL")

of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the calculations are outputs of complex models

assumptions when they occur. with a number of underlying assumptions
regarding the choice of variable inputs and

i) Fair value of financial instruments their interdependencies. Elements of the
The fair value of financial instruments is ECL models that are considered accounting
the price that would be received to sell an judgements and estimates include:
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction in the principal (or most a) The Company’s criteria for assessing if
advantageous) market at the measurement there has been a significant increase in
date under current market conditions (i.e. credit risk and so allowances for financial
an exit price) regardless of whether that assets should be measured on a life time
price is directly observable or estimated expected credit loss (“LTECL") basis.
using another valuation technique. When the
fair values of financial assets and financial b) Development of ECL models, including
liabilities recorded in the balance sheet the various formulas and the choice of
cannot be derived from active markets, they inputs.
are determined using a variety of valuation
techniques that include the use of valuation c) Determination of associations between
models. The inputs to these models are taken macroeconomic scenarios and economic
from observable markets where possible, inputs, such as gross domestic products,
but where this is not feasible, estimation is lending interest rates and collateral
required in establishing fair values. For further values, and the effect on probability
details about determination of fair value refer of default ("PD"), exposure at default
note 3.8 and note 42. ("EAD") and loss given default (“LGD").

ii)  Effective interest rate (“EIR") method d) Selection of forward-looking
The Company’s EIR methodology, as explained macroeconomic scenarios and their
in Note 3.1(A), recognises interest income / probability weightings, to derive the
expense using a rate of return that represents economic inputs into ECL models.
the best estimate of a constant rate of return
over the expected behavioural life of loans given e) Management overlay is used in
/ taken and recognises the effect of potentially circumstances where management in its
different interest rates at various stages and objective review and internal assessment
other characteristics of the product life cycle of emerging forward looking economic
(including prepayments and penalty interest factors and related uncertainties.
and charges). This estimation, by nature,
requires an element of judgement regarding iv) Provisions and other contingent liabilities

the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the
instruments, as well as expected changes to
interest rates and other fee income/ expense
that are integral parts of the instrument.
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Notes

Forming part of the Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Contd.)

various litigation, arbitration and regulatory
investigations and proceedings in the ordinary
course of the Company’s business. When the
Company can reliably measure the outflow of
economic benefits in relation to a specific case
and considers such outflows to be probable,
the Company records a provision against the
case. Where the outflow is considered to be
probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be
made, a contingent liability is disclosed. Given
the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining
the probability and amount of losses, the
Company takes into account a number of
factors including legal advice, the stage of the
matter and historical evidence from similar
incidents. Significant judgement is required
to conclude on these estimates. For further
details on provisions and other contingencies
refer note 3.17.

v)  Provision for income tax and deferred tax
assets
The Company uses estimates and judgements
based on the relevant rulings in the areas
of allocation of revenue, costs, allowances
and disallowances which is exercised while
determining the provision for income tax,
including the amount expected to be paid
/ recovered for uncertain tax positions. A
deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and tax losses can be
utilized. Accordingly, the Company exercises
its judgement to reassess the carrying amount
of deferred tax assets at the end of each
reporting period.

vi) Defined Benefit Plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan
and the present value of the gratuity obligation
are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include
the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to
the complexities involved in the valuation and
its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date.

These estimates and judgements are based on
historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that may have a
financial impact on the Company and that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Management believes that the estimates used in
preparation of the standalone financial statements
are prudent and reasonable.

2.5 Presentation of the standalone financial statements

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of
liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement
within 12 months after the reporting date (current) and
more than 12 months after the reporting date (non-
current) is presented in note 40.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally
reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only
offset and reported net when, in addition to having an
unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts without being contingent on a
future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net
basis in all of the following circumstances:

i)  The normal course of business
ii)  The event of default

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

3.1 Recognition of interest income

A.  EIR method

Under Ind AS 109, interest income is recorded using
the effective interest rate method for all financial
instruments measured at amortised cost and
financial instrument measured at FVOCI. The EIR
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the
asset) is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The Company
recognises interest income using a rate of return
that represents the best estimate of a constant
rate of return over the expected life of the financial
instrument.

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the
financial asset are revised for reasons other than
credit risk, the adjustment is booked as a positive
or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of
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the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or
reduction in interest income. The adjustment is
subsequently amortised through Interest income in
the statement of profit and loss.

Interest income

The Company calculates interest income by
applying EIR to the gross carrying amount of
financial assets other than credit impaired assets.

When a financial asset becomes credit impaired
and is, therefore, regarded as stage 3, the Company
calculates interest income on the net basis. If
the financial asset cures and is no longer credit
impaired, the Company reverts to calculating
interest income on a gross basis.

3.2 Financial instrument - initial recognition

A.

Date of recognition

All financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially recognised when the Company becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Initial measurement of financial instruments

The classification of financial instruments at initial
recognition depends on their contractual terms and
the business model for managing the instruments
(Refer note 3.3(A)). Financial instruments are
initially measured at their fair value (as defined
in Note 3.8), transaction costs are added to or
subtracted from this amount, except in the case of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
FVTPL.

Measurement categories of financial assets and
liabilities
The Company classifies all of its financial assets
based on the business model for managing the
assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured
at either:

i)  Amortised cost
i) FVOCI

iii) FVTPL

3.3 Financial assets and liabilities

A.

Financial assets
Business model assessment

The Company determines its business model at the
level that best reflects how it manages groups of
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financial assets to achieve its business objective.

The Company’s business model is not assessed on
an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher
level of aggregated portfolios and is based on
observable factors such as:

a) How the performance of the business model
and the financial assets held within that
business model are evaluated and reported to
the Company’s key management personnel.

b) The risks that affect the performance of the
business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and, in particular,
the way those risks are managed.

¢) How managers of the business are
compensated (for example, whether the
compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or on the contractual cash
flows collected).

d) The expected frequency, value and timing
of sales are also important aspects of the
Company’s assessment.

The business model assessment is based on
reasonably expected scenarios without taking
‘worst case’ or ‘stress case’ scenarios into account.

SPPI test

As a second step of its classification process,
the Company assesses the contractual terms of
financial asset to identify whether they meet SPPI
test

‘Principal’ forthe purpose of thistestis defined as the
fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition
and may change over the life of financial asset (for
example, if there are repayments of principal or
amortisation of the premium/ discount).

The most significant elements of interest within a
lending arrangement are typically the consideration
for the time value of money and credit risk. To
make the SPPI assessment, the Company applies
judgement and considers relevant factors such as
the period for which the interest rate is set.

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more
than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility in the
contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic
lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual
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cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the amount outstanding. In such cases,
the financial asset is required to be measured at
FVTPL.

subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the
circumstances in which the Company changes in its
business model for managing those financial assets.

3.5 Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

Accordingly, financial assets are measured as A. Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial
follows: modification of terms and conditions
The Company derecognises a financial asset,
i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and
A financial asset is measured at amortised conditions have been renegotiated to the extent
cost if it is held within a business model that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the
whose objective is to hold the asset in order difference recognised as a derecognition gain or
to collect contractual cash flows and the loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not
contractual terms of the financial asset give already been recorded.
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on B. Derecognition of financial assets other than due to

the principal amount outstanding.

ii)  Financial assets measured at FVOCI

A financial asset is measured at FVOCI if it is
held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

iii)  Financial assets at FVTPL

A financial asset which is not classified in
any of the above categories are measured at
FVTPL.

iv)  Equity investment in subsidiaries

The Company has accounted for its equity
investments in subsidiaries at cost.

Financial liability
i) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are initially recognized
at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial liability, which are not at fair value
through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair
value on initial recognition.

i)  Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are carried at amortized
cost using the effective interest method.

substantial modification
i) Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a
part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is derecognised when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expires or it transfers the
rights to receive the contractual cash flows in
a transaction in which substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset are transferred or in which the Company
neither transfers nor retains substantially all
of the risks and rewards of ownership and it
does not retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in
its entirety, the difference between the
carrying amount (measured at the date
of derecognition) and the consideration
received (including any new asset obtained
less any new liability assumed) is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss. It is a
change in accounting policy which has been
implemented with retrospective effect and
being presented from the begining of the
earliest period i.e. 1 April 2021. Refer note 32
for details.

Accordingly, gain on sale or derecognition of
assigned portfolio are recorded upfront in the
statement of profit and loss as per Ind AS 109.

As per the guidelines of RBI, the Company is
required to retain certain portion of the loan
assigned to parties in its books as Minimum

3.4 Reclassification of financial assets Retention Requirement (“MRR”). Therefore, it

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets continue to recognise the portion retained by
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it as MRR.

ii)  Financial liability

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires. Where an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference between the
carrying value of the original financial liability
and the consideration paid is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

3.6 Impairment of financial assets

A.

Overview of ECL principles
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses
ECL model, for evaluating impairment of financial
assets together with loan commitments other than
those measured at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are measured through a
loss allowance at an amount equal to:

i.) The 12-months expected credit losses
(expected credit losses that result from those
default events on the financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date); or

ii.) Lifetime expected credit losses (expected
credit losses that result from all possible
default events over the life of the financial
instrument).

Both LTECLs and 12 months ECLs are calculated on
collective basis for retail loans.

Based on the above, the Company categorises
its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as
described below:

Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the
Company recognises an allowance based
on 12 months ECL. Stage 1 loansincludes
those loans where there is no significant
increase in credit risk observed and also
includes facilities where the credit risk
has been improved and the loan has been
reclassified from stage 2.
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Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant
increase in credit risk since origination,
the Company records an allowance for
the life time ECL.

Stage 3: Loans considered credit impaired are the
loans which are past due for more than
90 days. Borrowers are also classified
under stage 3 bucket under instances like
fraud identification and legal proceeding.
Further, stage 3 loan accounts are
identified at customer level (i.e. a Stage
1 or 2 customer having other loans which
are in Stage 3). The Company records an
allowance for life time ECL.

There is a curing period with Stage 3 loan,
where even if the DPD days are reduced
by 90 days the same will not be upgraded
to Stage 1 until the loan is 0 DPD.

Loan commitments:

When estimating LTECLs for undrawn loan
commitments, the Company estimates the
expected portion of the loan commitment that will
be drawn down over its expected life. The ECL is
then based on the present value of the expected
shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is drawn down.

Calculation of ECLs
For retail loans

The mechanics of ECL calculations are outlined
below and the key elements are, as follows:

PD Probability of Default (“PD”) is an estimate
of the likelihood of default over a given time
horizon. A default may only happen at a
certain time over the assessed period, if the
facility has not been previously derecognised
and is still in the portfolio.

EAD Exposure at Default (“EAD”) is an estimate of
the exposure at a future default date, taking
into account expected changes in the exposure
after the reporting date, including repayments
of principal and interest, expected drawdowns
on committed facilities and accrued interest.
Further, the EAD for stage 3 retail loan is the
outstanding exposure at the time loan is
classified as Stage 3 for the first time.

LGD LGD is an estimate of the loss from a
transaction given that a default occurs. Under
Ind AS 109, lifetime LGD's are defined as a
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collection of LGD’s estimates applicable to
different future periods.

% Recovery rate = (discounted recovery
amount + security amount + discounted
estimated recovery) / (total outstanding)
% LGD =1 - recovery rate

For retail asset channel (“RAC”) loan portfolio

For RAC loan portfolio, the Company has developed
internal rating based approach for the purpose of
ECL. The credit rating framework of the Company
consists of various parameters based on which
RAC loan portfolio is evaluated and credit rating is
assigned.

The Company has developed its PD matrix based
on the benchmarking of various external reports,
ratings and Basel norms. This PD matrix is
calibrated with its historical data and major events
at a regular time interval in accordance with its ECL
policy.

The LGD has been considered based on Basel-
Il Framework for all the level of RAC credit rating
portfolio.

The Company calculates PD, EAD and LGD to
determine impairment loss on the portfolio of loans
and discounted at an approximation to the EIR. At
every reporting date, the above calculated EADs are
reviewed. While at every year end, LGDs and PDs
are reviewed and changes in the forward looking
estimates are analysed.

The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised
below:

Stage 1: The 12 months ECL is calculated as the
portion of LTECLs that represent the
ECLs that result from default events on
a financial instrument that are possible
w